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ABOUT US Fan? F 1

Established in Nanjing in 2003, the Group is a well-recognized
comprehensive community service provider in Jiangsu province, China, with
strong and balanced property management abilities in the management of
residential and commercial properties. Through our continued development
over the years, we have established our regional leading position in the
property management market of Jiangsu province and are well-recognized
nationwide as we kept expanding our business in the rest of the country.
With a vision of “making lives warmer”, the Group has provided and
endeavors to continue to “provide customers with high-quality services
with sincerity” to serve its customers.
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

ZENG JUNKAI

TRHMSE

BRE xr

Chairman
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to you the annual
results of the Group as of 31 December 2022.

In 2022, experiencing the continuation of COVID-19 up to the 202%F  EEFTRIFELCETHAEHEE L4 - WERR
present and co-existence with the pandemic, the contribution of i‘kﬁﬂi & 54 12 77 [ &) & B 1 A B j( ER®BA
property services to social governance has continued to increase, and CRBEECUARRBEEE A EOBRBEZEE
service content, service standardization and service quality are being ﬁ 20224 - BR R E MG I S AR RE AR #1538 KR IK

increasingly emphasized. In 2022, the state and local governments
introduced relevant standardization and guidance policies, which
have promoted the healthy and long-term development of the
property management industry.

In 2022, the property management industry faced unfavorable
factors including the overall downturn of the upstream real estate
industry, the weak growth of the total volume of new housing
deliveries and the post-peak stage of the rise of the residential
property management coverage rate has passed, and affected by the
enormous impact of COVID-19 on the payment rate and community
value-added services, both performance and growth rate have
generally declined.

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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In the face of the above unfavorable factors, the Group still firmly
defined 2022 as the “Customer Value Year’, adhering to its
development foundation based on quality services, penetrating the
value-added services field, expanding the second service track and
deeply integrating smart technology to achieve quality and steady
growth in management scale and profitability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group returned to the essence of
property services, and paid attention to quality growth. We have
established our presence in 55 cities in China, having 285 projects
under management with a contracted gross floor area (“GFA") of
54.8309 million sq.m. and a total GFA under management of 44.864
million sg.m. (with a commercial GFA under management of 3.7634
million sq.m.), representing a growth rate of 4.24% and 23.28%,
respectively, as compared with that in 2021. In particular, the GFA of
market-oriented extension reached 21.4067 million sg.m., which
accounted for 47.71% of GFA under management and represented
an increase of 11.78% as compared with that in 2021, achieving
continuous and steady development of management scale and
market expansion in terms of quality and quantity.

During the Reporting Period, the three major business lines of the
Group, namely property management services, value-added services
to non-property owners and community value-added services, were
affected by unfavourable factors such as the overall downturn in the
market. We achieved revenue of RMB1,103.1 million, representing a
decrease of 2.4% as compared with that in 2021, and gross profit of
RMB256.4 million, representing a decrease of 20.0% as compared
with that in 2021. Our net profit reached RMB93.9 million,
representing a decrease of 32.2% as compared with that in 2021.

Leveraging the ‘residential + commercial” dual-driven model, we
mapped our non-residential business portfolio and explored our
second development track, continuing to establish presence in non-
residential projects. In 2022, we signed cooperation agreements with
the representative of biomedical industrial park projects — Shanghai
Henlius, the representative of cultural and tourism projects —
Huanglong Lake Makou Pottery Cultural Transmission Base (& BE
55 O P b @& E i), the representative of industrial park projects
— Sujiao Media Base (B ZK{HE E ), the representative of
automobile display venue projects — Funing Auto City (F£2 )95
), the representative of government public construction projects
— Foshan Gaoming District Party School (LU &M EZ ER),
and the representative of commercial office projects — Lixinghang
Nanjing Auto Support Center (F] 217/ 5 /THE X H 1), etc. and
achieved leapfrog development in the non-residential property
service niche market, which filled up the gap in the niche market of
property management in respect of large-scale pharmaceutical
companies, cultural tourism projects and industrial park projects etc.
We also gave play to the advantage of Nanjing “home-city” to
expand the development tracks of urban services and establish
presence in sector of public construction.
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In 2022, we remained our adherence to the “customer-centered”
service philosophy and were quality-driven to improve our service
standards continuously, winning the trust of customers. We built
high-quality full life cycle service standards, set up the non-
residential service brand and created “a community with warmth (&
BEHIFLIE)". According to a survey conducted by a third-party
institution, the satisfaction score of the Group's property owners in
2022 still maintained a leading position amid a downward trend in
the industry. The overall satisfaction rate for non-residential business
portfolio property services was above the industry level and reflected
that the service quality of the Group has been well-recognized by

customers.

During the Reporting Period, we adhered to the original vision of
(BEPAIEEE) o tansit from
to ‘customer thinking”. We upgraded to the

“creating values for customers
“product thinking”
Redsun Mode 2.0 to provide customers with “satisfying + exceeding
expectation” services. By maximizing the motivation of our
employees at the institutional level, we helped them to be self-
motivated, strengthened our core product capabilities and brand
influence, and thus formed a virtuous cycle. The “Redsun
Housekeeper” (3A%Z %) and "Hong Master” (5ARM1#) service under
this model have now been launched in full swing in the Group. Our
organizational efficiency has been continuously improved and our
efforts to enhance quality and efficacy have achieved satisfactory
outcome. Based on the motto of “Loyalty to customers with warmth
(BPBEBAMRE), we launched a Redsun-exclusive community
activities, thereby creating a wonderful community life for property

owners and sharing happiness for all times.

In respect of intelligent services, the Group actively promoted digital
construction and carried out smart upgrades, where we continuously
iterated and upgraded the “Hongtu panoramic smart data platform”,
“management and control platform of all-dimensional plan”,
"Hongzhantu System (3AEX Bl R #7%)
control platform of investment and development”, for the purpose of

", and “online management and

assisting business development, and continued to enhance

management efficiency and smart management outputs.
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Leveraging our own service capability and brand, we actively
undertook market-oriented extension, and won the trust of third-
party tenderers. We obtained third-party property management
projects, and extended from the initial industry basic services to the
provision of various value-added services for property owners and
customers, explored diversified community value-added services
based on property owners’ daily life needs and full life cycle needs,
actively carried out value-added services for property owners, and
met the demand for full life cycle services.

Dare to think, dare to do, and dare to strivel Looking ahead to 2023,
all staff of the Group will work together to improve quality and
efficiency, enhance customer satisfaction, win more quality markets

and gain more recognition from property owners and customers.

Finally, on behalf of the Board again, | would like to extend my
sincere compliment to property owners and all customers for their
continuous support as always, and my wholehearted gratitude to all
shareholders and partners for their unfailing support and to all
employees for being dedicated to overcoming challenging times
together with the Company!

Redsun Services Group Limited
Zeng Junkai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEENWEIN
REVIEW FOR 2022 2022 [O

In 2022, the scale of the property management industry continued to 20224 » ¥ EERITERB N ERA - BEEELIE
expand, but the overall growth rate slowed down. As the industry — RERE AR  (TEHBETHRE - EHODWHER
merger and acquisition market contracted, listed property SREBEZEE G RMESSCERIREIR  MEEATS
management companies tended to be cautious in expansion by  tfEEE[EER o

merger and acquisition. With active performance of state-owned

enterprises, the property capital market was returning to rationality.

In 2022, the growth rate of revenue and net profit of listed property 20224 » | #1148 YRS R B 12 3 F8 - EF R A
management companies slowed down and the gross profit margin ~ JFF| R EM TAEFR » L BEIZERBHELEELE
and net profit margin were also undergoing downward adjustment. B A5RBRIERRE - EEFIBERSEEE RS -
While community value-added services were shifting from various & U B BRAEZRF K o

development tracks to selected development track, value-added

services to non-property owners were facing a great challenge from

the decreasing revenue contribution year by year.

m Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B2 5T N

In 2022, the Group implemented steady growth by adapting to
market changes in an active manner, embracing challenges and
overcoming difficulties, and adopting more quality-oriented approach
in extension. The Company continued to optimise its basic services,
and strategically carried out its value-added services, winning
increasing satisfaction from the property owners with more
dedication and in-depth services. The Company bore social
responsibility and paid tax in accordance with the law, and engaged
in charitable deeds, while ensuring the safety of property owners and

actively assuming social responsibility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2022, the Group won multiple industry awards, including “2022
China’s Top 500 Property Services Companies in Terms of
Comprehensive Strength (Top 30)" (20227 B ¥ 2 IR T 47 & & 1500
58TOP30), “2022 Top 100 Most Valuable Brands of China Property
Service Enterprises (Top 28)" (202270 Bl %) % AR %5 1 ¥ S M EE 100
98TOP28), “2022 Featured Brand of China Property Management
Service — Dual-driven Smart Services” (20227 Bl ¥ % iR 7% m I
{2 — EHREFHEZR) and 2022 China Property Management
Excellence Benchmark Project’ (2022FF Bl ¥ ¥ &I S MiZ/E2TE ),
by virtue of its stable and improving comprehensive strength,
professional service capability and brand innovation ability. Its
ranking of overall strength in the industry moved up 1 place to
No.18 as compared with 2021.

The business of the Group covers a variety of property types,
including residential properties and non-residential properties such as
commercial buildings, schools and public construction, and also
covers other specialised high-quality consulting services, resulting in
collaborated balanced development of residential and commercial
projects. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had provided property
management services and value-added services to 55 cities in China,
with 285 projects under management and contracted GFA of
approximately 54.83 million sg.m., which has increased by
approximately 4.24% as compared with 31 December 2021 and
including a total GFA under management of approximately 44.86
million sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 23.28% as
compared with 31 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, affected by unfavorable factors
including the overall downturn of the upstream real estate industry
and the resurgence of COVID-19, the Group achieved revenue of
RMB1,103.1 million, representing a decrease of 2.4% as compared
with that in 2021, and gross profit of RMB256.4 million, representing
a decrease of 20.0% as compared with that in 2021. Net profit
reached RMB93.9 million, representing a decrease of 32.2% as
compared with that in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Business Model

Upholding the layout strategy of “penetrating the Greater Jiangsu
Region, strengthening foothold in the Yangtze River Delta Region
and expanding into core cities (B AT & AR =/ - g
)" and surrounding the “customer-centered” service philosophy,
we continue to enhance the Redsun Mode and are committed to
providing owners with warm quality services across the whole
country. We provide a wide range of property management services
to property owners, residents and tenants, value-added services to
non-property owners, primarily property developers, and other
property management companies, and community value-added

services to residential property owners and residents.

1) Property management services: We provide property owners,
residents and tenants with a wide range of property
management services, including, among others, public order,
cleaning, greening, facility management, customer services and
repairs and maintenance services. Our portfolio of managed
properties comprises of residential, commercial and other
properties. In addition to residential properties, we are
expanding our service scopes for non-residential markets. Not
only do we provide property management services to a variety
of commercial properties, such as shopping malls, home
improvement and furnishings malls, hotels and theme parks,
but we also provide property management services to
properties such as office buildings, industrial parks and

schools.

2) Value-added services to non-property owners: We also provide
value-added services to non-property owners, including (i)
consulting services to other property management companies;
(i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services to
property developers for property development projects; (iii)
sales assistance services to property developers to assist with
their sales and marketing activities at property sales venues
and display units, including visitor reception, cleaning, security
inspection and maintenance; and (iv) other value-added

services to property developers, such as inspection services.

020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B2 Bz 515m A i

3) Community value-added services: We provide community 3)
value-added services to residential property owners and
residents to improve their living experiences with an aim to
preserve and increase the value of their properties. Our
community value-added services for residential properties
primarily include, among others, (i) property brokerage
services, (i) property decoration services, (iii) community
convenience services, (iv) common area value-added services
and (v) assets management services.

HERIBERYE : RFAREEDEZIREPE

A EIEERE  ANZHEETES

EHE

WEYERETE - EEVEOLRIEERS
FEBRROBEERN R * ()EFR - i)t
EERRE - (v)ABREBERS NV EE SR

7% -

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s total revenue T ZR &7 AN E B AR E B A K& 2021 4 [B] BRI R E 5 43
by business lines during the Reporting Period and the corresponding &5 HI A& U A BAAR -

period of 2021:

As at 31 December 2022
B £2022F12831H

As at 31 December 2021
HZ=2021F128318

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

'O ik WA {(=0=¢

(RMB’000) (%) (RMB'000) (%)

(AR®F ) (%) (AR®FT) (%)

Property management services ¥ 2% 12 iR 7% 834,730 75.7 753,590 66.6
Value-added services to X FREERE

non-property owners 124,612 11.3 180,289 16.0

Community value-added t & 1518 AR 75
services 143,780 13.0 196,095 174
Total wEt 1,103,122 100.0 1,129,974 100.0

ANERBEMARDLR - —B=FFRH



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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By types of developers:

The table below sets forth the Group's total revenue from property

management services, GFA under management and number of

projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period
of 2021:

As at 31 December 2022
BZ2022%128318

R RS

TERHBIAEBRRE A K221 F R EMEES R
HBRABE EEEEEMELRBEEHE

As at 31 December 2021
HZE2021412A318

Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue Projects  management Revenue Projects management
WA ERYE EEEEER A BEYE CEEEEHE
(RMB’000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) (000 sq.m.)
(AR®T ) (FEAK) (ARETF) (FEHK)
Redsun Properties Group” MG ESEY 373,720 100 16,435.1 320330 83 13,902.0
Third-party property E-TREHERER
developers 392,360 183 27,396.9 334,303 148 21,2077
Third party developers? E=FRERFC 319,141 141 21,406.7 301,035 125 18,0447
Joint ventures and P ESENSERE
associates of Redsun P YNGE
Properties Group® 73,219 42 5,990.2 33,268 23 3,163.0
Other associates of our G ERIEE i YN
Controlling Shareholders® 68,650 2 1,031.6 98,957 3 1,2829
Total Azt 834,730 285 44,863.6 753,590 234 36,3926
Notes: iz
(1) Includes projects solely developed by Redsun Properties Group Limited M PELGHEEEERAR (HRORERMT LM -
(the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: R SR 1 1996) REMB AR (ATE[AGhESE )
1996)) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Redsun Properties Group”) and BEMEMNIEE KoL E S B M E M EHER R
properties that Redsun Properties Group jointly developed with other HREIFEYE CAGHES B HZ S YT
property developers for which properties Redsun Properties Group ) o
holds a controlling interest.
2)  Includes properties developed by third-party property developers Q) PREBIRLGHESENFE=SFEMEMERME
independent from Redsun Properties Group. okz/E
(3)  Includes properties developed by property developers which are joint (B) PREAMLWGHESBENAPIEEFIEZNEELE
ventures and associates of Redsun Properties Group in which Redsun LB & NRIMEHEREMRAENYE -
Properties Group does not hold a controlling interest.
() Includes properties owned by Jiangsu Redsun Industrial Raw Materials @) PREERBRROBEANIHLAGIERERERA

City Co. Ltd. ("Redsun Materials City") together with its subsidiaries
and Nanjing Redsun Business World Co. Ltd. (“Redsun Business
World"), which are associates of our Controlling Shareholders. Redsun
Materials City is owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng Huansha, the founder
and Controlling Shareholder of the Group (“Mr. Zeng”). Redsun
Business World is held as to 100% by Hong Yang Group Company
Limited, which is owned as to 100% by Ms. Zeng Suging (& Z5), the
sister of Mr. Zeng.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B2 Bz 515m A i

By types of properties we manage: LREEYEELE S

The table below sets forth the Group's total revenue from property N3k &7 A= B R & HIR K& 2021 FE R B EE IR R
management services, GFA under management and number of  FFUABEE - FEEREAENEEHE -

projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period

of 2021:

We manage residential and non-residential properties. Our non-  HMEBEEFEMIFFEDE - RPINESEEEDE
residential properties under management include office buildings,  BIEWAKIE « BIENERE - #RETEWEWAD
malls and schools, etc. Although the revenue from residential  SREE(HIHERFIRARL KIS - B FIELE H1{E R
properties still accounts for a substantial proportion of our revenue,  KIREEEZ /L UWREHMERNNYE -

we endeavor to diversify our service offerings, so as to cover other

types of properties.

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
B ZF2022%12A31H HE021F12A318
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue Projects management Revenue Projects management
PN BHEE HEEZEER WA BEHE HEREEE
(RMB'000) ('000 sg.m.) (RMB'000)
(AR¥T ) (FEAHK) )
Residential = 526,493 208 35,864.0 434,681 162 28,706.0
Commercial [EES 212,137 26 3,763.4 236,796 31 4,759.6
Public construction AEERREM
and others 96,100 51 5,236.2 82113 41 29270
Total st 834,730 285 44,863.6 753,590 234 36,3926

UEBBEEERAT - B FEH @‘



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIBEvsimk N
By types of geographic presence: LRHIEDMHERE 5

The table below sets forth the Group's total revenue from property N3k &7 A= B R & HIR & 2021 F R B EE IR R
management services, GFA under management and number of ALK FEEREAENEEHE -

projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period

of 2021:

Since the inception of the Group, we have expanded our geographic ~ B ZAREBA LA » #Z=2022F 128318 » HMIA9H
presence from Nanjing to 55 cities in China as of 31 December 2022. B MEHE RIERZEH RS5EHT ©

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
BZ2022F12A31H HZ2021F12A318

Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue Projects management Revenue Projects management
KA HEYE EEEREER ON HEgE TCEREEE
(RMB’000) (000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) (000 sq.m)
(AR¥Tr) (FERFXK) (AREFT) (FERK)
Nanjing AR 349,277 100 14,502.1 370,831 93 13,0990
Jiangsu (excluding Nanjing) T4 (BrEa =5h) 169,410 58 9,934.3 149,494 52 89202
Shanghai iabic} 7473 2 808.1 7,532 1 207.1
Anhui ZH 81,369 40 7,654.1 67,493 30 60147
Shandong IEY 8,522 2 164.0 8451 2 2829
Hunan HE 15,991 8 1,226.2 12,385 4 6257
Hebei L 4,935 1 51.9 5,797 1 769
Henan A E 7,530 2 3125 4126 2 3169
Zhejiang g8 16,603 11 1,179.7 6,793 5 702.2
Hubei i 116,049 36 51733 88314 27 39872
Chongqing ES- 17,115 7 1,006.2 10,646 6 736.1
Jiangxi i 14,192 5 769.7 4628 3 3945
Guangdong EX 8,446 6 685.3 4433 2 3384
Sichuan m)l| 10,434 6 1,309.9 474 3 3165
Jilin R 5,950 — — 7,926 2 2830
Shaanxi i} 1,434 1 863 — 1 863
Total o 834,730 285 44,863.6 753,590 234 36,3926

‘m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB1,103.1 million, representing a decrease of 2.4% from RMB1,130.0
million for the corresponding period in 2021. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the Group's revenue from
providing value-added services to non-property owners and
community value-added services.

Property management services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from providing
property management services amounted to RMB834.7 million,
representing an increase of 10.8% from RMB753.6 million for the
corresponding period in 2021. This was mainly attributable to the
rapid increase in total GFA under management in line with the
Group’s business expansion.

Value-added services to non-property owners

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners amounted to RMB124.6 million,
representing a decrease of 30.9% from RMB180.3 million for the
corresponding period in 2021. The decrease in revenue from value-
added services to non-property owners was mainly attributable to
the decrease of sales venue projects served by the Group.

Community value-added services

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from community
value-added services amounted to RMB143.8 million, representing a
decrease of 26.7% from RMB196.1 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. During the Reporting Period, the decrease in revenue
from community value-added services was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from sales of parking spaces.

Cost of sales and services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales and services
amounted to RMB846.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.6% from RMB809.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. This was mainly attributable to the increase in sub-
contracting cost as a result of the expansion of operation scale.

B2 5T N

Bt %5 o R

A

RIERA - ZEEBHRABAREI0GIBEET
2021 FRIHWAARE1300E BT T FE24% ° T
BEEARNAEEBLIEXEFTAILERE R RIEE
AR 75 B W A BRAK P 3K ©

X EE R

RGN REEREMEETERBEISHRAAR
#8347B BT - B2021 FRBKRAARE 7536 B&E T
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A FE R R DN AT 2L -

EEFIBERE

R EBA  NEBRFEXEFLERBRAARE
1246 B&ETT - B2021 FREBAARKE1803BETT
P#309% ' FEEFRERBWANBR L EERAEE
RIS ZI5IE B IR D FTEL o

HEIEERE
AEEMTRIEERBERSHAREFRAARE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

Gross profit

As a result of the aforementioned key factors, the Group'’s gross profit
decreased by approximately 20.0% from RMB320.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB256.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The decrease was mainly attributable to a
decrease in revenue from providing value-added services to non-
property owners and community value-added services.

The Group's gross profit margin by business lines is set forth below:

ER

AR FEREZ  AEBENENHEBZE2021F12A
JTHIEFEMAREI204BE T NEA200%  B&
E2002F 12 A3 B EFEMARK 256488 - %
DEEHRR A EIEE T MG ERS KL EIEERS
B ABFTR D ©

AEBEZEXBREDOENRLT

For the year ended
31 December

HZ128318LLEE

2022 2021

2022 20214F

Property management services WMEEERE 22.2% 25.6%
Value-added services to non-property owners IEXEERERD 16.6% 20.4%
Community value-added services At [ 18 (B AR 75 35.0% 46.4%
Total #5 23.2% 28.4%

During the Reporting Period, the Group's gross profit margin was
23.2%, representing a decrease of 5.2 percentage points from 28.4%
for the corresponding period in 2021. This was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the gross profit margin of value-added services to
non-property owners and community value-added services.

The gross profit margin of property management services was 22.2%,
representing a decrease of 3.4 percentage points from 25.6% for the
corresponding period in 2021. The number of projects under
management by the Group continued to increase, and the gross
profit margin of the period decreased due to the large investment in
the costs of the new projects in the early stage of taking over.

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners was 16.6%, representing a decrease of 3.8 percentage points
from 20.4% for the corresponding period in 2021. This was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the gross profit margin of sales
assistance services provided to property developers due to the
impact of the real estate industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross profit margin of community value-added services was
35.0%, representing a decrease of 11.4 percentage points from 46.4%
for the corresponding period in 2021. This was mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue from sales of parking spaces, which was a
business with relatively higher gross profit margin, during the
Reporting Period.

Other income and other net income

During the Reporting Period, the Group'’s other income and other net
income amounted to RMB16.8 million, compared to RMB11.2 million
for the corresponding period in 2021, mainly attributable to the
increase in government grants received in the period.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s administrative expenses
amounted to RMB132.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 1.6% from RMB134.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. This was mainly attributable to the upgrade of
management system and reinforcement of cost control by the
Group.

Net impairment losses on financial assets

The Group's net impairment losses on financial assets primarily
included the impairment allowance for trade receivables and other
receivables in accordance with the accounting policy. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s net impairment losses on financial
assets amounted to RMB7.9 million, as compared to RMB2.9 million
for the corresponding period in 2021, which was mainly due to the
increased trade receivables as a result of the increase in business
scale.

Profit before income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group's profit before income tax
expense amounted to RMB127.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 31.6% from RMB186.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2021.

B2 5T N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

Income tax expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expense
amounted to RMB34.1
approximately 29.9% from RMB48.6 million for the corresponding

million, representing a decrease of

period in 2021, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit
before tax.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a solid financial position during the Reporting
Period. As at 31 December 2022, the current assets amounted to
RMB1,295.3 million, representing an increase as compared to
RMB975.5 million as at 31 December 2021. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB and amounted to
RMB545.3 million, representing a decrease of 21.8% from RMB697.6
million as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total equity amounted to
RMB890.2 million, representing an increase of 9.6% from RMB812.3
million as at 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to the
growth resulting from operating profit.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure on a
regular basis to maintain a balance between the relatively high
returns to the owners of the Group and possible high level of
borrowings and maintains the advantages and security of a sound
capital position. The Group also makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables primarily include receivables from
customers for property management services and community value-
added services. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's trade
receivables amounted to RMB191.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately 56.3% from RMB122.2 million as at 31 December
2021, which was mainly due to increase in the number of projects
under management by the Group and the lower overall collection

rate of newly taken-over projects.

028 Y
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets
primarily consist of prepayments on behalf of customers to utility
suppliers, consideration receivables from disposal of subsidiaries,
other deposits, amounts due from third parties and other tax
recoverable. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables amounted to RMB110.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 97.1% from RMB55.9
million as at 31 December 2021, primarily due to the increase of
RMB30.18 million in consideration receivables resulting from the
disposals of Gaoli Property and Jiangsu Gaoli Meijia Property and the
increase in prepayments on behalf of customers to utility suppliers
resulting from the increase in the number of projects under

management.

Trade payables

The Group’s trade payables mainly comprise amounts due to
subcontractors of property management services. As at 31
December 2022, the Group's trade payables amounted to RMB151.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 101.6% from
RMB75.0 million as at 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to
the increase in the number of projects under management by the
Group, resulting in an expansion of the corresponding outsourcing
scale, and the increased credit periods of suppliers.

Contract liabilities

The Group’s contract liabilities mainly represent the advance
payments made by customers while our underlying services are yet
to be provided. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's contract
liabilities amounted to RMB227.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 25.7% from RMB180.9 million as at 31 December
2021, which was mainly due to the continuous growth in the
number of property projects under management as a result of the
Group's business expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

Other payables and accruals

The Group's other payables and accruals primarily comprise payroll
and welfare payable to our employees, receipts on behalf of
community residents for utilities, business tax and surcharges, and
other payables. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s other payables
and accruals amounted to RMB179.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 10.3% from RMB200.0 million as at 31 December
2021, which was mainly due to the adoption of a series of cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement measures as well as
continuous improvement in management efficiency per capita by the

Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

December 2022, the Group did not have material

OUTLOOK

In 2023, under the guidance of national policies, the property
management industry will focus on long-term development and
customer value, while the progress towards standardization, high
quality standards and market orientation will be accelerated.

In 2023, it is expected that the scale of the property management
industry will continue to expand, but the overall growth rate will be
significantly slower than the corresponding period in 2022.
Considering factors such as the decline in the volume of newly
completed property projects and the decrease in the volume of
mergers and acquisitions, the industry is changing from expanding its
scale to pursuing quality growth. Faced with such change, the
property management industry may focus on three dimensions,
namely, improving service quality, building up profitability of single
projects and enhancing brand value, to enhance quality and efficacy
while achieving scale growth.

Adhering to the original vision of ‘making lives warmer (B4E)EE B
JBE)" and based on the principle of integrity, we will continue to
focus on quality and prioritize innovation to drive development.
Leveraging the three dimensions, namely, service power, operation
power and innovative power, we strive to achieve a stable growth
with high quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Customer Values, Service Oriented:

In order to continuously enhance customers’ satisfaction and loyalty
in our major business scope, the Group will continue to adhere to
the “customer-centered” service philosophy and further optimize the
service standard and quality control system throughout the entire
product lifecycle. Through the hierarchical service of different types
of projects, we are setting standards tailored to local conditions. With
four products series, namely “Hong Hui (SABE)" “Hong Yue (GA1%)",
"Hong Xiang (34 =)" and “Hong Hui (3LFE)", we will further upgrade
scenario-based services for the community and optimize living

experience.

For non-residential properties, the Group will give full play to the
success of benchmark projects based on customer demands to speed
up the market-oriented expansion of non-residential properties. For
urban services, the Group will leverage the cooperated street and
town service mode to continuously improve the service quality and
brand influence of its urban services and build regional economies of
scale, and will continue to build up core competitiveness of its urban
service products and enhance its capability in basic social
governance, so as to achieve improvement in reputation among
customers and service quality.

Focused Development, Profit Oriented:

The Group will continue to focus on the Greater Jiangsu Region and
core cities where it has already established a foothold, in order to
promote a steady development of the non-residential markets and
further optimize the market structure and management density. We
will pay more attention to quality of investments and put emphasis
on realization of investment profits. At the same time, we will focus
on the track of urban services in core cities and push ahead with
marketization. Through ways such as tendering and bidding and
strategic cooperation, we seek to expand into third-party projects
through multiple channels and to actively expand the second track in
non-residential markets.

In terms of market expansion, the Company will take Jiangsu as the
core development region. We will form a concentrated development
strategy with the core area accounting for more than 65% to
complement with Hubei and Anhui as the strategic development
region, and pick a suitable timing to develop the South China

market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

Lean Operation, Quality Improvement and Efficacy
Enhancement:

We will realize intensive management in regions with focused
development, achieve common growth with suppliers with
enhancement in bargaining power in the supply chain and attain
effective improvement in area efficiency of community resources

with digital stock-taking of revenue points.

By actively improving services, enhancing the profitability of single
projects and enhancing the operation efficiency, we will return to the
service essence of the industry and solidify our basic quality to
provide warmer services and gain trust from customers. Through new
technologies, new techniques and new management models, we will
further reduce our energy consumption and achieve replacement of
manual management by intelligent management, improvement in
operation efficiency by mechanization and enhancement in
management efficiency by internet technology.

Value-added Services, Connection and Integration:

Through the market-oriented operation of community resources, we
will expand the asset-light operation model to realize self-operation
of venue leasing and advertising businesses, and provide space
operation services to improve operational capabilities of asset
deleveraging, asset leasing and ancillary facility operating, so as to
further build a community value-added service chain to satisfy the
diversified and multi-level living needs of residents.

We will further connect and integrate superior resources to
strengthen customer loyalty to frequent-use services and products
with rigid demand such as community e-commerce and home
decoration. We will further expand the width of our services scope
based on the relevance of customer demands. With integration of
the “membership” system among real estate, commercial and
property, the Group will explore its high-net-worth customers to
further deepen its services and form growth momentum to realize

whole chain and full cycle customer value-added services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Layout in Elderly Care and Medical Care Industry:

Based on the policies on elderly care industry set forth in the
Government Work Report for 2023, the Group plans to establish
foothold in community and home elderly care service industry by
taking advantage of its customer density and the viscosity of
property owners in Jiangsu Province and incorporating the strategic
C[EMA) in

the past two years. We will build “elderly care centers” together with

plan of “Charming Street, Living in Beauty” (¥ 173

communities and based on the industry characteristics of being
labor-intensive of property management enterprises and by liaising
with civil affairs and health institutions, etc., form a new model of
community elderly care featured by mutual help, so that medical
insurance can benefit “elderly care centers” in communities. We will
develop standardized service product lines to cater to customers
with different elderly care needs. In addition to actively responding
to the government’s call and participating in people’s livelihood
projects, we will also seek new profit growth points for the
enterprise.

Data and Information Security, System Improvement:

The Group has previously developed a number of digital information
systems, including the “Hongtu panoramic smart data platform (A[El
228 EBHIEFE) "management and control platform of all-
2HEEFBIEIEFA) and in 2023, the Group will

further improve its digital efficiency and analysis efficiency. By

dimensional plan (&

establishing a “whole-chain business integration platform (& 8 % 3
EELE FA), the Group will attain improvement in quality of
business and financial data through the “full-cycle management and
control platform of property (¥ 2 A EEFEE K)” and achieve
presentation and monitoring of real-time operating data to rectify
operating deviations in a timely manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

Organized Development, Strategic Guidance:

Strategy is the guideline for the development of an enterprise. In
order to match with the strategic direction, the organizational
structure is selectively integrated or split. Adhering to a flat
organizational structure, we will strengthen the talent deployment
concept of “advancement of headquarters, enhancement of
companies, and optimization of projects”. By enhancing the
complexity of division of labor and nurturing three major key talents,
namely, "Hong Elite”, “Redsun Housekeeper” and “Hong Master’, we
use innovation to bring vitality and safeguard our competitiveness.

Cultural Protection, Health and Benevolence:

Adhering to the core values of “professionalism and building
credibility for the long term”, we will reinforce our principle of being
talent-, fighter- and contributor-oriented and uphold our ideals of
health, hard work, practicality, vitality, affinity, coordination and
facing problems. As our corporate culture continues to permeate, we
will clarify and reach a consensus on the currently out-of-focus
concepts/behaviors/working principles to reach a consensus among
employees.

In 2023, despite the uncertainties that the property management
industry may face, there will be a bright future in general. With its
continuously enhancing service power, operation power and
innovative power, the Group will work hard to rise to the challenges
and try its best endeavours to become a venerable good life
operator.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE/OTHER INFORMATION

Material Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

On 25 July 2022, Hong Life Property Services Management Co.,
Ltd. ("Hong Life Property Management’, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), Gaoli Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Gaoli Holdings”) and Nanjing Gaoli Property
Management Co., Ltd. ("Gaoli Property”) and Jiangsu Gaoli
Meijia Property Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Gaoli Meijia") entered into
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Gaoli
Holdings agreed to acquire, and Hong Life Property
Management agreed to dispose of, 80% of the equity interest
in each of Gaoli Property and Jiangsu Gaoli Meijia for a
consideration of RMB73,536,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25
July 2022 for further details.

Save as the aforementioned, there was no other material
investment, acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures by the Group during the Reporting Period.

Employment and Remuneration Policies

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,446 employees in
total, of which 2,796 employees were engaged in property
management and related services for residential properties,
328 employees were engaged in property management and
related services for commercial properties and 322 employees
were engaged in property management and related services

for public construction properties.

The emolument of the employees of the Group is mainly
determined based on their duties, performance and the
prevailing market level in the respective regions. The Group
has formulated a systematic and market-competitive employee
incentive plan and a comprehensive talent cultivation scheme
based on its business to attract and retain talents through
offering competitive salary packages, comprehensive talent
training strategies, internal promotion system and a caring

corporate culture.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIZ B2 i

In addition, focusing on the entire process of talent cultivation
and development, the Group has also formulated the
systematic “five-talent scheme”, for enhancing the quality of
talents and broadening its pool of talents. The Group has
designed the “leadership scheme”, “brigadier scheme”, "new
manager”, “excellent manager” and “management trainee
programme” for the key talents, as well as established “service
capability nurturing center” to cultivate “Hong Elite”, "Redsun
Housekeeper” and “Hong Master” for enhancing capabilities of
the Company's customer services, in which systematic
arrangements are implemented to provide the employees of
the Group with clear development path and secure the
demand for talents in different business segments and levels.

The Group believes that talent cultivation scheme of the
Group will enhance team building, improve team capability,
and provide talent pipelines for the business development of
the Group.

Use of Net Proceeds Raised from Initial Public Offering
and Over-allotment Option

The net proceeds from initial public offering amounted to
approximately HK$398 million. On 27 July 2020, the Company
also received net proceeds of HK$62.1 million from the full

exercise of over-allotment option.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B2 5T N

The table below sets out the details of actual usage of the net TRETIFAERIBFENR202F12A3BHE
proceeds as at 31 December 2022: BRABEFE -

Net Proceeds (HK$ million)

FERERE(EEER)
Remaining
balance expected

Percentage Available Used Used Unused to be fully used by
BHEHEA
BOL AEA EBA 28R ABA BRTERNERE

From the  For the twelve

Listing Date months
Net proceeds and up to ended As at
from the 31 December 31 December 31 December
Listing 2022 2022 2022

BETEE  BE00EF

BZ220026 1283181

124318 T=f@A

Selective strategic ERMHERRE RN
investment and RE-FRAMEERE
acquisition and further EBHRE
expansion of property End of Year 2023
management business 40% 184 154 — 30 R203FEA
R&D and upgrade of BERAFOWRE RAR End of Year 2023
intelligent system 30% 138 90 55 48 R0BFER
Improvement of service RBERRA End of Year 2023
quality 10% 46 4 14 4 ROBEFER
Recruitment of talents and BEAT RBEEIEY
improvement of MEIRAE
employee training and End of Year 2023
employee benefit system 10% 46 38 8 8 ROBEFEH
Working capital and general ~ #EE & R—RARAE
corporate purposes 10% 46 46 7 —
Total At 100% 460 370 84 %0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB zstmNk DT
4.  Events after the Reporting Period

7 038}

The Group had no material events after the Reporting Period.

Annual Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Group nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the Reporting Period.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority of
transactions were denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
will continue to monitor foreign exchange activities and
safeguard the cash value of the Group with its best efforts.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and enhance the corporate
value as well as the responsibility commitments. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”) as its corporate governance standards and, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code during the Reporting Period.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to procure the
Company to continue to comply with the CG Code.

Annual General Meeting

An annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting")
has been scheduled to be convened at 10:00 a.m. on 20 June
2023.
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10.

11.

12.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the rights to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 15 June 2023 to
Tuesday, 20 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer
documents of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the branch share
registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 14 June 2023.

Floor, Hopewell Centre,

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for

dealing in securities in the Company by the Directors.

The Directors have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting
Period.

Review of Annual Results by the Audit Committee

The Board has established its audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of
the Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group, oversee the audit
process, provide advice and comments to the Board, perform
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the
Board.

10.

11.

12.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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13.

040}

The audit committee consists of four members, including three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Xianbo,
Ms. Wang Fen and Mr. Li Xiaohang; and one non-executive
Director, Mr. Zeng Junkai. The audit committee is chaired by
Mr. Zhao Xianbo, an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional accounting and related

financial management expertise.

Our audit committee has reviewed the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 and confirmed that it has complied with all
applicable accounting principles, standards and requirements,
and made sufficient disclosures. Our audit committee has also

discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes thereto for
the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in this annual
report have been agreed by the Company’s auditor, Ernst &
Young, to the amounts set out in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst
& Young in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements or
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
consequently, no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &

Young on this annual report.

Publication of Annual Results and Annual Report on the
Websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

This annual report is published on the websites of the Stock

Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.rsunservice.hk). The annual report of the Company will
be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company by the end
of April 2023, and published on the above websites in due

course.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZENG Junkai (g % 8l), aged 29, has served as the chairman of
the Board, a non-executive Director, an Authorized representative,
the chairman of the Nomination committee and a member of the
Audit committee of the Group since 23 December 2021. He has
been an executive director and a vice president of Redsun Properties
Group Limited (“Redsun Properties’, together with its subsidiaries,
the "Redsun Properties Group”’), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 1996), since February
2021, and the general manager of the Nanjing regional companies
(F B 13 A R] 4248 32) of the Redsun Properties Group since
January 2021. He served as the general manager of the Chengdu
regional companies (B &R 1A RIABASEE) of the Redsun Properties
Group from October 2018 to January 2021 and the assistant
president of Hong Yang Group Company Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, from May 2016 to October 2018.

Mr. Zeng Junkai graduated from Wharton School of Business,
University of Pennsylvania in the United States of America and
obtained a bachelor degree in Economics (majoring in Finance) in
May 2016. Mr. Zeng Junkai is a youth committee member of China
Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs Association, an executive committee
member of Federation of Industry and Commerce of Jiangsu
Province and the executive vice president of Jiangsu Young
Entrepreneurs Federation. Mr. Zeng Junkai is the son of Mr. Zeng
Huansha, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and the brother
of Ms. Zeng Zixi, an executive Director and the daughter of Mr. Zeng
Huansha.

SSEkSRERR

FHITES

BEEIEE 205 B2021F 12 A HEEEIAER
EEEIR FPTEF BERKRK REEZEY

EREZEEERE 20212 —HEELS
ESEERAR([ABHE]  —RREBBHERS
FrIBRAT LM AT (BRMHRSE : 199) - ERFREHT
BAR #EGAEHEEE)ORNTESTRIR
#H-UARB021F1 AREFLGHESER R RS
N AHBASTR - 201810 A 2202151 AT LS
EEBKERE A FARLLIE - W 201655 A E2018
FI0RABEARR LR FLSEB AR A A E)E
HBmE -

BRI EENR06FSARERERES EZRERE
RIS - BSKBESET 20 (XBEm) - BE&
SEEATHERRECENEETFLE  JIHET
AMAERIHESTFEERBASEBIIER -
BHEERBRRAREBRBREG D RENT T KH
TEEREMDPTENLZRE FRLZTMHMSE -

SAEREEMERAT - —B-—F 5K



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZENG Zixi (& T ER), whose former name was Zeng Cheng (&
#£), aged 30, was appointed as our executive Director on March 16,
2020 and our vice president since October 31, 2018. She had been
our assistant president from March 2017 to October 2018 and the
vice general manager of our operational management department
when she joined our Group in September 2016, and remained in
position until March 2017. Ms. Zeng Zixi is primarily responsible for
the operational management of our Group. From July 2016 to
September 2016, Ms. Zeng Zixi was the general manager of Nanjing
Hong Yang Plaza (F8 R 5AP% &%) business operation department of
Nanjing Hong Yang Business Management Co., Ltd. (F 5 oA RS i 2
BEIEBFR A F], a company that is controlled by Mr. Zeng Huansha,
the ultimate Controlling Shareholder, and was mainly responsible for
the operational management of the project Nanjing Hong Yang
Plaza. She has approximately four years of experience in property
management services. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zeng Zixi
worked as an analyst in ABC International Holdings Limited from July
2015 to June 2016, where she was mainly responsible for assisting in

securities trading clearing and accounts maintenance.

Ms. Zeng Zixi graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEI AR
K& in the PRC in July 2015, where she obtained a bachelor
degree in journalism. Ms. Zeng Zixi is the daughter of Mr. Zeng
Huansha, who is our ultimate Controlling Shareholder and the sister

of Mr. Zeng Junkai, a non-executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WANG Fen (£ %), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 12, 2020. She is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Ms. Wang Fen was the independent
Director of Guirenniao Co., Ltd. (EABRMD AR A E]) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange stock code: 603555) from May 2017 to December
2020. She was an assistant professor of the School of Management
and Economics of Beijing Institute of Technology (1t 72 T K£2)
since July 2001. She was also the human resources director and
principal of Haidilao University of Sichuan Haidilao Catering
Corporation Ltd. (FU)II/BE#BZ KD B R A7) from November
2007 to December 2012, where she was mainly responsible for the
planning of human resources development and the operational
management of Haidilao University. Ms. Wang Fen has been the
management consultant of various companies since 2013, including
Beijing Jiangnan Green Tea Catering Co., Ltd. JE FUT AN ERE
PR A &), Jingruan Beauty Management Co,, Ltd. (B3 BERE R HFIR
A |]) and Beijing Hongying Times Educational Technology Co., Ltd
GERABRHRHEBEBR AT She has many years of
experience in experience in business management.

Ms. Wang Fen obtained a bachelor degree in management
engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in the PRC in July
1988. She later obtained a master degree in management
engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/83238 K E) in
the PRC in March 1995, and a doctor degree in management science
and engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in the PRC in
July 2005.
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Mr. LI Xiaohang (ZER), aged 51, has served as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the nomination committee,
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Board
of the Group respectively since 2 August 2021. He has over 22 years
of working experience in engineering, town planning and city
management. Mr. Li is a registered urban planner and a senior
engineer for urban planning. He holds a master degree in
engineering from University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China. Mr. Li has served as the chairman of the board of directors of
Liaoning Shenhua Holdings Co. Ltd. (formerly known as Shanghai
Shenhua Holdings Co., Ltd,, “Shenhua Holdings"), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “SSE") (stock code: 600653)
from November 2019 to June 2021 and as the secretary of the party
committee of Shenhua Holdings from October 2019 to June 2021.
He has served as the secretary of the party committee and the
chairman of the board of directors of Zhongxing Shenyang
Commercial Building Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000715) from August 2014 to
January 2018. In addition, Mr. Li has served in various government
units, including the Shenyang Planning and Land Resources Bureau,
the committee of Liaozhong district, Shenyang (&[5 M & & &)
and the district committee of Shenyang Dongling District (Hunnan
New District), and has extensive experience in management in

government bodies.

Mr. ZHAO Xianbo (3 K), aged 42, has served as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Group respectively since 23 December 2021. Mr.
Zhao is a member of each of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA), the Institute of Public Accountants (IPA),
Australia, and the Institute of Financial Accountants (IFA), the United
Kingdom. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Qingdao
University in Shandong, China. Mr. Zhao has been a partner of
ShingWing LLP since November 2019.

Mr. Zhao has also worked at other accounting firms including Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants LLP, Grant Thornton LLP and PanChina
Certified Public Accountants LLP. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Tongling Automotive Technologies, Inc.
(Tongling Technologies) since August 2022. Mr. Zhao has
approximately 20 years of working experience in the industry of
finance and auditing and possesses extensive experience in finance

and auditing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yichun (PR 2 #f), aged 45, has served as the Vice
President of the Group (presiding over the work) since September
2022. Joining Hong Yang Group Company Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Group, in May 2019, Mr. Chen successively served
as the general manager of the customer relations department of
Redsun Properties Group Limited and the general manager of the
customer relations department of Hong Yang Group Company
Limited, and has been the chief operating officer of the Group since
June 2022. Prior to joining Hong Yang Group Company Limited, Mr.
Chen successively worked at China Vanke Co,, Ltd., a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000002), CIFI Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd,, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 00884) and Jiangsu Zhongnan
Construction Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000961), and engaged in property
management, customer relations management, project management,

large-scale operation management and regional management.

Mr. Chen graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University
majoring in civil engineering, and is a national-registered first-class

constructor.

Ms. ZENG Zixi (& FBR), whose former name was Zeng Cheng (&
#£), aged 30, was appointed as our executive Director on March 16,
2020 and vice president in October 2018. Please refer to the
subsection headed “Board of Directors” above for details of her
biography.
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Mr. CHENG Jian (BX#2), aged 44, has been our vice president since
July 2019. He is primarily responsible for the business expansion of
our Group. He is currently an executive director of a number of our
subsidiaries including Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management and
Nanjing Hong Life Property Management. He was the assistant
president and general manager of Nanjing Hong Yang Property
Management, from August 2016 to July 2019, during which he was
mainly responsible for the implementation of strategies and the
overall budget management of our Group. From September 2014 to
August 2016, Mr. Cheng Jian served as our vice general manager and
was mainly responsible for the annual operational and budget
planning. He was the vice general manager of the management
office of Wuxi Suyuan Tanxiwan Property Co,, Ltd. (£& 5 &R 18 )% /&
BEFBMR A7), a subsidiary of Nanjing Redsun, from July 2011 to
September 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for the
overall operational management and the annual operational and

budget planning.

Prior to joining Nanjing Redsun, he also served as a vice general
manager and project manager of Nanjing City Yincheng Property
Services Co,, Ltd. (R R RN Y ZE R HE R A 7)) from April 2003 to
October 2010, an assistant to the manager at Pengji Property Jinshan
Mansion (§E ¥ % £ 1L KJE) of Shenzhen Pengji Property
Management Co, Ltd. CRIIBEE D EE IR B A F]) from January
2002 to March 2003, and an administrative assistant at Nanjing
Yadong Xianhe Villa (F8 28 R IUESILFE) of Nanjing Ya Dong
Property Management from 2000 to 2001. He has over 19 years of

experience in the property management industry.

Mr. Cheng Jian received a certificate for the completion of the
Yincheng Property Senior Manager EMBA course (SR 3k b 2 &= A 48
BT EERBE LT (EMBA) ##72) at Nanjing University (F§ R AZ2) in
April 2009. He was qualified as a National Property Management
Enterprise Manager (&2 Bl 2 & 2 (b ¥ 4 18) by the Human
Resources and Education Department of the Ministry of Urban-Rural
Development (&% AZ#(E 7)) and the Housing and Real Estate
Department of the Ministry of Urban-Rural Development (&% 35 {E
£ HLFS #b E % 7) of the PRC in June 2002.
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Mr. Hu Chunhuang (#& &), aged 40, joined the Group in August
2022 as the Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Hu joined Hong Yang Group
Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Group, in April
2019, and successively served as the head of financial operation
function at the finance and capital center, the general manager of
financial operation and management at the strategic operation
center, as well as the general manager of the finance management
department at the commercial group. Prior to joining Hong Yang
Group Company Limited, Mr. Hu successively held office and
engaged in financial and fund management in Yango Group (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000671), Wanda Commercial Properties Company Limited and Jingrui
Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 01862).

Mr. Hu holds a bachelor's degree in management from Fuzhou
University, a master's degree in accounting (MPAcc) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and Shanghai National
Accounting Institute, he is also an associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United
Kingdom (ACMA) and a Chartered Global Management Accountant
(CGMA).

Mr. LIU Kesheng (2|5 ), aged 46, has been our general manager
of the business development department since July 15, 2019. He is
primarily responsible for the business development of our Group. He
was the vice general manager of our Sunan branch from January
2019 to July 2019 and the person in charge of the general
management office of our Changzhou branch from August 2018 to
January 2019, during which he was mainly responsible for our
operational management. He was also the project manager of our
Jiangbei branch from May 2015 to August 2018, during which he was
responsible for the management of several projects including Solaris
Institution (JB B 22 ), Great Time at Joy Peak East District (15 I& ¥
JE ), Great Time at Joy Peak West District (157 I£ 85 ¢ B 7 @)
and Swallow River Residence (B Yt B fE&). He has over 17 years of

experience in the property management industry.

Mr. Liu Kesheng graduated from the Southwest University (785 A
2 in the PRC in July 2019, majoring in administrative management.
He also obtained the Nanjing Property Management Practitioner
Certificate (FARMYWEBEHEAERE) from the Nanjing Real
Estate Education Training Centre (B REMEHF HFIIF L) in May
2018.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Yonggang (Z=7k M), was appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company on 25 March 2021.

Mr. Li, aged 46, has been the head of listing office of Hong Yang
Group Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since September 2016. He is primarily responsible for the

securities affairs and compliance matters of the Group.

Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in the corporate governance
and company secretarial field. Before joining the Company, from
2000 to 2008, he served as a financial staff of Anhui BBCA
Biochemical Co., Ltd., LTD (now renamed as COFCO Biochemical
(Anhui) Co,, Ltd., SZ000930) and Anhui Fengyuan Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (52000153), and served as a chief financial officer of BBCA France
SAS and BBCA Belgium NV, the deputy head of financial department
and investment development department of Anhui Fengyuan Group
Co., Limited. From 2008 to 2011, he served as secretary to the Board
and chief financial officer of Anhui Tiger Biotechnology Co., Ltd. From
2011 to 2016, he served as the deputy general manager and
secretary to the Board of Taifu Industrial Co., Ltd. (now renamed as
Shandong Geo-Mineral Co., Ltd., SZ000409). Since April 2019, he has
been appointed as a joint company secretary of Redsun Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1996.HK).

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor degree of economics from Henan
University of Technology in June 2000, a master degree of
management from Anhui University of Finance and Economics in
June 2013 and an undergraduate diploma in law from Nanjing
University in July 2020. Mr. Li was awarded the qualification of Middle
Grade Accountant by the Personnel Department in Anhui Province in
May 2009, and he was awarded the qualification of Middle Grade
Economist by the Human Resources and Social Security Department

in Shandong Province in November 2014,

With extensive working experience, Mr. Li is familiar with the PRC

laws, company secretarial and compliance matters of the Company.
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Ms. Yim Lai Kiu (F3EE#8)

Ms. Yim, was appointed as the joint company secretary, authorised
representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules
and process agent of the Company in Hong Kong for the purpose of
accepting service of process and notices on its behalf in Hong Kong
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and Rule 19.05(2) of the Listing rules on 1 September
2022. She currently serves as a Corporate Secretarial Executive of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and has over
four years of experience in listed corporate secretarial field. Ms. Yim
obtained a bachelor's degree in management from Sun Yat-Sen
University, China, a master's degree in professional accounting and
corporate governance from the City University of Hong Kong; and
she is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EFEHRSE

The Board presents the directors’ report for the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Cayman Companies Law, as an exempted company with limited
liability on 12 December 2019. The shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) were listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 July 2020 (the
"Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a well-recognized comprehensive community service
provider in Jiangsu province, China, with strong and balanced
property management abilities in the management of residential and
commercial properties. Through the Group's continued development
over the years, it has established its regional leading position in the
property management market of Jiangsu province and are
well-recognized nationwide. The Group provides a wide range of
property management services to property owners, residents and
tenants. It also provides value-added services to non-property
owners, primarily property developers and other property
management companies and community value-added services to
residential property owners and residents.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year
ended 31 December 2022. As at the date of this annual report, the
Board has no intention to significantly change the principal business
of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of
the Group in this annual report.

7 050 Y
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Outlook”. An analysis of the Group's performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis". Save as disclosed in
the section headed "Directors’ Report — Subsequent Events After
The Reporting Period” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Management Discussion
and Analysis — Material Acquisitions and Disposals” in this annual
report, during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity in this annual report. As at 31 December 2022,
the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB336.7 million.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

KO

HASBFANEB OB ARERREGERD
AmEN BB mEIN — RRRE] —F £
AEEMBERABFHAREFANREMENDOMN

HNEEENWEST] —& - RAFRIEFTSW
E— BERRNRERMT ] —HAREEN  ARE

REZE202F 1283 BIEMBFEREE AN TR HE
Bl EEREHEAE -

EXNBREESER

BRAARFRIEBENRESNT — EANERLES
H]—EMEEEN  REZE202F12831HIEFE
ERFHRAE  RNEBREERIABMKELQF REE
NAMBEBRBBEREE -

M- BMERRE

REBEZ202F12A3BIEFENDE - BENK
BEHFBIRAFRANAEB LGS P EREM T
13

(EA]

REBEZ202F12A3BIEFENKEEZEFES
RAFRANGEEREEER - K2022%F128318
AARWAIED REENABAREB7TAE T -

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

The table below sets forth the types of our major customers for each
of our three business lines.

BRE
BEESTEZRER202F12 8318 IEFEIRMA R
Hﬁl%\ °©

FEEFRMHER

FERF
TRV BRM=ZHGEBREENTIEEFLHE -

Business line Major customers EF:3 FTEEF

Property Property owners, residents and tenants, YEEE R ¥ FRPLKHEP -EEXZEEB
management property owners’ associations and property ehkEMERER

services developers

Value-added services Property developers and other property FEHEEIBERE EHERERREMMESE
to non-property management companies NC]

owners

Community value- Property owners and residents R E R XEXREP

added services

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue derived from sales to
our five largest customers accounted for approximately 21.2% of the
total revenue of the Group and revenue derived from sales of the
Group to the single largest customer accounted for approximately
11.7% of the total revenue of the Group during the same period.

All of our five largest customers of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were connected persons of the Group. Among
others, Redsun Materials City Group is an associate of the Controlling
Shareholders. Redsun Materials City is owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng
Huansha, a Controlling Shareholder. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
unless otherwise disclosed in this annual report, none of our
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders which, to the
knowledge of our Directors, owns more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Major Suppliers

The table below sets forth the types of our major suppliers for each
of our three business lines.
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TEHED
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Business line Major suppliers EF3 FTEHER

Property Sub-contractors providing security, cleaning, Y2 E IR R RHZR -BE HER
management greening and gardening, and repair and 2. RBERRERBNS
services maintenance services B

Value-added services  Sub-contractors providing cleaning, greening

to non-property and gardening, and repair and maintenance
owners services
Community value- Vendors providing resident services

added services

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the five largest suppliers of
the Group, which are all independent third parties, accounted for
approximately 15.5% of the total purchases of the Group; and
purchases from our single largest supplier accounted for
approximately 3.9% of the total purchases of the Group during the
same period.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company, had any interest in any of the five largest suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing
long-term relationships with stakeholders. The Company places
significant emphasis on human capital and strives to foster an
environment in which the employee can develop their full potential
and to assist their personal and professional growth. The Company
provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting diversity to its staff,
providing competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment
in their positions. The Company understands that it is important to
maintain good relationship with customers. The Group has
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints
and customer satisfaction surveys in order to ensure customers’
complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner. The Group
is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies of materials.
The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers and
contractors by recurring communication in proactive and effective

manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has 415,000,000
Shares in issue.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zeng Junkai (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guang (resigned on 23 September 2022)
Ms. Zeng Zixi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wang Fen
Mr. Li Xiaohang
Mr. Zhao Xianbo

Directors’ Service Contracts

Ms. Zeng Zixi, as executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Zeng Junkai, as the non-executive Director, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 23 December 2021.

Each of Ms. Wang Fen, Mr. Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao Xianbo as the
independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 12 June 2020, 2 August 2021 and 23 December
2021, respectively.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are

considered to be independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the controlling shareholders of the
Group or the Directors was engaged or had interest in any business,
apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business, which
would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

Deed of Non-Competition

The Group's controlling shareholders, namely, Mr. Zeng Huansha,
Hong Yang Group (Holdings), Hong Yang International Limited
("Hong Yang International’), Hong Yang Group Company Limited
("Hong Yang Group Company’) and Redsun Services Group
(Holdings) Limited ("Redsun Services Group (Holdings)") (together,
the “Covenantors’) entered into a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favor of the Company for ourselves
and as trustee for the benefit of each of our subsidiaries on 16 June
2020, pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has, among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken, jointly and
severally, with the Company that, each of the Covenantors shall not,
and shall procure that his/its close associates (other than members of
our Group) will not, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage in, invest
in, participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to,
provide any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or
interested in, whether alone or jointly with another person and
whether directly or indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in
concert with any other person, any business or investment activities
in the PRC and Hong Kong which are the same as, similar to or in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Restricted Business”).
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The Deed of Non-Competition shall expire on the earlier of (i) the
date when the Covenantors and, as the case may be, any of their
close associates, cease to hold, or otherwise be interested in,
beneficially in aggregate whether directly or indirectly, 30% or more
(or such other percentage of shareholding as stipulated in the Listing
Rules to constitute a controlling shareholder) of the issued share
capital of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Shares cease to
be listed on the Stock Exchange (except for temporary suspension of
the trading of the shares).

Annual Review

The Covenantors have confirmed that they did not refer, or to
procure the referral of, any investment or commercial opportunities
relating to the Restricted Business to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
Covenantors in respect of the compliance by them and their close
associates with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the Covenantors and their
close associates have complied with the terms of the Deed of
Non-Competition, and were satisfied that each of the Covenantors
has complied with its/his undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of the

Company’'s continuing connected transactions for the year ended

31 December 2022 are as follows:

7 058 Y

Provision of Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency
Services to Redsun Properties and its Associates

On 11 March 2020, Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group’), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a parking space sales
and leasing agency services framework agreement with Redsun
Properties, pursuant to which we agreed to provide sales and
leasing agency services to Redsun Properties and its associates
in respect of the unsold parking spaces of Redsun Properties
and its associates (the "Existing Parking Space Sales and
Leasing Agency Services Framework Agreement’). The
Existing Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency Services
Framework Agreement took effect on 11 March 2020 and
would be valid until 31 December, 2022, renewable by mutual

agreement of the parties.

Subsequently, on 8 December 2022, the Company entered into
a parking space sales and leasing agency services framework
agreement with Redsun Properties on substantially the same
terms and conditions as the Existing Parking Space Sales and
Leasing Agency Services Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which we agreed to provide sales and leasing agency services
to Redsun Properties and its associates in respect of the
unsold parking spaces of Redsun Properties and its associates
(the "Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency Services
Framework Agreement’). The Parking Space Sales and
Leasing Agency Services Framework Agreement took effect on
1 January 2023 and will be valid until 31 December 2025,
renewable by mutual agreement of the parties.
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Pricing policy

The agency fees for the provision of sales and leasing agency
services in respect of unsold parking spaces shall be calculated
based on the following:

Sales/leasing agency fee = contract prices of the sales/leasing
of the subject parking spaces x agreed rate of agency fee

The contract prices of the sales/leasing of the subject parking
spaces shall be determined with reference to the prevailing
market price charged by other independent third party
services providers to Redsun Properties and its associates in
respect of comparable locations. The rate of the sales/leasing
agency fee in respect of the parking spaces of each specific
project is subject to the relevant definitive agreements to be
entered into between the relevant members of the Group and
Redsun Properties and its associates, and shall be determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the relevant parties
with reference to prevailing market price taking into account
of prices charged by independent third parties services
providers in respect of comparable services and locations.

The annual caps for the maximum aggregate agency fees to be
charged by the Group to Redsun Properties and its associates
pursuant to Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency Services
Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2025 is RMB36,007,000, RMB36,007,000 and
RMB36,007,000, respectively.

Redsun Properties is owned as to 71.88% by Mr. Zeng
Huansha, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Thus,
Redsun Properties is an associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and
therefore a connected person of the Company.
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2.

Date of agreement:

Effective period:

Parties:

00 Y

Provision of management services by the Group

(i) Provision of Property Management Services to
Redsun Properties and its Associates

The Group has entered into the existing property
management services master framework agreement with
Redsun Properties on 11 March 2020 with an effective
period from 11 March 2020 to 31 December 2022,
renewable by mutual agreement of the parties and has
subsequently entered into following framework
agreement on substantially the same terms and
conditions as the Existing Property Management Services
Master Framework Agreement to regulate the
transactions between the Group and Redsun Properties
and its Associates in relation to the provision of a variety
of property management services (the “Property
Management Services Master Framework

Agreement’):

8 December 2022

parties

The Company (as service provider); and

Redsun Properties (as service recipient)
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EFERE
Scope of services: (a) Pre-delivery property management and  R7G&I[E : (a) RITAIYEEE R EERE

related services
Members of the Group shall provide pre- REBKE QAR ERAGHE R E
delivery property management and GBEANYMEBRE NMEEBRE
related services to Redsun Properties and ER - EBMHBMEE - ELERERE
its associates, including but not limited to B mIEEEE RIEERER
planning and design, equipment < B M) oL 5 b BE Jo EL BGRB8 A 4R 1
selection, inspection for each unit, RENFIMEBEERE@ERE - 81
cleaning, gardening, maintenance of BARAREFZ  BEER - —
public order and security in the phases of P—% 52 BEZE QAHKFH
property preparation, general layout as ERLRERT
well as construction drawings, execution,
completion and delivery period in respect
of the property projects of Redsun
Properties and its associates.

(b) Display units and property sales venues b RERYMEHEREERK
management services
Members of the Group shall provide REEK B AR ERLGHE K E
management and related services to the BMEANMEIERHEEHA - MY
display units and property sales venues of XEENRBEMEHERIEHE
the property projects during the sales BERAERY  BEETRNA L
period of the property projects of Redsun ASFTIREER BE - AHAKF
Properties and its associates, including but HERLZRRG -
not limited to cleaning, gardening,
maintenance of public order and security
services to the aforesaid venue.

(c) Pre-delivery property management () REAREENENRIFAYEEE
services for unsold properties PR 7%
Members of the Group shall provide pre- REBRKERBER AR HERNY
delivery property management services to ¥ (BIEEN) Fsh IS E R HEE
Redsun Properties and its associates for ARBZNAMEEERS - B1E
unsold properties (including car parking BARRLR - BR BE - #E
spaces), including but not limited to MIREIRTE ©

security, cleaning, gardening, repair and

maintenance.
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(d)Commercial properties management

services

Members of the Group shall provide
management and related services to the
commercial properties including office
areas, hotels and shopping malls owned
or operated by Redsun Properties and its
associates and relevant common areas,
including but not limited to cleaning,
gardening, maintenance of public order
and security services to the aforesaid

venues.

(e) Housing repair management services

Members of the Group shall provide
routine maintenance and repair
management services to the Properties
under warranty sold by Redsun Properties
and its associates, including but not
limited to housing safety management,
housing repair plan management, housing
repair quality management, housing repair
budget management, housing repair
tender management, housing repair cost
management, housing repair factor
management, housing repair construction
management and housing repair

construction supervision services.
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Pricing policy:

Definitive service agreements will be
entered into between the relevant
members of the Group and Redsun
Properties and its associates for the
provision of the Property Management
Services. Each definitive agreement will set
out the relevant services to be provided
by the relevant members of the Group to
Redsun Properties and its associates and
the service fees. The definitive service
agreements may only contain provisions
which are in all material respects
consistent with the binding principles,
guidelines, terms and conditions set out in
the Property Management Services Master

Framework Agreement.

The relevant members of the Group shall,
where they are selected following the
relevant tender processes and other
quotation procedures for selection of services
providers, provide management and related
services to Redsun Properties and its
associates according to the tender and
quotation documents and definitive
management services agreements to be
entered into between relevant members of
the Group and Redsun Properties and its
associates from time to time.

EEBR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

AEBEBEKE QRIS ELGE
KBS AR Y R B B R R]
SRR R HE o B REBHES
FIAEBEEEKE QARG
o Re ELESE B AL A0 B R AR A K
R%E - ZRRGHZ N EHAE
A E K77 Y % B R IR AR
Rip BB EFHORIORA - 5
Sl B B MR — EREI IR DL ©

AREBEERKE ARMAELETTARE
EREMRERF SRS HERTE
RFRESE RERBEREENBREX
HRiGmAEEEHNKE QR ELE
WEREBEBATKIILNZKER
PR 75 123 = [7] 54 F5 b 2E N2 L HSE B8 A2 1
B KRR AR

ABEREEEERLAT - —BE-—F5FR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

The management fees payable by Redsun
Properties and its associates shall be
determined based on arm’s length
negotiation between Redsun Properties and
its associates and members of the Group,
with reference to a wide range of factors
including but not limited to (i) nature, age,
infrastructure features, geographical location
and neighborhood profile of the relevant
properties; (ii) prevailing market price
charged by other independent third party
services providers to Redsun Properties and
its associates in respect of comparable
services; and (iii) any applicable rates
recommended by the relevant government
authorities.

The transactions contemplated under the
Property Management Services Master
Framework Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms, on terms no more
favorable than those offered to independent
third party services providers in respect of
comparable services and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of our
Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The annual caps for the annual service fees paid by
Redsun Properties and its associates to the Group in
relation to the Property Management Services pursuant
to Property Management Services Master Framework
Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2025 is RMB232,919,000, RMB214,734,000 and
RMB183,323,000, respectively.

Redsun Properties is owned as to 71.88% by Mr. Zeng
Huansha, a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Thus, Redsun Properties is an associate of Mr. Zeng
Huansha and therefore a connected person of the

Company.
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(i)

Provision of management services to the Redsun
Materials City Group

The Company (as service provider) entered into a new
framework management services agreement with
Jiangsu Redsun Industrial Raw Materials City Co., Ltd.
(‘Redsun Materials City”) (as service recipient) (the
"Existing Redsun Materials City Management Services
Agreement’) on 16 June 2020, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide Redsun Materials City and
its subsidiaries (the “Redsun Materials City Group”) with
management and related services to its specialized
home furnishing and construction materials centers and
shopping malls, including but not limited to cleaning,
gardening, maintenance of public order and security
services to the aforesaid venues and has been effective
upon the Listing will be valid until 31 December 2022
and the term may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Subsequently, the Company entered into a new
framework management services agreement with
Redsun Materials City (the “New Redsun Materials City
Management Services Agreement”’) on substantially
the same terms and conditions as the Existing Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement. The
New Redsun Materials City Management Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2023 and will be
valid until 31 December 2025 and the term may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and

regulations.

(i)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

[IAL A 5 L€ R #3518 1R E 2 IR 75

202066 A16 8 - ANA T (ER ARG HIE
) ETERA ARG TERBM AR A A
(TAABITERRE]) EARBEERT)
R EBERSIERGHE ((REAABRIE
REBEEREHRE]) - B AAFR
BRAARG TR REWB AR (T4
ABIERBBER|) WEXEREEHNL
BEMBROUREYESIREERERE
AR - BRIEETRA A LIUSATIREE
B BE AHERFHEERTRRS - %
WEE B LEMEER - BRUEAZE 2022512
A318 - ATREHRE ETRAERIGE
FLAEHD - BETR - AQFEA KNG TER
BHAET ST E 12 RISIE R 105 ([ ETAL KRR
TEFRRBERERBHER]) - LEHRIE
IR A AT KPS T ¥ RAHEE 12 RIS ok
RBABE  FALKRS T 3 RN E B RS
WEER2023F1ATBAR  BEREHE
2025512 A318 - A& HEHE T
BH - MEAET EMABEUARERFTE
Hu @A AR RERNBE

ABEREEEERLAT - —BE-—F5FR

A



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

Definitive service agreements will be entered into
between the relevant members of the Group and the
relevant members of the Redsun Materials City Group for
the provision of services under the New Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement. Each
definitive agreement will set out the relevant services to
be provided by the relevant members of the Group to
the relevant members of the Redsun Materials City
Group and the service fees. The definitive service
agreements may only contain provisions which are in all
material respects consistent with the binding principles,
guidelines, terms and conditions set out in the New

Redsun Materials City Management Services Agreement.

The service fees to be charged under the New Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement shall be
determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the anticipated operational costs
(including labor costs); and (ii) the prevailing market
price for similar services taking into account the size and
location of the commercial properties to be managed by
our Group, and shall be no more favorable than those
offered to independent third parties.

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees payable
to us by the Redsun Materials City Group in relation to
its commercial properties pursuant to the New Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2025 is
RMB53,548,000, RMB56,188,000 and RMB57,783,000,

respectively.

Redsun Material City Group is owned as to 100% by
Mr. Zeng Huansha, a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Thus, Redsun Material City Group is an
associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and therefore a

connected person of the Company.

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022

AEBERRBKE R RHEAARSTERR
WEEA KR R RIS TERE
B IR AR e PR IR IS R T SRR AR TS 15
& B ERHAEKBEINAEERRAKE
NEEEARGIERFIMERRAKE
NERHEAE R LR E - &ER
BERERHEEMEEAT HEMA KRG
TERMBEERE HEMEEBORD
BVER BN ~ 4530~ IR BRI — BV IR »

RIBFTALA S TR FRE T2 AR 109 a2 18
W RSB RSN THERETE - 12E
()FEFHELRA (BB TRA) » Ri)E
PRBSHRITHE - et RAKEK TE
BENREMENRBRLUE - BAFER
MBLE=FRMEE -

HE2025F12A3BIEZAFESF 4
A TEREMEERENEYEMIRIE
AT KPS TR BRI 15 B &
MERGEEBSENEE LRSI/ ARE
53,548,0007T * A R 56,188,000 X A R
£ 57,783,0007T °

AP TEREHREE AR AR R
A I AR 100% © Bt AL KRE T %
FRENEE RSB EENBEA - BAM
BARNBMEEAL -



(iii)

Provision of management services to Jiangsu Hong
Yang Commercial

The Company (as service provider) entered into a
management services agreement with Jiangsu Hong
Yang Commercial (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hong Yang
Commercial’) (as service recipient) (the “New Jiangsu
Hong Yang Commercial Management Services
Agreement’) on 8 December 2022, pursuant to which
we agreed to provide management and related services
to the specialized home furnishing and construction
materials centers and shopping malls of Jiangsu Hong
Yang Commercial and its subsidiaries (“Jiangsu Hong
Yang Commercial Group”), including but not limited to
cleaning, gardening, maintenance of public order and
security services to the aforesaid venue. The New
Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial Management Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2023 and will be
valid until 31 December 2025, and the term may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.

Definitive service agreements will be entered into
between the relevant members of the Group and the
relevant members of the Jiangsu Hong Yang
Commercial Group for the provision of services under
the New Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial Management
Services Agreement. Each definitive agreement will set
out the relevant services to be provided by the relevant
members of the Group to the relevant members of the
Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial Group and the service
fees. The definitive service agreements may only contain
provisions which are in all material respects consistent
with the binding principles, guidelines, terms and
conditions set out in the New Jiangsu Hong Yang
Commercial Management Services Agreement.

The service fees to be charged under the New Jiangsu
Hong Yang Commercial Management Services
Agreement shall be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the anticipated
operational costs (including labor costs); and (ii) the
prevailing market price for similar services taking into
account the size and location of the commercial
properties to be managed by the Group, and shall be no
more favorable than those offered to independent third
parties.

(iii)
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(iv)

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees payable
to us by Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial Group
pursuant to the New Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial
Management Services Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2025 is RMB29,478,000,
RMB30,515,000 and RMB31,474,000, respectively.

Jiangsu Hong Yang Commercial is indirectly wholly-
owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng Huansha. Thus, Jiangsu
Hong Yang Commercial is an associate of Mr. Zeng
Huansha and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Provision of management services to Shanghai Hong
Yang Business

The Company (as service provider) entered into a
management services agreement with Shanghai
Hongyanghui Business Management Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Hong Yang Business”) (as service recipient)
(the “New Shanghai Hong Yang Business
Management Services Agreement’) on 8 December
2022, pursuant to which we agreed to provide
management and related services to the specialized
home furnishing and construction materials centers and
shopping malls of Shanghai Hong Yang Business and its
subsidiaries (“Shanghai Hong Yang Business Group”),
including but not limited to cleaning, gardening,
maintenance of public order and security services to the
aforesaid venue. The New Shanghai Hong Yang Business
Management Services Agreement took effect on 1
January 2023 and will be valid until 31 December 2025,
and the term may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
all other applicable laws and regulations.
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Definitive service agreements will be entered into
between the relevant members of the Group and the
relevant members of the Shanghai Hong Yang Business
Group for the provision of services under the New
Shanghai Hong Yang Business Management Services
Agreement. Each definitive agreement will set out the
relevant services to be provided by the relevant
members of the Group to the relevant members of the
Shanghai Hong Yang Business Group and the service
fees. The definitive service agreements may only contain
provisions which are in all material respects consistent
with the binding principles, guidelines, terms and
conditions set out in the New Shanghai Hong Yang
Business Management Services Agreement.

The service fees to be charged under the New Shanghai
Hong Yang Business Management Services Agreement
shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the anticipated operational costs
(including labor costs); and (i) the prevailing market
price for similar services taking into account the size and
location of the commercial properties to be managed by
the Group, and shall be no more favorable than those
offered to independent third parties.

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees payable
to us by Shanghai Hong Yang Business Group pursuant
to the New Shanghai Hong Yang Business Management
Services Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2025 is RMB18,436,000, RMB19,249,000 and
RMB19,932,000, respectively.

Shanghai Hong Yang Business is indirectly wholly-
owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng Huansha. Thus, Shanghai
Hong Yang Business is an associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha
and therefore a connected person of the Company.
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(v)

Provision of management services to the
commercial complex of Redsun Business World

The Company (as service provider) entered into a
management services agreement with Nanjing Redsun
Business World Co., Ltd. ("Redsun Business World") (as
service recipient) (the “Existing Redsun Business World
Management Services Agreement’) on 16 June 2020,
pursuant to which we agreed to provide Redsun
Business World with management and related services to
Nanjing Redsun Business World Mall (R 541 AR5 7 2
RS,

furnishing and construction materials, including but not

a commercial complex for specialized home

limited to cleaning, gardening, maintenance of public
order and security services to the aforesaid venues shall
be effective upon the Listing and will be valid until 31
December 2022 and the term may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Subsequently, the Company entered into a
new management services agreement with Redsun
Business World (the “New Redsun Business World
Management Services Agreement’) on substantially
the same terms and conditions as the Existing Redsun
Business World Management Services Agreement. The
New Redsun Business World Management Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2023 and will be
valid until 31 December 2023 and the term may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.
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Definitive service agreements will be entered into
between the relevant members of the Group and the
relevant members of the Redsun Business World for the
provision of services under the New Redsun Business
World Management Services Agreement. Each definitive
agreement will set out the relevant services to be
provided by the relevant members of the Group to the
relevant members of the Redsun Business World and the
service fees. The definitive service agreements may only
contain provisions which are in all material respects
consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions set out in the New Redsun Business

World Management Services Agreement.

The service fees to be charged under the New Redsun
Business World Management Services Agreement shall
be determined after arm's length negotiations with
reference to (i) the anticipated operational costs
(including labor costs); and (ii) the prevailing market
price for similar services of similar properties, and shall
be no more favorable than those offered to
independent third parties.

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees payable
to us by amounts of service fees payable to us by
Redsun Business World pursuant to the New Redsun
Business World Management Services Agreement for the
year ending 31 December 2023 is RMB948,000.

Redsun Business World is owned as to 100% by Ms.
Zeng Suging (¥ 2J&), the sister of Mr. Zeng Huansha.
Thus, Redsun Business World is an associate of Mr. Zeng
Huansha and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of the business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms or better, and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from the auditor

The Company's auditor has been engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Board of Directors has received an
unqualified letter from the auditor of the Company in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, stating that the auditor has not
noticed that any of the above continuing connected transactions:

(@)  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

()  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance

with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and
(d)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Historical refundable deposit in relation to the parking
spaces sales agency services

Pursuant to the Existing Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency
Services Framework Agreement, a refundable deposit (the “Historical
Refundable Deposit”) in relation to the parking spaces sales agency
services was paid by the Group to the Redsun Properties Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Historical Refundable Deposit
represents a small percentage of the expected sales proceeds of the
parking spaces and would be fully refunded to the Group either (i)
through settlement of the sales proceeds to be collected by the
Group upon the sale of the parking spaces; or (ii) at the end of the
relevant period for the deposit for any unsold parking spaces. Due to
the inadvertent misinterpretation of the Listing Rules, the Company
was mistaken of the nature and classification of the Historical
Refundable Deposit, and was unaware that the payment of the
Historical Refundable Deposit would constitute transaction(s) and
connected transaction(s) under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has paid the
Historical Refundable Deposit to the Redsun Properties Group in an
aggregate amount of RMB200,910,000, among which the amount of
RMB188,073,000 was outstanding as at 31 December 2022. As one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Historical
Refundable Deposit have exceeded 5% but are less than 25%, such
payment of the Historical Refundable Deposit constituted a
discloseable transaction and continuing connected transactions of
the Company and shall be subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As the Company had not complied with such applicable
requirements prior to making the payment of the Historical
Refundable Deposit due to its inadvertent misinterpretation of the
Listing Rules, such payment constituted a breach of the Listing Rules.

The Company (i) will issue an announcement and circular in relation
to the rectification regarding the payment of the Historical
Refundable Deposit and supplemental agreement(s) in relation to the
deposits relating to the parking spaces agency services as soon as
practicable; and (ii) will propose to put forward ordinary resolution(s)
at the upcoming annual general meeting of the Company for
independent shareholders to consider, and if thought fit, to rectify
and approve the transaction regarding the payment of the Historical
Refundable Deposit and, if applicable, to approve the transactions
contemplated under such supplemental agreement(s) and the
relevant proposed annual caps for the deposits.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 is contained in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this

annual report.
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Save as disclosed in item (a) and (c) of note 33 (“Note 33") headed
“Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements
contained in the Annual Report, none of the related party
transactions as disclosed under Note 33, constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction that is subject to,
among other things, reporting, announcement, annual review and/or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements for connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report
and in the paragraphs headed “Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this section, no
Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company has any material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent
companies were a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, among
others:

(i) We may not be able to grow our property management
portfolio as planned, which may have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The Group will continue to expand its property management
portfolio by proactive market-oriented expansion and strategic
acquisition to add to the scale of its properties under
management.
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(i)~ The Group's historical results may not be indicative of its future (i) ANEBEMFELEERVERBRARRAT = REE

prospects and results of operation and its future growth may HE BEHARVEZRFHERARER  ME
not materialize as planned, and failure to manage any future FEEBEBRRKER  EHRMOES - 5
growth effectively may have a material adverse effect on our BRARKEEREEERERTHNTE - RNEE
business, financial condition and results of operations. The BRERASECERENNTEHRERSE N -
Group will continue to uplift its operation and management TEEMSHS  BRLEERFEER -

capability and market competitiveness and seize market
opportunities for achieving continual growth in operating
results.

(i) Termination or non-renewal of the Group's preliminary property (i) AEBEMRIEHYEEERE S B EEER

management service contracts or property management HERERIENTESEEHEER 0%
service contracts could have a material adverse effect on its MR RS EHEBERBERTNEE - REBE
business, financial condition and results of operations. The BENEREWIRARBE N - BESEFRA -
Group will continue to enhance quality and uplift service REA RBENE-

capability, gain customers’ recognition, and increase contract

renewal rate.

(iv) A majority of our revenue is generated from property  (v) IR HWRZRKERANESR ABLGHESE

management services the Group provides to projects EMEMNIEE RIERREMNBE AR E
developed by Redsun Properties Group and properties owned RENMEEERY ZFHEASEEXE
by associates of the Controlling Shareholders, which the Group fl e REERBFERRABEZHEZE=7F
does not have control over. The Group will continue to ERFRENYE R E R T REMENK
expand its coverage to properties developed by third-party 8 o

developers and reduce reliance on properties developed by

related parties.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS BFERZER

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to  ANEBIEFIEARERF  URRETHASEEEEK
applicable laws, rules and regulations which have a significant impact ~ FZM@EAERE  BAIRER - RAFHRAE - B F
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, except as  SRFTHEEEIN  REBRFIABEATECETHAER
disclosed in the annual report, the Group complied with, in all EMECEESNEBERERTBIARLER A&
material respects, all the relevant and applicable PRC laws and EIERMEEEEBDEMENR FrEREE -
regulations governing the business of property management and the

Group has obtained all licenses, permits and certificates for the

purpose of operating its business.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s joint ventures
and associated company were not involved in and the Board is not
aware of any non-compliance incidents that might adversely affect
the value of the Company’s interests in them.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) which were required to be entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
otherwise required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:

Interests in underlying shares of associated corporations

Name of associated

RAFHREY  ARFNEGELERBEARLEY
FAEEEUW TABEAITEREMTTREEART
REFHEEEETNZE -

EERRETHRAERAQAFAREBEEZE
HRG  HEROREEREPHESERAR

BHZE202F12A318 - EFRARFRESTHRAER
RARSEBEEE (ERRLBEEONENE(ESH
REAEGAN([#FF R EE &P 1) SxvEp) #fkt - 48
ARG REEET  BEERARFAREBEESRLBAE
GBI 3521EF EME LM P B LR EIZESTAIA
BAARARBRAOER AR

RIBECEE MR 0 W ERS

Number of
underlying Shares
subject to the Approximate

pre-IPO share percentage of

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest options shareholding
BRAMBEANBR

BEEpnE HEEEER HEME TS HEBEROEE RESBOBEDL

Zeng Junkai®te Redsun Properties Beneficial owner 18,900,500 0.57%

& {8 (i) 2\ 8 Hh B EnEAA

Note:
M As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Zeng Junkai was interested in 18,900,500
underlying shares in respect of share options granted by Redsun

Properties pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme of Redsun
Properties.
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Saved as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, none of the B EXFTHTEEIN B E2022F 128310 BIEES
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or R AR Bl & ®ITEA B RAQ &) ok ERBEE MR
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of 13 ~ AHEAMR (D REEE T - #HBEER AR RIREFES
the Company or its associated corporations, recorded in the register Hﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬂ%%ﬂbﬁﬁ VE RS RIRIEEE
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be ~ SFRIZBRBAA R B RS FTREMEREAR °
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the FERRRAATRMD REERDIERS &K

Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company =)
Long positions in the Shares of the Company RAE DGR G FE

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2022, as  BLARBIFTE] - HE2022F 124318 » WA RQEIR
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under  EEH K EIEIE&HIE33616BFE N E L MATREEE -
section 336 of the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director ~ BREBHX AR A EmITEAEI + T A LR X
or chief executive of the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in  FEBAM D HER 5% A FHEss ¢

the Shares or underlying Shares:

Number of Approximate

Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest shares percentage
TERRERE EaEtE R&HEE BHBEDH
Redsun Services Group (Holdings)™ Beneficial owner 301,994,000 72.77%
ShES RS SR E (12 ) O EmEBA
Hong Yang Group Company Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
ENCESEIRE RErEER
Hong Yang International® Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
ShEG BIER 0 R EEER
Hong Yang Group (Holdings)®” Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
shis &= (FERR) @ Ry EEER
Mr. Zeng Huansha" Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%

G SEED RELEER
Ms. Chen Sihong® Interest of spouse 301,994,000 72.77%
PRBALZ L@ B m
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Notes:

(1) Redsun Services Group (Holdings) is wholly owned by Hong Yang Group
Company, which in turn is wholly owned by Hong Yang International,
which in turn is owned as to 50% and 50% by Hong Yang Group
(Holdings) (@ company wholly owned by Mr. Zeng Huansha) and
Mr. Zeng Huansha, respectively. Accordingly, each of Hong Yang Group
Company, Hong Yang International, Hong Yang Group (Holdings) and
Mr. Zeng Huansha is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Redsun Services Group (Holdings) by virtue of the SFO.

2) Ms. Chen Sihong is the spouse of Mr. Zeng Huansha and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Zeng Huansha is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had
not been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares that were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no any rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there
any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,446 employees in total, of
which 2,796 employees were engaged in property management and
related services for residential properties, 328 employees were
engaged in property management and related services for
commercial properties and 322 employees were engaged in property
management and related services for public construction properties.

The emolument of the employees of the Group is mainly determined
based on their duties, performance and the prevailing market level in
the respective regions. The Group has formulated a systematic and
market-competitive employee incentive plan and a comprehensive
talent cultivation scheme based on its business to attract and retain
talents through offering competitive salary packages, comprehensive
talent training strategies, internal promotion system and a caring
corporate culture.
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In addition, focusing on the entire process of talent cultivation and
development, the Group has also formulated the systematic “five-
talent scheme”, for enhancing the quality of talents and broadening
its pool of talents. The Group has designed training programmes
including the “leadership scheme”, “brigadier scheme”, “housekeeping
academy” and “management trainee programme” for the key talents,
in which systematic arrangements are implemented to provide the
employees of the Group with clear development path and secure the
demand for talents in different business segments and levels. The
Group believes that talent cultivation scheme of the Group will
enhance team building, improve team capability, and provide talent
pipelines for the business development of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group is subject to PRC laws in relation to environment
protection matters. The Group considers the protection of the
environment to be important and have implemented measures in
the operation of our businesses to ensure its compliance with all
applicable requirements. Given the nature of its operations, the
Group believes it is not subject to material environmental liability risk

or compliance costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, no fines or penalties for non-compliance of PRC
environmental laws had been imposed on the Group, and the Group
had not been subject to any material administrative penalties due to

violation of environmental laws in the PRC.

Social Responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and
regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, personal injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance, in accordance with the relevant PRC laws and

regulations.
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Health and Work Safety

The employees’ administrative measures adopted by the Group
contain policies and procedures regarding work safety and
occupational health issues. The Group provides its employees with
annual medical checks and safety training, and the construction sites
of the Group are equipped with safety equipment including gloves,
boots and hats.

The operational management department of the Group is
responsible for recording and handling work accidents as well as
maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not encounter any material safety
accident, there were no material claims for personal or property
damages and no material compensation was paid to employees in
respect of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accident.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The articles of association of the Company provides that the
Directors, managing directors, alternate Directors, auditors, secretary
and other officers for the time being of the Company and the
trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or
any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts. The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors.

BERIERE
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group had no material events after the Reporting Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float
of an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means
that at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all
times be held by the public.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB0.86 million.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company'’s
auditor is to be proposed at the AGM.

02}
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PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

For and on behalf of the Board
Redsun Services Group Limited
Zeng Junkai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and enhance the corporate value as well as the responsibility
commitments. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

Saved as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in Part 2 of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report (the “Relevant
Period”). The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) will use their
best endeavors to procure the Company to continue to comply with
the CG Code.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each Director is provided with the necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under relevant statutes, by-laws, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company will continue to arrange regular seminars to provide the
Directors with updates on the latest developments and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided with
regular updates on the Company’'s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge his duty.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company provided training REREEAA
materials to the Directors and the management of the Company  EHRAIREMBEREERTENEINER -
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory

requirements.

Types of Continuous
Professional
Development Training
FEEXRREIER

Reading materials

Name of Director EENR R EM B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Zeng Junkai BEH L v
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yang Guang® BREED v
Ms. Zeng Zixi BfERRZ+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Ms. Wang Fen FELL v
Mr. Li Xiaohang TEEMEE v
Mr. Zhao Xianbo FHIA R A v
Note: B &E
(1) Mr. Yang Guang has resigned as an executive Director, the Executive (1)  BHREEEBERNTES AR THEERESE
President of the Company and a member of the nomination REZBEKRE  B202F9A23HBEM -

committee of the Board with effect from 23 September 2022.
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THE BOARD

086

Responsibilities

The Board assumes the responsibility of leadership and control
of the Company, and supervises and approves significant
decisions regarding financial performance, strategic
development objectives and operations of the Company. The
Board delegates to the management authority and
responsibility for the Company’s daily operations and
businesses management according to the Board’s instructions.
The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board
Committees”), and has delegated to the Board Committees
various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct

roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall at all times ensure that they carry out duties
in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Board Composition

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zeng Junkai

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Guang!”
Ms. Zeng Zixi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wang Fen

Mr. Li Xiachang

Mr. Zhao Xianbo

Note:
) Mr. Yang Guang has resigned as an executive Director, the
Executive President of the Company and a member of the

nomination committee of the Board with effect from
23 September 2022.
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There is no material financial, business, family or other
relationship between any members of the Board. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. All the Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, bring a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination

committee of the Company.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by Code Provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
Mr. Zeng Junkai served as the Chairman of the Company and
Mr. Chen Yichun (appointed on 23 September 2022) served as
the Vice President of the Company (presiding over the work)
(the "Vice President”).
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Board Meetings

Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least
four regular Board meetings should be held in each year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
majority of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notice of not less than 14 days is given of
all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For
other committee meetings, 7 days’ notice is given. The agenda
and accompanying board papers are despatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
these documents and be adequately prepared. When the
Directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in detail and include the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to request

amendments.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board (i) the
Chairman will at least hold one meeting annually with
independent non-executive Directors and without the
presence of other Directors; and (ii) the independent non-
executive Directors participate in board committees (including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee) meetings to bring independent views, advice and
judgment on important issues relating to the Company’s
strategy, policy and financial performance. During the
Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the implementation of
the abovementioned mechanism and considered the
mechanism to be appropriate and effective.
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The Company has convened one annual general meeting, and

the Board convened 9 Board meetings during the year ended

31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at

these Board meetings:
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REBE202F 1283 BILEERAEEARFR

H
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SERNEFEHT

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s term of office

ESNERALE SBTEERY

Annual

Name of Director EEnE Board meetings general meeting

EEgER BRRBEFAE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Zeng Junkai BRI E 9/9 1/1
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yang Guang” B AE 5/9 1/1
Ms. Zeng Zixi FERZ L 9/9 /1
Independent Non-executive Directors BN IEHITES
Ms. Wang Fen TELZLT 9/9 1/1
Mr. Li Xiaohang FEMLAE 9/9 I
Mr. Zhao Xianbo HER K 9/9 1/1

Note: BT

(1) Mr. Yang Guang has resigned as an executive Director, the

Executive President of the Company and a member of the

nomination committee of the Board with effect from

23 September 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established an audit committee, a remuneration

committee and a nomination committee. Each of these committees

has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their

authority and duties. The chairmen of these committees will report

their findings and recommendations to the Board after each

meeting.

Audit Committee

Our Board has established an audit committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code D.3 of
the CG Code, and has adopted written terms of reference. The
primary duties of our audit committee are to review and
monitor the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system, to oversee the audit
process, to provide advice and comments to our Board, and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned
by the Board. Our audit committee currently consists of one
non-executive Director, being Mr. Zeng Junkai, and three
independent non-executive Directors, being Ms. Wang Fen, Mr.
Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao Xianbo. Our audit committee is
currently chaired by Mr. Zhao Xianbo, who possesses suitable
professional qualifications.

Our audit committee convened 2 meetings during the
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the

attendance at these meetings:

EXZETE

ZK’AEWEﬁJZ**’f ZBg FHZESQRREEZE
€ -BLREBEREH %EH&%%%@ - B SIBR EL B
REBE ZFZEENEIRNERREAEFTEW
SHBERNEBEES -

1. BREER
EESCRELTARRAEINGREEI2ERD
¥ERTRITFRIFEDIKRRLEZREZES - D
EMEEBESHE EXZEeNFTERER
R RRERNEBOMFEERET - RRERE
MANHEERG  EBEZRRE MEZTIR
HEZRER YETESEUREZRNEM
BERET BEZZESHAB —BIFERTE
EBIGEINEE)  R=EZBIUIERITES (A
FTELL  FEMAERERFILE)EKX - F
REZESRRHERKREELFER  E#E
HEEEERE -

RIAREHIRE  ERRESAM2RE#E - TRH
e A - ohE

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member ZEEREHA term of office
ESREHAEES

BITEEBRE

Mr. Zhao Xianbo (Chairman) B S (£ ) 2/2
Ms. Wang Fen FEz+ 2/2
Mr. Li Xiaohang TEEMEE 2/2
Mr. Zeng Junkai SR A 2/2

7090
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Our audit committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 and confirmed that it has complied all
applicable accounting principles, standards and requirements,
and made sufficient disclosures. The audit committee has also
discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting. Our
audit committee has also reviewed the significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems and connected
transactions, and have discussed with the auditor of the
Company about the tasks they performed.

Our audit committee has reviewed the remuneration of the
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022 and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December
2023, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

The work performed by our audit committee during the
Relevant Period included, among others, the following:

reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2022;

reviewed the cash flow projections and monitored the
Company's overall financial condition;

reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2022;

made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of auditor for the year 2023;

reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Company and made recommendations to the Board on
the improvement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company;
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reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company and made
recommendations to the Board on the improvement of
the internal audit function of the Company; and

reviewed the arrangements which employees can raise
concerns on possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters, and the investigation
of these matters for appropriate follow-up actions.

Remuneration Committee

Our Board has established a remuneration committee in
compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and
Code E.1.1 to E1.5 of the CG Code, and has adopted written
terms of reference. The primary duties of our remuneration
committee are to establish, review and make recommendations
to the Directors on our policy and structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies concerning such remuneration, determine
the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management and review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. Our remuneration committee
currently consists of one executive Director, being
Ms. Zeng Zixi, and three independent non-executive Directors,
being Ms. Wang Fen, Mr. Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao Xianbo.
Our remuneration committee is currently chaired by
Ms. Wang Fen.
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Our remuneration committee convened 1 meeting during the
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at the meeting:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIBIRS

RIAREHIRE  FMEE @AM IRERE - TRH
SIZEGHRHHERS

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member ZEERERA term of office
EEREHAEES

BITERRE

Ms. Wang Fen (Chairman) TELLT(F/E) /1
Ms. Zeng Zixi BFERLT 1/1
Mr. Zhao Xianbo FHIR R A N
Mr. Li Xiaohang ZTEEMEE /1

The major work performed by our remuneration committee
during the Relevant Period included, among others, the
following:

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration packages and overall benefits for the
Directors and the senior management of the Company;

made recommendations to the Board in relation to all
consultancy agreements and service contracts or any
variations, renewals or modifications thereof, entered
into between the Company and the Directors and senior
management of the Company or any associate company
of any of them;

made recommendations to the Board to accept the
proposal of Director's remuneration of the Company’s
newly appointed Independent Non-executive Directors,
Mr. Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao Xianbo;

made recommendations to the Board to accept the
proposal of Director's remuneration of the Company’s
appointment of Mr. Zeng Junkai as a Chairman and
non-executive Director of the Company;
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considered what details of the remuneration/benefits of
the Directors should be reported in the Company’s
corporate governance report in the annual report and
how those details should be presented, including
determining the policy for the remuneration of Directors,
assessing performance of executive Directors and
approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts;

made recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
remuneration policy; and

reviewed and/or approved the matters set out in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules in relation to share schemes.

Compensation of the Directors and senior
management

The Directors and members of our senior management receive
compensation from our Company in the form of salaries,
bonuses and other benefits in kind such as contributions to

pension plans.

The Company incurred expenses in relation to remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes
and social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and other
allowances and other benefits in kind) for the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB3,086,000.

The Company incurred expenses in relation to remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes and
social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and other
allowances and other benefits in kind) for our Company'’s five
highest paid individuals (including the Directors) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB4,621,000.

None of the Directors had waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Our Board will review and determine the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors and senior
management and will receive recommendation from our
remuneration committee which will take into account salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of our
Company.

For additional information on the Directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2022 as well as information on
the highest paid individuals, please refer to Notes 8 and 9 of
the Notes to Financial Statements.

In addition, pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of members of the senior
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Nomination Committee

Our Board has established a nomination committee in
compliance with Code B.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted
written terms of reference. The primary duties of our
nomination committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of our Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board, identify, select or
make recommendations to our Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship, and ensuring the
diversity of our Board members, assess the independence of
our independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Our nomination
committee currently consists of one non-executive director,
being Mr. Zeng Junkai, and three independent non-executive
Directors, being Ms. Wang Fen, Mr. Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao
Xianbo. Our nomination committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Zeng Junkai.

Our nomination committee convened 1 meeting during the
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at the meeting:

REEBE
EFEERELETIETATRIFEBIRKLEE
HEEEg URMEOMERE -EREESQ
MEEBERTHRIETENRE RER
MR THEESERNENEREZBRNES
SRHEERZZ Ve WEIAREREZA
ENEFQRMUEBEZRE BREFENEMN
Zol - FHEBMFATESNB L EL A
M ENZTABHTEZTRESEEITE
MBS ERNESTSRHEERRZS - BRZE
SHAH—BFRNTES (ABEIELE) UK
“REUFMTES (AEELL  FTaEMkE
KBRS AE) MK - IRREZ B & B TR BRI
FEHEERF -

RIEEHE  REZE@AMIAEH - TR#E
FIZEHEN B ERE

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member EEER term of office
EERNTEHRAEE

BTEBIRE

Mr. Zeng Junkai (Chairman) LR E (EE) 1
Ms. Wang Fen FTEZL /1
Mr. Li Xiaohang ZEMEE N
Mr. Zhao Xianbo WML 1/1
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The work performed by our nomination committee included,

among others, the following:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

assessed the independence of the independent

non-executive Directors;

made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. Zeng Junkai as a non-executive
Director, and Mr. Li Xiaohang and Mr. Zhao Xianbo as
independent non-executive Directors; and

re-appointment of Directors; and

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on

the nomination policy.

Nomination Policy

(i)

Objective

The nomination committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
the Shareholders for election as the Directors at general

meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The nomination committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
Directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general

meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to be filled.
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(ii)

098

Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board,
the factors would be used as reference by the nomination
committee include but not limited to the following:

(@) integrity;

(b)  accomplishment and experience in the industry of which
the Company is a part;

(©) commitment in respect of available time and relevant

interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(e)  fulfilment of independence guidelines for the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

f) any factors as the nomination committee or the Board
may from time to time consider appropriate.

The nomination committee will ask proposed candidates to
submit the necessary personal information in a prescribed
form.

The nomination committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and other applicable rules and regulations.
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(iii)

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the nomination committee shall call a
meeting of the nomination committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from the members of the Board, if any, for
consideration by the nomination committee prior to its
meeting. The nomination committee may also put forward
candidates for consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board, the nomination committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual candidate
and make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and

approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing members of
the Board, the Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general

meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for Appointment, Election and
Removal of Directors”, which is available on the Company's
website, for procedures for Shareholders’ nomination of any
proposed candidate for election as a Director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a

general meeting.

(iii)
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Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain
the high standard of corporate governance, the Company has
adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of our Board. Pursuant to
the board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors when
selecting the candidates to our Board, including but not limited to
gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge, cultural,
education background, ethnicity and length of service. The ultimate
decision of the appointment will be based on merit and the
contribution which the selected candidates will bring to our Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
information technology, accounting and financial management, risk
management and corporate governance. They obtained degrees in
various majors including economics, business administration, and
accounting studies. The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing more than
one third of the members of our Board. Furthermore, our Board has
two female members, and has a wide range of age, ranging from 29
years old to 56 years old. Taking into account our existing business
model and specific needs as well as the different background of the
Directors, the composition of our Board satisfies our board diversity

policy.

Our nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. Our nomination committee will review the
board diversity policy annually to ensure its continued effectiveness
and the Company will disclose in its corporate governance report
about the implementation of the board diversity policy on an annual
basis.

In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,446
employees, of which the number of male and female employees are
2,131 and 1,315, respectively (accounted for 61.84% and 38.16%
respectively), the overall headcount remained stable.
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4, Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board met one
time to review the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this section
headed “Corporate Governance and Other Information”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in
securities in the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiries
made to all Directors, the Directors have confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code since the listing of
the Company on the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Board has absolute discretion in determining
whether to pay dividend, subject to the approval of the Shareholders
(if applicable). The Dividend Policy aims to enable the Shareholders
to participate in the profits of the Company and for the Company to
retain adequate liquidity for grasping future growth opportunities. In
determining whether to recommend a declaration of dividend and
the amount of dividend to be paid, the Board will evaluate the
Company's earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements, prevailing economic conditions, future prospects and
any other factors that the Directors deem relevant. The Board may
pay dividend as appeared to the Board to be justified by the profits
of the Company. The Board may also from time to time pay interim
dividend or special dividend. The Board will review the Dividend
Policy from time to time and may make appropriate changes if
considered necessary.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF ANY OF THE BE - HESEBRAQAFAFEMLTES
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem — RIEEHM - ARRIREWNB AR W EHRE - HEk
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Relevant  BEE AR B{EfA ETHES °
Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT PBERENZEM

Based on the information available to our Company and the  IRIEARDFIMEER RIBEESMAL AR FNIEEH
knowledge of the Directors, our Company maintained sufficient — BRI 43 R M A RFHE -
public float during the Relevant Period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION ZE TN &

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fee paid/payable to the — & ZE2022F 12931 HILFE - BEXIRE K IEEZR
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and TSR A BIMNEZ BT FERTE BB H P 20T

non-audit services is set out as follows:

Year ended

31 December
2022
BZ20226F
12B31BLEE
RMB million
AREBEER

Audit and related service E Az N A8 R AR 7S 25
Non-audit service IEEZARTE 03

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS ON BEEENUERENETESR
FINANCIAL REPORTS

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the ~ A TFFAEMEEHIBRERNE TR » EERNFER
Directors regarding financial statements, should be read in B UZEMBEANBTMETER —HHE -W
conjunction with, but understood separately from, the auditor's  EHIETZRAED BB LI

statement of their responsibilities as set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report contained in this annual report.
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The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for preparing
financial statements of the Company that truly represent the
operating results of the Company for each financial year. To the best
knowledge of the directors, there was no material event or condition
during the Reporting Period that might have a material adverse
effect on the continuing operation of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant period. The Directors consider that the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been prepared in conformity with all applicable accounting
standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on
the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment
of the Board and the management. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis. The
statements of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and for reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Company recognizes that risk management is critical to the
success of any property management companies in the PRC. Key
operational risks that the Company face include changes in general
market conditions and the regulatory environment of the PRC
property management market, local economic environment,
expansion risks relating to entering into new cities or geographic
regions, ability to timely complete our projects with sound quality,
available financing to support our growth, competition from other
property management companies and our ability to promote and
serve the property owners in a timely fashion.
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In order to meet these challenges, the Company has adopted, a

series of internal control policies, procedures and plans that are

designed to reasonably assure effective and efficient operations,

reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In order to ensure the effective implementation of such internal

control policies, the Company has adopted various on-going

measures, including the following:

The Board is responsible and has general powers over the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. Any
significant business decision involving material risks are
reviewed, analyzed and approved at the Board level to ensure
a thorough examination of the associated risks at our highest

corporate governance body.

The Executive President is responsible for the Board regarding
the effectiveness of comprehensive risk management, which in
turn is accountable to the general meetings of the Company.
The Executive President is able to authorize relevant
department leaders who take charge of the establishment and
daily operation of the risk management systems.

The risk management department of the Company is
responsible for proposing risk management strategies,
formulating rules and regulations on risk management,
preparing annual risk management assessments and reports,
guiding all departments and subsidiaries on relevant tasks, and
conducting risk management trainings. It is also in charge of
designing a comprehensive risk management evaluation
system, and supervising the implementation of risk
management measures.

Each of functional departments and subsidiaries of the
Company is in charge of the daily business operations and risk
monitoring, and is responsible for the supervision of the
respective fields of operations on a daily basis as well as the
supervision and approval of any material business decisions of
the city and project companies of the Group.
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Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is designed to provide
reasonable and adequate assurance for effective and efficient
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with

applicable laws and regulations.

Our internal control system covers all major aspects of our
operations. To effectively implement such processes, the Company
has a set of comprehensive policies and guidelines which set out
details regarding the internal control standards, segregation of
responsibilities, approval procedures and personnel accountability in
each aspect. The Company also carries out regular internal
assessments and training to ensure our employees are equipped
with sufficient knowledge on such policies and guidelines.

The risk management and internal control system of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and conducts annual review on its effectiveness. After review, the
Board considers that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are effective and adequate.

Anti-Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policy
Business Ethics

The Company is committed corruptions and creating a
corruption-free and transparent working atmosphere. The Group
strictly complies with laws and regulations including the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Interim
Regulations Concerning the Prohibition of Commercial Briberies. The
Company has devised and implemented anti-corruption policies and
systems including the Redsun Group's System of Declaration of
Conflict of Interests (5585 %) 2 £ B |75 1 22 BB ¥Rk I /£) and the List
of Prohibited Acts and Behaviors of Corruption (8 T2& [F #1775
H 7R —E &), which set out specific procedures for handling
declarations of conflicts of interests. The Group has also organized
various activities including seminars on anti-corruption laws and case
studies to promote and raise staff awareness regarding anti-
corruption.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIBIRS

R B IR
RARHANEEZERGE ENERBR RS BEE
A HERNETEREZERER T ERERSEEE
{REE o

NBEREARRELENSTEAEATE  RAENEE
ZERF ARREEY-EZEBENIES - HFP
I ARAREEER  BES D  BHEFRAR
BE K& EFE o ARFINEPETTA RS MR
il BREERD THRARBRK&IES -

ZIS’ATE’JJ—LA”EE&W*BE*TI%.EE B M IEHER
RELEREB BIRHAR - MERERTEEERN
95,\WLEJZTE%VFHY—\EEﬁﬁ#@ﬂE’M%Eﬂ EEEY
ARRMEREEMARERRGAR  YHEEXK
WETTFEEZ K EF2RR/ARANAE
REEMAMERRGERD BN

RED REBHBER
ARRBARITEERAITERZR  BANTIER
c AKEBBET(REARKMBEREEZR) -

(FEARKMEBRAEEHFR) R(BANE LB
BRITANETRE)FAEESR - ARAEHIEL

BRRESHRREERS  BRGAEMEREENZE
RERBIEIMCE TR EETRINT—BER) - &
BANRERBREETE - AEETRESRITEZEEY
ARESETEBIRSEIER  BREAHERES
BN & AR -

MSBBEEMERDR - —B-—FFH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRS

The Group sets up report channels to encourage employees and
parties dealing with the Company to raise concerns about suspected
misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in confidence. The Group has
in place relevant policies and filing channels including Hong Yang's
Rules for Administering Complaints and Whistle-blowing (5AF5 1% &
BE|ELPHE) and its official WeChat account for filing complaints

and whistle-blowing, customer service hotline and mailboxes.

The Group will keep the identity of the whistle-blower confidential,

and has policies in place to protect whistle-blowers from retaliation.

In terms of procedures for complaining and whistle blowing,
whistleblower should first reflect to the management department
with the corresponding function or to the risk control centre if the
aforementioned reporting channel is not available. Reported cases
will be thoroughly investigated and any acts of corruption or
mismanagement verified will be duly handled according to the
seriousness and the specific situation of the respective cases.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. In particular, the Company has put in place a robust
framework for the disclosure of inside information in compliance
with the SFO. The framework sets out the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders to apprehend the
latest position of the Company. The framework and its effectiveness
are subject to review by the Board on a regular basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior
management of the Company to protect the assets, reputation and
sustainability of the Company. The internal audit function provides
independent and objective assurance as to whether the design and
operational effectiveness of the Company's framework of risk
management, control and governance processes, as designed and
represented by the Company’s management, is adequate. The
internal audit function of the Company is independent of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the Audit
Committee as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews
the Company's management’s action plans in relation to audit
findings and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating
controls before formally closing the issue.

Company Secretary

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, external service provider, and Ms. Yim Lai Kiu has
been appointed as the Company’s joint company secretary. Her
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Li Yonggang, a joint
company secretary of the Company.

The joint company secretaries of the Company attended sufficient
professional training as required under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to update their skills and knowledge.

Shareholders
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company is committed to pursue active dialogue with
Shareholders as well as to provide timely disclosure of information
concerning the Company’s material developments to its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) which aims to ensure
transparent, accurate and open communication with Shareholders to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are properly addressed
and will be reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness. The Board
has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy for the year
ended December 31, 2022 and is of the view that the Policy is
effective and adequately implemented.
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Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice
of annual general meeting together with the meeting materials will
be despatched to all Shareholders not less than 21 days and not less
than 20 clear business days before the annual general meeting. As
one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and
rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. In addition, the Company
regards annual general meeting as an important event, and all
Directors, the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior management
and external auditor will attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to address Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairmen of the
Board or each Board Committee fail to attend the meeting, then
other members of each Board Committee will be invited to attend
the annual general meeting and answer Shareholders’ inquiries
thereat. All resolutions proposed at general meetings will be voted
by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.rsunservice.hk) on the same day of the relevant general
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website (www.rsunservice.hk), where the latest information and
updates on its business operation and development, corporate
governance practice, contact information of investor relations and

other information are published for the public’s access.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to process to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of association
of the Company and the Cayman Islands Companies Law. However,
Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article 64
of the articles of association of the Company for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such
meeting. The requirements and procedures of article 64 are set out

above.

Shareholders may at any time lodge the aforesaid requisition to the
Board in writing at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 2612, 26th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the investor relations, whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Room 2612, 26th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
Email: rsuntouzizhe@rsun.com

Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the Relevant Period, there has not been any change in the

Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

On behalf of the Board

Redsun Services Group Limited
Zeng Junkai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ernst & Young

27/F One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Redsun Services Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Redsun
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 119 to 243, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BEELEER

Gooadwill impairment assessment

BB EFF I

As at 31
RMB175,050,000 in relation to the Group's acquisition of
businesses.

202128310 EEEEEEBWEREENFERA
R #175,050,0007T °

December 2022, the Group had goodwill of

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. The goodwill
impairment review performed by the Group’s management
includes a number of significant judgements and estimates
including those regarding the identification of cash-generating
units ("“CGUs"), operating profit forecasts, the annual revenue
growth rates and the discount rates.

HEGFETRENR EXEEREEMETOEERE
EHPRREERHAG R (BEEIFI RS EEEN
(IREEABM])  KEFBERA - FERABRE R
B RG M FE R LG

We identified this area as a key audit matter because of the
materiality of the goodwill balance and the uncertainty of
estimation made by management on the key assumptions.
HABRLREREAREZEE  DHREAEEHRNER
AR EE BT ERRIEL OGO TEELE

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about the
goodwill impairment assessment are included in notes 3 and
15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
EHEREBRETENERNGH G REES RIENGS M
BHMRMFE3IRI5
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAELENMNEEERELER

Our audit procedures included, among others, involving
internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and discount rates used by the Company for
determining the recoverable amounts.

BAMBEZREFERE (AT ERE) BFEABEEZER BB
M EERRREE AT NE S EAERAN A ERBEEX -

We examined the underlying data used, such as the
management projection on the future revenues and operating
results by investigating whether the forecasts were consistent
with the financial performance of each CGU during the year of
2022; and we examined the business development plans and
historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the growth
rate of each CGU. We assessed the sensitivity analysis
performed by the Group’s management on the impact of
changes in the key assumptions.

BMEZMBOERESE  fINEREHRKBARLE
FENTER - HERACERFEARTEH20NFEATE
HEEMNPBRRE B BERMERSReELEMNE
BERRILBEFERR  UFESRSELEBUMNIE
RE -FATHEEEEEERTIERRETNTEME
TR BRE DT -

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures of
goodwill impairment in the financial statements.
HAMETERBRRTPEESEYFEREMERENT
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Key audit matter

BEELEER

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

B S BRI R B 5 BRI

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
RMB191,010,000, after making loss allowance of RMB9,274,000.
202212 4318 - EHE 1R AR #9,274,0007T1%
EEENZEZRKFAER/ARKE191,0100007T °

Management assessed the expected credit losses on trade
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected credit loss rates. The Group used judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history,
ageing profile of the receivables, existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

ERERBAEMENLREREEBRXNRRIHESE
WHIENFEREEEERE -REESEBETEL - BYWKIE
WEREKRER REMARSHRERROAE LA 88
= 5% HE MEH 2 FRR SR EREF B ARUE -

We identified this area as a key audit matter because of the
magnitude of the balance of trade receivables and that the
assessment of the expected credit losses on trade receivables
involved significant judgements and estimates made by
management.

HABRLREREAREZEE - DHRNE 5 ERFIRE
HEFEESREFIENTAREEBENEE S R EEE
B8 K H B M (5 o

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about the
provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables are
included in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

FHE SRR ENBREEFERBHENEANS R
KEDRENERE M BHRRMFEIRI8 -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAELENMNEEERELER

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included the followings:
BAFEEZRRFENBREEERRENEREFE
BIATEE :

(i) Understanding, evaluating and testing management’s key
controls in relation to the assessment of the expected
credit losses on trade receivables;

THE - FHERAFERER B E SR KKIATEH
BEEEE AT

(i) Assessing the appropriateness of the credit loss
provisioning methodology adopted by management;

AEESEEMRANEEBERETENSEN
(ili)  Assessing the reasonableness of the forward-looking
factors and the estimated credit loss rates by considering
historical cash collection performance and movements of
the ageing of trade receivables, and taking into account
the market conditions;
BRZRE LR WEIRE NE 5 EUGKIARE & 2
8 Witk AR EEREHEEHEX
B A IRIE
(iv)  Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis
of trade receivables prepared by the management; and
BT ER A E IR E iR R E 5 W IR R E 5 HTHY
N R

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
the provision for loss allowance.

REFEERBRENHERE -

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures of
trade receivables in the financial statements.
BZMTEFEMBEREPEEEHE S EKGIEMIERE
DM -



OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 1% 2B RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 1% SRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely

to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 1% SRS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we  EEBZEZESERMNFIEP - HMIHET H ABRB4L
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit A EHENEZZHEZHNEIE - AMEKREEE
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 1% ZE18 o I MFEX BN R E P ZEEH - B IEE
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our  RIVERIATARBEEZEEE  KEBRKER K
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure &R T @ WA BEHERMHREF ERE BB EKD
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we  BEERBHEEMNARFE - BIFFURETEIER
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report EHRBEBZEE -

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent ~ HAKRB I ZEAMBmENEZEE AR ABEEE

auditor’s report is Lawrence KW. Lau. (Lawrence KW. Lau) °
Ernst & Young TG TR SEE AR
Certified Public Accountants ME2ETAD

Hong Kong BB

23 March 2023 20233 H23H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ROBRNEMEBWAR

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 12831 B IEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARET T
REVENUE Wz 5 1,103,122 1,129,974
Cost of sales 55 K AR (846,751) (809,569)
Gross profit EF 256,371 320,405
Other income and gains = PN 5 16,830 11,230
Selling and distribution expenses HERSIHAXZ (1,003) (1,190)
Administrative expenses THAX (132,743) (134,877)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & @& E R EEBFHE (7,863) (2,854)
Other expenses Ei (878) (5,762)
Finance costs B & A AN 7 (2,779) (19)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B4 A & F 6 127,935 186,933
Income tax expense Fri5 5 = 10 (34,079) (48,581)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRIEF 93,856 138,352
Attributable to: AT &7 el -
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZ PN 91,990 127,955
Non-controlling interests IR 1,866 10,397
93,856 138,352
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERESEFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhEERER
THE PARENT 12
Basic AR
— For profit for the year — F R A RMBO0.22 RMBO.31
AK¥0.227T ARHE0317T
Diluted BE
— For profit for the year — F R A RMBO0.22 RMBO.31
ARK¥®¥0.227T ARME0317T

ABEEEMERAT - —B-—FEH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
moBaRHEMEBBAR

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 1280 IEFE

2022 2021

20224 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETR ARETTT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FEREMEERA
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MERFLIE = —

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZEBRALE

THE YEAR 93,856 138,352

Attributable to: AR & 79 FEAE -
Owners of the parent BRARIEA A 91,990 127,955
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 1,866 10,397
93,856 138,352

m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
m O 8 B iR in R

31 December 2022

2022412 A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥F T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 13 19,111 17,316
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 — a1
Goodwill EES 15 175,050 205,460
Other intangible assets Him\EZEE 16 87,734 136,020
Deferred tax assets FEIETIE & B 25 2,996 8,031
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 284,891 367,268
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 17 6,840 9,543
Trade receivables =07Y 3¢ QL] 18 191,010 122,230
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFRIE - B R
other assets HEEMEE 19 110,148 55,386
Due from related companies JiE Y B R B SRR 33 440,523 90,241
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABEN
profit or loss TEEE 1,009 —
Cash and bank balances Ba MIRTT4 20 545,729 697,612
Total current assets REEERE 1,295,259 975,512
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables =078 INE/e: 21 151,139 74,963
Other payables and accruals H B IE&
fEstE A 22 179,305 200,004
Contract liabilities ARAaE 23 227,468 180,896
Due to related companies JE 1 BF S 2 R 5RIR 33 — 5,556
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &8 R1T R HE &K 24 13,822 —
Lease liabilities HeaE 14 1,399 1,380
Tax payable FET R IE 51,184 34,601
Total current liabilities REBERRE 624,317 497,400
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 670,942 478112
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEBARDERE 955,833 845,380
LEBBEMERAT - —B-—FER m



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RO MRIRNE
31 December 2022
2022412 A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t B8R 77 & E b & 3K 24 44,735 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 25 20,910 33,121
Total non-current liabilities R EEEE 65,645 33,121
Net assets BEFE 890,188 812,259
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BAREBE AELER
the parent
Share capital &N 26 3,764 3,764
Reserves w1 27 869,043 777,053
872,807 780,817
Non-controlling interests JEIE S 17,381 31,442
Total equity U e e 890,188 812,259
Zeng Junkai Zeng Zixi
2% 2 FER
Director Director
EBE EBE

m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GORRBERE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 12831 B IEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BARETAEMN

Statutory Non-
surplus  Retained
reserve profits

EEBR

Bt RE 4
RMB'000 RMB'000

Share
capital

Share
premium

Total
equity

Merger
reserve

controlling

Total interests

B RGEE
RMB00O  RMB'000

REER
RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARKTT

o FERER
RMBOOD  RMB'000

b
RMB000

Note 26
K1zt 26

Note 27
fitzE27

Note 27
Fizk27

Note 27
WizEa7

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 3,764 408,649 103,788 24,939 149,048 690,188 30,227 720,415
Total comprehensive income FRZARANEE

for the year — — — — 127,955 127,955 10,397 138,352
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHENB LR — — — — — — 26,269 26,269
Acquisition of non-controlling Y FE v AR R 2

interests — — (15,939) — — (15,939) (18,361) (34,300)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBEAT — — — — — - (12,485) (12,485)
Final 2020 dividend paid BIRIT2020F KA S - (21,387) — — — (21,387) — (21,387)
Dividends declared to BEIRTIER

non-controlling shareholders R B — — — — — — (4,605) (4,605)
Transfer from retained profits BREARE RN - — — 18,544 (18,544) — — —
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 128318 3,764 387,262* 87,849* 43,483*% 258,459* 780817 31,442 812,259
At 1 January 2022 R202%F1 818 3,764 387,262* 87,849* 43,483*  258,459* 780,817 31,442 812,259
Total comprehensive income FRZARNEE

for the year = = = = 91,990 91,990 1,866 93,856
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LA = = = = = = (9,910) (9,910)
Dividends declared to EERTIER

non-controlling shareholders Hxiﬂxu = = = - - — (6,017) (6,017)
Transfer from retained profits ERERB LA — — — 13,799 (13,799) — — —
At 31 December 2022 R202%F12A318 3,764 387,262* 87,849* 57,282*% 336,650* 872,807 17,381 890,188

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
RMB869,043,000 (2021: RMB777,053,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

ZERBREBENGEAUBRRARTHESREA
R #869,043,0007T (20214 : AR#777,053,0007C) ©

MSBRBEEMERAR - —B=—FFH



CDNSDLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

||-7.|' o Iﬁ ﬁ ;ﬁ ;

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 1280 IEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBRE
ACTIVITIES e
Profit before tax: BR A AR A 127,935 186,933
Adjustments for: FAEIBE -
Depreciation of items of property, plant Wz - BB NEEIEE
and equipment e 6,13 5,175 4671
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEERE 6,14 441 441
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEthmEEEH 6,16 21,354 20,950
Losses on disposal of items of property, H:'n’%f’@ﬁ W7 k&
plant and equipment IHEWEE 6 1,671 270
(Gains)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries eR =My
(Wezs) /18 6 (3,479) 2,296
Impairment losses recognised in EEREMEERE
financial assets 518 6 7,863 2,854
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (Weam) 5185 58 6 (645) 1,787
Finance costs & B AN 7 2,779 19
Interest income FLEWA 5 (954) (4,1006)
162,140 216,115
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERL,/(8mMm) 2,537 (9,335)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 [ YR IR IE N (100,619) (39,869)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables — TE{ 5K IA  E fth & U 318
and other assets 2 E & A N (65,372) (16,409)
Increase in trade payables 2 5 e 5 IBE AN 83,492 24,097
Increase in other payables and accruals HMENFRERESER
i 45,031 504
Increase in contract liabilities SREEEMN 56,635 31,529
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from  JEUR BB A &) 708
related companies (3&0), Rk (350,282) 38,582
Decrease in amounts due to related FEAS BB B & B R IE R A
companies (5,556) (111)
Increase in restricted cash PR 3R & 18 A0 (380) —
Cash generated from operations KEMSEHEE (172,374) 245,103
Interest received MBI A 945 2,462
Tax paid B8 IE (14,856) (45,515)

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating wgSEE) (TR, s
activities BenEFaa (186,285) 202,050

.m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mBRENER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 12831 B IEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

REZHFBERERE

2022
20224

RMB'000
AR®T T

2021
20214
RMB'000
AREF T

Interest received B U A = 5,579
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWE BWER

equipment ®EIEE 13 (8,921) (8,649)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMEREE 16 (5,306) (7,550)
Acquisition of subsidiaries IR g B 2 A 29 = (271,955)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A 30 (5,808) 13,967
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEAFEFAER

through profit or loss NeREE (1,000) —
Decrease in non-pledged long term mERRETE AT

time deposits 20 = 170,000
Net cash flows used in investing activites REFHFIABERE

R (21,035) (98,608)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHAERE

ACTIVITIES RE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests I iR i o = (34,300)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and &M 83R7T R E M E TS

other borrowings A 68,940 —
Repayments of interest-bearing bank and B &zt BIR1T M E b &

other borrowings (10,341) —
Final 2021 dividend paid B R 52021 F R HAR% B = (21,387)
Dividends paid to non-controlling IR T IEZERAR R AR B

shareholders (1,385) (4,605)
Interest paid 2RFE (2,802) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BMEEEAE(FTA)

activities BenEFs 54,412 (60,292)

AAERBEMAERDLR - —B=—FFRH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mBRENER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F 1280 IEFE

2022 2021
202245 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T T AREF T
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReRESZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GR ),/ hnEEE (152,908) 43,150
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYReEBE2E
of year By 697,605 656,242
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEFE R E BB FRE
net 645 (1,787)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND & XHEEERELE
OF YEAR BEY 545,342 697,605

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HRERBELZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE &R 20 545,729 697,612

Cash and bank balances as stated in the B AR R R ET BB IR & &
statement of financial position RITH 545,729 697,612
Less: Restricted cash B ZBRHIIRE 20 387 7

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the IR&RERFTIIHIR S
statement of cash flows LIReEEY 545,342 697,605

.m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Redsun Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law on 12 December 2019. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group on 17 February
2020. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
7 July 2020. The registered office of the Company is located at
Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

During the vyear, the Group was mainly involved in the
provision of property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and community value-added

services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company of the
Company is Redsun Services Group (Holdings) Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

87} 5 ¥k 2= Bl 5

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

AAREEER

ShE RS S BMAR QR ([ARAF) 72019512
ARERBERSHERREERSHEEMMAX
URBRAEREERAR - REBESFE AR
BIR2020F2 A7 A RAEBERBEHE T AR
ER AT - KRFKRGN B202057 A7EERE
BEER AR AR ER LT o AR A&
9% F &\ A Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin
Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands °

FR-AEETZSRREMEEERS - I
EERERS ML EIBERT -

BEERR ARANERAFTRNEBHER R
BB RSARS ARG S B () BR AR °

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1. RAREEER (@)

BENBATINER
ARBEEWMBERRFEAT :

follows:
Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ KA
£ EXBE EfRA REEDL TERHB
Direct Indirect
Ef 5E3
Redsun Services Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100 —  Investment holding
AERBREFRAT" ERAMREE 50000 T 100 — REBR
Redsun Services (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong — — 100 Investment holding
WGR% (FE) BRAT 30 - - 100 REZER
Hong Yang Property Service Group Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
LEMERBERARLT wE/PER AR 2000000007T - 100 REER
Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 100 Property management
ARLGNEEEERA T mE/mER AR 2000000007 - 00 NEER
Jiangsu Redsun Town Operation and Development Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100 Project management
THLG MR BRERAA mE/PER ARH500000007T - 100 BEER
Nanjing Hongcheng Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Property management
BRLANEERARLE /e AR 50000007 - 100 PEER
Hong Life Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100 Property management
AEENERBERARAF wE/PER AR 1000000007 - 00 NEEE
Nanjing Hong Life Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
ARLEEBEERARAA mE/mER ARHE50000007 - 100 HHRE
Nanjing Hong Life Virescence Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100 Property management
ARIEERERARAR mE/ mER AR500000007T - 00 NEEE
Nanjing Hong Life Decoration Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Decoration services
AR RERTRARA A /e ARHS50000007T - 100 SEHRRE
Nanjing Hong Life Information Technology Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Software maintenance
ARLEREEHRARA A wE/hE R ARH5,0000007T - 00 EiE

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

RAREEER ()

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

BENRBLINER (&)

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ KRS
£ EXHE HERRA RERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
B 4
Nanjing Hong Life Pension Service Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Pension services
BRLERRERBER AR HE/PER ARH50000007T - 100 RS
Nanjing Hong Life Investment Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
BARLEEREERARAR wE/PER ARES50000007 - 100 REER
Shanghai Andi Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,500,000 — 51 Property management
LERBNEERERAT mE/ER AR 35000007 - 51 MEER
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Property management
BT EDZEEERAA mE/ mER ARH5,0000007T - 00 MxEE
Nanjing Yuye Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Property management
ARTENFERERAT HE/ER ARH50000007T - 00 MxREE
Wuhu Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 - 100 Property management
ENTEANEEEARAT wE/PER ARES50000007 - 100 WEER
Huangshan Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
BELTENFERERAT mE/PER AR 10000007 - 00 NEER
Yueyang Yurun Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100 Property management
EBRENEERERAT mE/ mER AR 500000 - 100 DEER
Chizhou Yurun Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100 Property management
EMFENERBER AR e/ PER ARES5000007 - 00 NEEE
Chengdu Honglan Real Estate Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
REAREXERART wE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 100 AR
Wuxi Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
ERLEEEERERAA mE/PER AR 10000007 - 100 MRS
Taixing Hongcheng Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
FRIHEXBERERRA mE/ mER ARH1,0000007T - 100 #FARS
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1l

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. RAREEER (@)

BENBLINER (&)

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ NG
8 B HRRA RERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# k3
Kaifeng Hongyi Real Estate Agency Co, Ltd™ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
Rt REHEELARAT wE/hE R AR 10000007 - 100 ARG
Huzhou Hongyang Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
AMLGEXBERERAA wE/PER ARH1,0000007 - 100 MRS
Nanjing Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BRLEEERMERRA" wE/RE R ARE1,0000007C - 100 AARE
Suzhou Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
FMLEEXBERARLA mE/ PERY ARH1,0000007T - 100 MR
Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BRIELSEERRERAR wE/hE R AR 10000007 - 100 AR
Wuhan Hong Life Real Estate Agency Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
HELERRHELSRERRA wE/PER AR 10000007 - 100 #HRE
Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Life Decoration Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB17,500,000 - 100 Decoration services
ARIEARERRH IRERAT wE/RE R AR17,5000007C - 100 HeHFRR
Xiangyang Hong Life Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
ERIARERERAARAA mE/ PERY ARHE1,0000007T - 100 MR
Nanjing Leiyuan Enterprise Management Consulting Co, Ltd**  PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
ERERCEERANERAT wE/hE R AR 50000007 - 100 AR
Nanjing Hongming Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BRLAEERMERAR wE/PER AR 10000007 - 100 H#HRE
Hefei Hong Life Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
AL EREEERARA A wE/RE R ARH1,0000007T - 100 MR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

RAREEER ()

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

BENRBLINER (&)

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ NG
8 B HRRA RERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# k3

Nanchang Hongnan Real Estate Agency Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BELERNELLERAF wE/hE R AR 10000007 - 100 ARG
Chongging Honglan Real Estate Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
ERURBEERAA" wE/PER AR 10000007 - 100 H#HRE

Jiangyin Hongshun Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
TRILIBEZERERAA mE/ mER ARH1,0000007T - 100 MR

Hefei Hongsheng Decoration Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Decoration services
AR AEESIRARA R mE/ PERY ARH1,0000007T - 100 SEHFRA

Ningbo Yinzhou Hongyuan Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
ERBMLENFERERRT wE/hE R AR 10000007 - 00 NEEE

Nanjing Hongzhi Life Service Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100 Property management
AR ERBER AT wE/PER ARE3,0000007 - 100 PEER

Nanjing Hongyuan Cleaning Service Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 100 Property management
BRLERERBEERAR" mE/ mER AR 30000007 - 00 NEER

Nanjing Hongyuanda Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
BRLEENEERBRAA mE/ PERY ARE1,0000007 - 100 PEER

Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
ERTIELENRERERAR wE/hE R AR 10000007 - 00 NEEE

Ningbo Hongyang Life Service Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
ERAGEERBEERA R wE/PER AR 10000007 - 00 NEEE
Chongaing Hongchuangxinyuan Property Management Co, Ltd**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 67  Property management
ERLAREANEERERLA wE/RE R ARH1,0000007T - 67 MEEE
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31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

1l

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. RAREEER (@)

BENBLINER (&)

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ KRS
£ EXBE ERA RERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
B 4

Taizhou Yuhong Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
FNFIEHELLERAR HE/PER AR 10000007 - 100 FAARS

Huaian Hongwen Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
ERAXERERRBRAT wE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 100 RS
Changzhou Hongcheng Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
B AEXBRER AR mE/ER AR 10000007 - 100 MRS
Nanjing Hongyang Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
ARLAMEERER AT mE/ mER ARE1,000000 - 00 PEER
Taizhou Yucheng Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
FNTHERERLARAA HE/ER ARH1,0000007T - 100 AR

Hefei Hongxin Property Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
ARLTELXERERA R wE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 100 RS
Jiangyin Hongcheng Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
TRUHBELERERA T mE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 100 HHRE
Xuzhou Hongyangmingrui Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,030,000 — 51 Property management
ML ERENFERFRAR mE/ mER ARH1,0300007T - 51 MEEE
Hangzhou Hongtong Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd ** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
AMLBEXBERERRA e/ PER ARH1,0000007T - 100 R

Jiaxing Hongyu Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BAUBRBELRBRAF wE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 100 AR
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2022912 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AFAREEER#E)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBNBLATNER (&)
Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
ERAL/ ERAR BRTEE/ KRR L
%R EEHY ERBRA RERAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE 5E3
Wuhan Hongnan Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
RELHEXBRERA T mE/mERD AR1,0000007C - 100 #HARH
Nanjing Hongyi Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
ARLREXERERAA e/ mERD AR 10000007 - 100 RS
Chuzhou Yuhong Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BNFLEHEELERA A ME /R ARH1,0000007T - 100 FHRK
Chuzhou Yuhong Decoration Engineering Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Decoration services
BMFLESHTIRERA ME/HER AR 50000007 - 100 HMES
Wuhu Yuhong Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BRFLIRHELLARDAT mE/mERD ARE5,0000007C - 100 #HARE
Chizhou Yujiang Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
MR ELEEERA A e/ mERD AR 20000007 - 100 RS
Huangshan Yuhong Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BELFLREHELRLARA A ME/mER AR2,0000007T - 100 FHRK
Nanjing Yuyeda Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
HRTEEEEEMARA A ME/HER ARHE1,0000007T - 00 HHERE
Kunshan Runhong Real Estate Brokerage Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
EIAAEHER AR AT mE/mERD AR1,0000007C - 100 #HARH
Chuzhou Yujiang Real Estate Brokerage Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BNRIEHEERERA A e/ mERD ARH1,0000007T - 100 RS
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2022412 A31H

1l

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. RAREEER (@)

BENBLINER (&)

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to the
Name registration and business share capital Company Principal activities
AL/ ERAR BRTEE/ KRS
£ EXHE HERRA RERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
B M
Chuzhou Yuyang Real Estate Brokerage Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BNFEEBEFLERAR e/ hERD ARE1,0000007C - 100 #ARH%
Wuhan Huidehang Jingying Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB12,000,000 — 80  Property management
RERBTRANERBERAA wE/PER ARH120000007 - 80 NEEE
Hanchuan Huidehang Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 80  Property management
BESTNERBER AR wE/hE R ARH1,0000007T - 80 NEER
Wuhan Huidehang Hangjao Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 64 Property management
REERTERNERBEERARA mE/ mER ARH1,0000007T - 64 NEEE
Wuhan Huidehang Jingying Real Estate Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 80 Consulting services
REERTRREEBRAR e/ hERD ARE1,0000007C - 8 ARG
Wuhan Huidehang Hangjao Jingying Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 64  Property management
Co, Ltd**
REEGMERRRNZRBERAR wE/PER ARE1,0000007 - 64 NEEE
* The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. * ZARRBARRINEEMBATF -
** These companies are subsidiaries of wholly-owned subsidiaries - ZERNRARANRRINEEMBARMNMER

of the Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as
subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control over them.

Note:

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these enterprises are in Chinese.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(‘RMB”") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018—
2020 accompanying IFRS 16, and

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples

[AS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were
no business combinations during the vyear, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

138 Y

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below: (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2
Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the
amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
1 January 2021.
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment

Since there was no sale of items

being available for use, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of

the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BHEXREHIREE @)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

R AN S B ) AR B AT BB B 7 3R 5 2R BRIl 1
BERygEMENT : (8)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below: (Continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets d) EIBRB B R 2ERI2018F 2 2020 £ F /&
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples HERS| BRI RS R 15 - B
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the B RS E YR R B o5 - BUPR B 75 R 5 X A

F165REMTE B R BB 2 5T 2RI F 4157 A

amendments that are applicable to the Group are as

follows: BET - BRARAEENZFETFIEN
B

BRMGREERESREMTA -

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that

an entity includes when assessing whether the BEERERIT G L ERE
terms of a new or modified financial liability are BENKRESHRESRMBENK
substantially different from the terms of the FEEEEEZERNMBEENER-

original financial liability. These fees include only ZEERERRERAEERAZ

those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the vyear, the
amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to |AS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts' >

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 —
Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020
Amendments”)**

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the 2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date
of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, IFRS Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply
it on initial application of IFRS 17

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

2.3 B8R A A BB B 35 3R 5 22 Al

(&)

1 72023F1 A1 B2 B HRBHEE BR AN
2 2024F1 A1 B 2 BB EE BRI AN
3 i < B 7E 58 ) A2 2K B A48 AT SR 4R

4 E FE2022F (5 5] + 202015 5] My £ K B BRIE 3B
F2024F 1 ARz EABNFEEHRME - 1t
AN 2020 18 5] 2022 F 18 5] » BABR BT 7%
MEERIREESRYBRENZS — EANA
H & AR ZK(EENRA N ERE A8 72
B TFER] - WETHESEmAIER RIS A
—

5 A FE 72 20204F 6 7 48 75 Y B B B 765 3R 5 22 Al 88
175 R0IE T - BBR B TS s s A 457 E 1B
BT - MERE R % - 2 IR A A 52023
F1 818 2 A% F I ER e A R g st %
Bl 283955 i 3E B R B 75 3 2 X BI 5 95%

6 BRIEREAZEMSABS EEMABERE
TEH)E BE BTN B X FE FR B RS B A5 SR e 2RI 58 17
S5 BF 51 A

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.

(@) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
(2011) was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the

amendments are available for adoption now.

(b)  Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the
seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain
or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS
16 (i.e, 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(0

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a
right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(d)

Amendments to |AS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(f) Amendments to |AS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to

transactions other than leases and decommissioning

obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition

If the business combination is achieved in stages,

date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:
Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it
can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHEEREE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHRBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) BAEE 7 (48)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b) BZATAEBBERFE TIERM GG :
conditions applies:
() the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBHEAEEEBER-—SBEHOXE
group; NG
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EBLASER(ZS—EBNE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow NA] - [MBARKFARWE AR &
subsidiary of the other entity); B NRNEBRE
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (il ZEBHEAEEER-—F=5FH6
same third party; B

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

Ju

BR—FE=ZTHMAELE M

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for () ZARERE—(EEBEENTE TR
the benefit of employees of either the Group or SEEENEASEABNEREIE
an entity related to the Group; and the REF  REEBEENE S8 & B
sponsoring employers of the post-employment Ex:
benefit plan;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a vi) FZREBAQ AT A TS SR

(vii)

(viii)

person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

(vii)

(viii)
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Office equipment and
electronic and other devices 19%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and

useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date
of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial

year end.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated

useful life of 5 years.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 5-10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Office building 3 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

OcCcurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(¢)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e, removed from the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEEHHREHE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax Fri& %t
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax FST BN EIFRER IR - BERIR S IMNER B
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised BIEHEREH A EERER  MEEMme
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or HWASEETEERRER -

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount AT I E EM B EARERHREEMKEL
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation ERMHFE (RBE) UWERAEEE ST
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been FRRHNZRERIEN - RRTEH B SR
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting Bl sk M BEEA S TS RBEITTE o

period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all BEFHBFERHABERREBREERABEGR
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period AHAEUK2HMEREE CHN —ERE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their RE{E B o

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

Property management services

The Group charged property management fees in
respect of the property management services on a lump
sum basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the received property management fees.
From the property management fees, the Group shall
bear expenses associated with, among others, staff,
cleaning, garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping,
security and general overheads covering the common
areas. During the term of the contract, if the amount of
the property management fees the Group collected is
not sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the
Group is not entitled to request the property owners to
pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
the full amount of the property management fees the
Group charged to the property owners and property
developers as revenue.

These services are performed by an indeterminate
number of acts over a specified period of time.
Accordingly, revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the specified period unless there is evidence
that some other methods better represent the stage of
completion, and the costs of services are recognised as
incurred in connection with performing such services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(b)  Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include sales assistance services, pre-delivery and
consulting services. The term of the contracts for sales
assistance is generally set to expire when the
counterparties notify the Group that the services are no
longer required. Pre-delivery and consulting services are
rendered in a short period of time and there were no
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the
respective periods.

() Community value-added services

The services are rendered in a short period of time and
there were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the
end of the respective periods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to
impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”, together with the MPF Scheme, the
"Defined Contribution Schemes”). This subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain portion of these payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution
Schemes vest fully and immediately with the employees.
Accordingly, (i) for the year ended 31 December 2022, there
was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined
Contribution Schemes; and (i) there were no forfeited
contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing
level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes as
at 31 December 2022.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,, assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e. translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
goodwill was RMB175,050,000 (2021: RMB205,460,000). Further
details are given in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e, by geography, service type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e, gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the property management sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes property management services
income and value-added services income by project locations
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. As all the locations have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in the nature of
property management services, the nature of the
aforementioned business processes, the type or class of the
customer for the aforementioned business and the methods
used to distribute the property management services and
value-added services, all locations were aggregated as one
reportable operating segment.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

E RS HE R A& (@)

EEr T HAMEZE (&)
B RBUHIBN R 5B R R (F)

BREEENGREARBEBERRNEOEG
B AEERRERAEERUAEBEEERS
BERLATEEER - 120 B ERR
(MBEALEREBE) RARR—FARL  KtME
BHOXBEETENEONZELZN  BEEHE
HTHAE REREEH BEBEENEDHE
7T A HT - W ATATIE LRV B L

HBEBRNENE  BAKLERRRERE
ERBHMAREFG —HERNMAE -
BHEEBENSRYRE R AR LB L&
B AEBMBEEEBHRERMEZEENLR
IR AR A REPR B RN EREN
B - FRAKREREZRWFARHEEEE
BRRE&E M RAM T 18KE

e MER

ERERARBMNEERASBETNKLEXE
(BREMEREERBFBASIBERBKA) - SA
HERDERKRFBIELARK - AFELE
ABRURERE  EMEERRBOME -
FRARBRIENEE - Ll RBHEP B
ABRNA K D BL Y 3 E 1B R SR E RIS FT A 77
ERU - BEAMENERAER —EATRER

SAEREEMERAR  —B-—F 5K m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the
Group are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

In 2022, revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB227,223,000 (2021: RMB277,213,000) was derived from
providing property management services and value-added
services to a single customer, including providing property
management services and value-added services to a group of
entities which are known to be under common control with
that customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

ReoHER ()

ih 18 &
HARAEBERENMBELHKEERDERF
AWK LS B ANEEWEIERBEELR
B At DA SN R - #E S 2 5) i [R AR o

EEFEEFNEHR

R20202F BELEEBTHOREZHNARE
227,223,0007T (20214 : AR #277,213,0007T) 2K
BREREEFREYEEERS RIZERE -
BIER— B MEZEF LRZES M EERME
W EEERKG K ER o

Wz ~ EAbIA K Wi
HPROIFTAT :

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers BF A& R

Property management services W) 25 12 AR 75 834,730 753,590

Value-added services to non-property X FRERE
owners 124,612 180,289
Community value-added services RIS ERTE 143,780 196,095
1,103,122 1,129,074
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(Continued)

(a)
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi > Ef A R W (80
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&
Disaggregated revenue information (a)
2021
20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue from customers and REEBEINEF ks
recognised over time
Property management services WEEBERE 834,730 753,590
Value-added services to non-property FJEE FILE RSB
owners 102,632 156,248
937,362 909,838
Revenue from customers and EE-KREBERINEF
recognised at a point in time Wz
Value-added services to non-property X FEERE
owners 21,980 24,041
Community value-added services At [ 18 (B AR 75 143,780 196,095
165,760 220,136

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was

TRETRABERERL S AREH
VeRBENKESHE

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARETTT
Revenue recognised that was included BEREFTAREHRYIE R
in contract liabilities at the beginning BEME
of the reporting period:
Property management services YT IR AR 159,300 133,324

ABEEEMERAT - —B-—FEH
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150}

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that
equals to the right to invoice which corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient to not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts.
The majority of the property management services
contracts do not have a fixed term.

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include sales assistance services, pre-delivery and
consulting services. The term of the contracts for sales
assistance is generally set to expire when the
counterparties notify the Group that the services are no
longer required. Pre-delivery and consulting services are
rendered in a short period of time and there were no
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the
respective periods.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)
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5. W > Htplr A R K5 (80)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFEREWE (8)
(b)  Performance obligations (Continued) b) BEHEE(E)

Information about the Group's performance obligations

BREAKEENEENERBRDT :

is summarised below: (Continued) (#8)
Community value-added services 1 I 15 (8 HR 7%
The services are rendered in a short period of time and AR5 2 RE MR NRM - 3 B8

there were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the

end of the respective periods.

HIR SRR B RBITNEHORTS -

2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Other income and gains Hih e AR Wz

Government grants BT 76 B 9,837 6,597
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR R M= 3,479 —
Interest income A B U A 945 4,106
Foreign exchange difference, net MEH Z5E - FE 645 —

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair & A FEFF ABZIH S #
value through profit or loss BEATFERZ 9 —
Others H A, 1,915 527
16,830 11,230

ABEEEMERAT - —B-—FEH
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B %t A 2t

AEBERHRANENEHBRATSIA

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt AR®T T ARETT
Cost of services provided R R B A A 846,751 809,569
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ ¥ - BB KR EITE
equipment 13 5,175 4,671
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE 14 441 441
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEN 16 21,354 20,950
Losses on disposal of items of HEME  BERZHEE
property, plant and equipment BHEE 1,671 270
(Gains)/Loss on disposal of HERBARM (W),
subsidiaries BR (3,479) 2,296
Foreign exchange difference, net ME R Z% - 53R (645) 1,787
Impairment of trade receivables g 5 RSB RE 18 6,115 2,305
Impairment of financial assets FFATERFIE - e RE
included in prepayments, 1 JE U R IEH) & Bl B B
deposits and other receivables BB 19 1,748 549
Auditor's remuneration 2 SR B 5 2,520 2,520
Employee benefit expense EERMMAZ (TRIEES
(excluding directors’ and chief RERITHABHB) :
executive’'s remuneration):
Wages and salaries TERES 340,935 397,500
Pension scheme contributions BEZoFTEHRIR
and social welfare* gy 87,460 89,174

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the

Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.
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7.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
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BE R A
BMERADHMT :

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tt AR¥T T
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other RITER - B REAM
loans BEEF 2,760 —
Interest on lease liabilities HEBER 19 19
2,779 19
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERESTHRAEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BiE EmRE] - BB R TEHISE383(1)@) * (b)
QOFOEAR AR (HEESFZZER) BHIZE
HEENAEEEERRSTHABEHH W
T

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Fees we 600 604

Other emoluments: HiEs -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind IE& ZBEEMETR 1,996 2,333

Performance related bonuses* FIRBMATEAL* 531 657
Pension scheme contributions and social EXxertgE R kg

welfare B 178 157

3,305 3,751

*

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are associated with the profit after tax of the
Group.

* ARARETHTEFTARESEAKERREZF
EARR R FEAT I 3R -
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTTHRAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHATES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FANRBULIEATESTINTNESOT ¢
during the year were as follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®E T ARETTT
Mr. Zhao Xianbo* 3R J 200 5
Mr. Li Xiao Hang** BT o A 200 83
Mr. Jing Zhishan*** R L 5 A = 17
Ms. Wang Fen TEZL 200 200
Mr. Yim Kai Pung**** BR HE G ot A v — 199
600 604

*%

HXFRH

Mr. Zhao Xianbo has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee of the board with
effect from 23 December 2021.

Mr. Li Xiao Hang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the
nomination committee, the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the board with effect from
2 August 2021.

Mr. Jing Zhishan, an independent non-executive director
of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company, passed away on 3 July
2021.

Mr. Yim Kai Pung has tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of
the audit committee of the board, a member of the
nomination committee of the board and a member of
the remuneration committee of the board with effect
from 23 December 2021.

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year
(2021: Nil).
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

An executive director, non-executive directors
and the chief executive

NOTES

TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

8. EERRSTHRAEHM &)

(b) —EBHITES FHUTEER&ESTT
BAE

Equity-settled Pension Scheme

Salaries, Performance share-based  contributions

allowances and related payment and social Total
Fees benefits in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
MREEEN
1% 2R RARERYG BZLHEUMRT
we BENEN RAMBEA RHRAX  REEEF Hast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR
2022 20225
Executive director: HiTEE:
— Ms. Zeng Zixi — BFBTT = 1424 263 = 85 1,772
Non-executive director FHITEE -
— Mr. Zeng Junkai — BEEE = = = = = =
Chief executive: RETHAR -
— Mr. Yang Guang* —BREE = 452 193 = 69 714
— Mr. Chen Yichun** —REMEE = 120 75 = % 219
— 1,996 531 - 178 2,705
2021 2021%
Executive director: HiTEE:
— Ms. Zeng Zixi —ErELt - 1690 299 - 83 2072
Non-executive directors: FHITEE -
— Mr. Zeng Junkai*** — SRR e — — — — — —
— Mr. He Jieg** — [ e - - - - - -
— Mr. Jiang Dagjang™*** — BERL g - - - - - -
— Mr. Luo Yanbing™**** — BB R e - - - - - -
Chief executive: RETHAR -
— Mr. Yang Guang —BEEE - 643 358 — 74 1,075
- 233 657 - 157 3147
* Mr. Yang Guang has tendered his resignation as an *

executive director, a chief executive and a member of
the nomination committee of the board with effect
from 23 September 2022.

** Mr. Chen Yichun has been appointed as the vice
president, responsible for the overall management of the
Company, with effect from 23 September 2022.

B
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

An executive director, non-executive directors

and the chief executive (Continued)

HXK

KKK

HXKXHHK

HXXHRKK

Mr. Zeng Junkai has been appointed as the chairman of
the board, a non-executive director, an authorised
representative, the chairman of the nomination
committee of the board and a member of the audit
committee of the board with effect from 23 December
2021.

Mr. He Jie has tendered his resignation as the chairman
of the board, a non-executive director and an authorised
representative of the Company, and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the board and a member of
the audit committee of the board with effect from
23 December 2021.

Mr. Jiang Dagiang has tendered his resignation as a
non-executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee of the board with effect from
26 February 2021.

Mr. Luo Yanbing has tendered his resignation as a
non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the board with effect from 9 July 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEBEFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FAN AEmEaTHEERE —REEURE
director and the chief executive (2021: one director and the SITBAB Q021F : —ZEZUREEITERA
chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in 8)  EHMFEHN EXXHiEEs o WIEARRF]
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the BEEABRTHRABNBRT=2 Q021F: =5)
remaining three (2021: three) highest paid employees who are e MEEFANTMFEOT
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind TE - ZBREYESN 1,664 2,307
Performance related bonuses FIREIEAT 273 352
Pension and social welfare EX e RiteEH 198 142
2,135 2,801
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest TR TEHENIEZERIIEERITHRAE
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BREFES ABAT

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

BEAH

2022 2021
20225 20214

Nil to HK$500,000 = Z500,00078 7T — —
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T E

1,500,000/ 7T 1 2

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FrE8%H

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to
the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands are not subject to any
income tax. The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong are not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
generally subject to the PRC corporate income tax at a rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2022, excluding certain
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are either located
in western cities (subject to a preferential income tax rate of
15%) or qualified as Small and Micro Enterprises (subject to a
preferential income tax rate of 2.5% or 5%) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

AEBERAEEXNE QARG REERER
BRtEERESNREENGHIZERELE
BWFTEH - RERASHERABHERRES
MRBIKER  AEBERFAESHEREBER
RESEMASAME R R BERNTRIE
e REBRBBEMAZONE R FEES
METEH > BAZERARREE2022%12A3]
HIEFEYEREBEENTMERTEF

HE2002F1N2A3ALEE  AEERFERA
Hh A & RO B B A B — MR 2B HR 25% B B R AN
BERMER - BR T EZE202F12A318 ILEF
B & B A FE 2Bk T A9 BT B 2 B (32 15%8/9
e BB ) sk Ml 5 E & GE R 2.5%3%
S%EBEATSHBIER) -

2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT

Current tax: BIEAR I8
Corporate income tax EMEH 34,502 53,018
Deferred tax (note 25) iR AT B 38 (M 71 25) (423) (4,437)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBES HBE 34,079 48,581
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10.

11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRi5H (#)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit ARal REWB R RGFMAE AT B EIZA
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which TE B R 5T E A BR TR AR A R 80 FT 15 B B s
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income REBRFAEREGENMSHRAIHEROT
tax expense at the effective income tax rate is follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARETT
Profit before tax B % B i A 127,935 186,933
Tax at the statutory income tax rate RIETE PTG R AT 31,984 46,733
Tax effect of subsidiaries with preferential ZEEEMENNBEARMN
tax rate mEEE (6,396) (5,750)
Income not subject to tax BARB WA (4,211) —
Expenses not deductible for tax TAIHIRE B =2 521 1,391
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B) A BT AR TR B 18 (32) —
Tax losses not recognised RIERRTBIEE B 11,807 425
Losses not subject to tax HARTEE 406 5,782
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEREEEREHEAENT
B 34,079 48,581
DIVIDENDS 11. RE
No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company. RARRZMHEEEMERE o

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 415,000,000 (2021: 415,000,000) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years of 2022 and 2021 in respect
of a dilution as the Group had no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the years.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

12. BRAREERESRSEEARGERET

BEREABNSBEIREG QA EBRERR
BABIEFRENNRFRAEETERRNINE

SE 5 80415,000,0000% (20214 = 415,000,0000%) 5t
E o

14 5L 20224 N 20214 [E BT £ 71| T IR B A & F
SHEEHBEREAE  RRAAEENFR
W BEEE LB -

BEREAREERMNOFERELER

based on:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETTT
Earnings &R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 5+ & B EE AR K7 855 &2 FI|
of the parent, used in the basic and A RRERARERRTTR
diluted earnings per share calculation: ABMRER] -
From continuing operations REFELEETRS 91,990 127,955
Number of shares
ignig |
2022 2021
20224 20214
Shares Iz 17
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEERERREEAT M
shares in issue during the year used in AEANBETEBRMNE
the basic and diluted earnings per share T8
calculation 415,000,000 415,000,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERSZE

Office equipment
and electronic and Leasehold  Construction in

other devices  improvements progress Total

WORE
EFRHMKE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HEXE ERIE Azt

ARET ARKTR ARBTFR AR#TFR

31 December 2022 2022% 128311

At 1 January 2022 R202F1R1A

Cost B 21,674 6,647 2,191 30,512

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (11,309) (1,887) — (13,196)

Net carrying amount REFE 10,365 4,760 2,191 17,316
At 1 January 2022, net of accumnulated M02E 1818 - MK B:tE

depreciation 10,365 4,760 2,191 17,316
Additions RE 3,324 680 4,917 8,921
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HEWRB AR (FFE30) (280) — — (280)
Disposals & (1,145) (526) — (1,671)
Transfer B 1,628 3,298 (4,926) —
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERME (Mo

(note 6) (4,233) (942) = (5,175)
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated W202% 128318

depreciation MR EFIHE 9,659 7,270 2,182 19,111
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12318

Cost A 24,760 10,077 2,182 37,019

Accumulated depreciation ZiE (15,101) (2,807) — (17,908)

Net carrying amount REFE 9,659 7,270 2,182 19,111

AAERBEMAERDLR - —B=—FFRH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. ¥ ¥ - BE KR & (&)
Office equipment
and electronic and Leasehold Construction in
other devices improvements progress Total
LI
EFREMEE HEEE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARET ARET
31 December 2021 20215124318
At 1 January 2021 R202151R1R
Cost AR 17,834 3,459 1633 22926
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (8338) (778) — (9,116)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,496 2,681 1633 13810
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated RO2NE1R1E - IR BEHE
depreciation 9,496 2,681 1,633 13,810
Additions NE 2,885 3,031 2,733 8,649
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) U ER BT B A 8] (Bi3E29) 895 — — 895
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HERB AR (FEE30) (439) (658) — (1,097)
Disposals HE (246) (24) — (270)
Transfer BE 1,186 989 (2,175) —
Depreciation provided during the year ERTERME (Mitte)
(note 6) (3412 (1,259 — (4,671)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated R2021F12A318 Mk 25t
depreciation e 10,365 4760 2191 17316
At 31 December 2021 2021128318
Cost A 21,674 6,647 2,191 30512
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (11,309) (1,887) — (13,196)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,365 4,760 2191 17316
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14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group entered a lease contract with a fellow subsidiary to
lease certain building as offices. The lease has a lease term of
three years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@)  Right of use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

14. HE

REBESEBEA
AEFE-FRRXNBARIZEESR - X
HEETBTIERNRAE - HENEBR/=F -
—RME  AREITEEAREEAINERMNE
HEEEE -

@) RAEELE
AEBENEREEENREENLLENER

and the movements during the year are as follows: REEAT :

Office buildings
BFE
RMB'000
ARBTT
As at 1 January 2021 20211 H1H 882
Additions NE —
Depreciation charge TEXH (441)

As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 202112 431 &
2022F 1A 1H a1
Additions NE —
Depreciation charge TEXL (441)

As at 31 December 2022

202212 831 H —

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

871 75 ¥R 2% Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31H
14. LEASES (Continued) 14. HE (@)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the HEBBENREENRNGE AR E S0
movements during the year are as follows: N
2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET R ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1ATEEREE 1,380 1,361
Accretion of interest recognised FAMANEEE
during the year 19 19
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31AMREE 1,399 1,380
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BIEAEL > 1,399 1,380
Non-current portion FEBNEREB > = —
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation () BHEEREBRERNEZEHEUT -

to leases are as follows:

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Interest on lease liabilities HESGEFE 19 19
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEERELZN

assets (note 6) (Kt 5Ee) 441 441

Total amount recognised in profit or loss MR8 HER R 4E S 58 460 460
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B7 ¥ ¥R 2R Bfd 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
15. GOODWILL 15. B8
RMB'000
ARETTT
As at 1 January 2021 202151 A1 H
Cost (DN 31,303
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE —
Net carrying amount BREFAE 31,303
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment R2021F 1 AT HBKA
ks REHRE 31,303
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W g HT B A B (M 7E29) 186,458
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A (12,301)
Impairment during the year FARAE —
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 2021612 A31 BRIRCA
NEREDFE 205,460
As at 31 December 2021 M2021512 431 H
Cost A 205,460
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE —
Net carrying amount BREFE 205,460
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment R2022F 1 H1HEAA -
Mk 25RE 205,460
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) L E B A F (HEE30) (30,410)
Impairment during the year FARE =
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 B AIRKA
NEREDFE 175,050
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 4314
Cost B AR 175,050
Accumulated impairment RETRE =
Net carrying amount BREFE 175,050

UBHBEMERAT - “F-FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

In January 2021, the Group acquired an 80% interest in
Huidehang Jingying Property Management Co., Ltd. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"Huidehang”) from an independent third party.

In April 2021, the Group acquired an 80% interest in Jiangsu
Gaoli Meijia Property Management Co. Ltd, Nanjing Gaoli
Property Management Co. Ltd. and their wholly-owned
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Gaoli”) from an
independent third party and disposed of its total 80% equity
interests to an independent third party on 25 July 2022.

In November 2021, the Group acquired an additional 49%
interest in Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Co., Ltd. and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"Chuzhou Yurun”) from a non-controlling shareholder.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit; and

Huidehang cash-generating unit.

Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit

The
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a

recoverable amount of the Chuzhou Yurun

value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 18.04% (2021: 18.3%) per annum. The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2.2% (2021: 2.2%).
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15.

' (&)

R2021F1 B AEBRB L E = FREBIERSTT
ERMEEREERARLEZENBAT (K8
[FE1S7T7]) 80%AIHE S ©

R202156F4 8 - REERBLE=FIRETIHRS
NERMEERRR BERRIVEEEBR
REIREZEMRBRR (SB[ = ])80%H
= WHR2022F7 A5 HMBYE=AHEES
FH800% HY AR FE o

202111 8 » 2N & [m) FF 128 A% A% 5 UK B R N
FHEOEERERARLEZEMBAT (K8
[ = ) 58N 9% B #E 2 o

2R E R &
BREBEHESHNHBEIRZEATHEE
HEEB

BMFEREELER R
ESTRSE LB -

BMFBE 2 ELEEN

BNFEE S EEEMAIKRESEIREE
REBFEREEE ZAEFZERNBAER
EBiEAREAFHEAMNTBEBERSIENHER
EMETEA - BE R E TR R AT AL IR X
A E18.04% (20214 1 183%) - AR B A F
@RS MENIBRER22% (20214 1 2.2%) °



15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Huidehang cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Huidehang cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by management. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
18.14% (2021:
extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2.2%
(2021: 2.2%).

17.9%)per annum. The growth rate used to

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amounts to exceed
the recoverable amounts of the Chuzhou Yurun
cash-generating unit and the Huidehang cash-generating unit.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022912 A31H
%E (mﬁ
2R B R & ()
EETHEELEN
ESTHReELSBUMAIWESENREER
BEFEREEE  ZABAEZERNBERERE

HEAREAFHEANVEBEMSNENRE
mETER  BEeREEAEBNRAIGRIR R A
FH18.14% (20214F : 17.9%) ° F 7 HE B 71 4F B
% IR &M= AL R K 52.2% (20214 © 2.2%) °

AEEEEERREREEFEINEEZRR
MERSEAEESHT2E ﬁ(ﬁ)‘l‘\?ﬁﬁﬁ?
ABUNMESTREELEUNREIEBRR
WEE R -

PEEFRCELBVMNFHENKREENAT

2021

20214F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFTT

Chuzhou Yurun BN T 19,002 19,002

Huidehang PE1FTT 156,048 156,048

Gaoli ah = 30,410

Total 5 175,050 205,460
Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the AEBNFERSELABMNRESITHRESES

Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit and the Huidehang
cash-generating unit for 31 December 2022. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

B R2022F 123 BNEREEEFER TR
R TR EIRE AT 2R AR e
HEBE S REBAAMKENSIEEBHRE

MSBRBEEMERAR - —B=—FFH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted sales amounts are based
on the historical data and management'’s expectation on the
future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Long term growth rate — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the annual revenue growth rates is the
annual revenue achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The pre-tax discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the annual
revenue growth rates of Chuzhou Yurun and Huidehang and
pre-tax discount rates are consistent with external information

sources.
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77 Rl (BRI = (48)
BEWRA — REHEENERELHERER
JE I RK T 5 TR M EE °

WHERIE — AR EEA RS EHENEE
FAMEEAREEE RN MRENTHE
HE  AHERRERERBATSER L
I=:F

EMEEE — MAEEAER R R E
1B F 3 0 200 20 5 1 0 L 4 O BB O
MR 6 TE R Bl T A T B R A
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BABETIE — PRI R AR RR
B BB O E LR -

BERMNTRRESTHFERAERRNE
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2022

2022912 H31H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

16. HttEFLEE

Customer
relationship Software Total

EFEE Lo mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR¥Tx

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of

202241 A1 B RIBAS

accumulated amortisation OB R AT 5 125,934 10,086 136,020
Additions NE = 5,306 5,306
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HEH B A A (HEE30) (31,819) (419) (32,238)
Amortisation provided during the FRHHBE (Mike)

year (note 6) (19,699) (1,655) (21,354)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 74,416 13,318 87,734
At 31 December 2022 2022124318

Cost BN 116,494 16,927 133,421

Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (42,078) (3,609) (45,687)

Net carrying amount SR AE 74,416 13,318 87,734

UEBEEBERAT - B FEH m‘
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B 5 #R 2R Bff 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31H
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. HMEEEE (&)
Customer
relationship Software Total
EEBIE CIgEs HRET
31 December 2021 2021128318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTRT ARETT
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 20211 A1 BHRIRA
accumulated amortisation IR BT 5 35,235 2,983 38,218
Additions NE — 7,550 7,550
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) U BB B8 A A (M9 5E29) 116,537 275 116,812
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HEMB AR (:E30) (5,464) (146) (5,610)
Amortisation provided during the FR# R (Mike)
year (note 6) (20,374) (576) (20,950)
At 31 December 2021 R20214F12 8318 125,934 10,086 136,020
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H
Cost DN 148,313 12,040 160,353
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (22,379) (1,954) (24,333)
Net carrying amount BREFE 125,934 10,086 136,020
17. INVENTORIES 17. ®E
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREEFTT
Parking spaces E=Xiv] 6,833 9,344
Consumables FEM 7 199
6,840 9,543
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. B ZEWRIA
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
Trade receivables 2 5 EWRIE 200,284 126,959
Impairment A (9,274) (4,729)
191,010 122,230
Trade receivables mainly arise from property management EZRUBRIBEEXEZREMEERRBUEA - K
services income. The Group's trading terms with its customers SEEXFAXSIBREZUNEERER
are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where MEPRIN IRFPBEZTHEENR - AEEH
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to P H W R EE E W AR AR FE RG22 1) - R
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has EEEEIMUZREREEERR - @ EBAH
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue SREREETHEN mEFEERESA
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and e —R - ZEEI EMZBEBRAEENE FE
credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a WRIBREAREZTEER  REESEET
month. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the WEERR - E5EWKIBERTE °
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the REEBR - ERK SR B B MR EE
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition, BRENEZEWFIERESTEAT :
net of provision for the loss allowance for impairment, is as
follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTTT
Within one year —F IR 138,292 91,338
Over one year and within two years —FAERMERR 39,731 26,094
Over two years and within three years MEA ER=FUR 11,146 3,548
Over three years =FE 1,841 1,250

191,010 122,230

UBREEESRAT  —E-—FEH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. B 5 EWFRIE (8)
The movements in provision for the loss allowance for B S RWIEREBEREESNT
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKETTT
At the beginning of the year REH 4,729 2,424
Disposal of subsidiaries HE B A A (1,570) —
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EERREREE (HiTe) 6,115 2,305
9,274 4729

An impairment analysis was performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates were based on the ageing of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflected the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that was available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables were
written off if their ageings were more than three years and
were not subject to enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
20229124318
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. E 3 WA ()
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure ATEHYAEEFRAEEEETENE SRR
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: HEEERRERE :
As at 31 December 2022 720226128318
Past due
B
1 to 2 to Over
Current 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
BN AR 1226 2E34F 3 E At
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 2.79% 7.00% 10.86% 34.25% 4.63%
Gross carrying amount HERHEE
(RMB'000) (ANREFTT) 142,258 42,722 12,504 2,800 200,284
Expected credit losses EHEEERE
(RMB'000) (ANR®EFT) 3,966 2,991 1,358 959 9,274
As at 31 December 2021 2021612 431 H
Past due
i 5
1 to 2 to Over
Current 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
BN ER 1226 2E3F 3FLAE 5t
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 2.88% 4.08% 9.07% 30.94% 3.72%
Gross carrying amount HERTEE
(RMB'000) (AR®ETFTT) 94,044 27,203 3,902 1,810 126,959
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE
(RMB'000) (ANR®FT) 2,706 1,109 354 560 4,729

UEBEEBERAT - B FEH m‘



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. FEIRE - HttEWREBEREMEE
OTHER ASSETS

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®¥ T AR¥ET T

Prepayments on behalf of customers to utility AREREFEAHEEMRE

suppliers 7 S T TR R IE 41,528 26,209
Consideration receivables from disposal of HEWNBRARNEWKRE
subsidiaries 30,182 —
Other deposits Htiz® 22,558 19,789
Advance to staff M8 TIEH B 5,201 6,099
Due from non-controlling shareholders JFEUS JEYE AR B R 3R IR 4,361 —
Other tax recoverable H b 7] Uk [B] 4 18 1,281 1,908
Others HAh 7,746 2,923
112,857 56,928
Impairment allowance Ve RIEREL ] (2,709) (1,042)
110,148 55,886
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HMERFIBRRESEREZESNT :

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AR®EFTT

At the beginning of the year NG (1,042) (580)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA A 81 87

Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFE (5te) (1,748) (549)

At the end of the year MER (2,709) (1,042)
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are unsecured, TATRRIE - At EBGRIE R A EES REE
non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. H 2 EEETERMY EMiZe REWE

Other deposits and amounts due from third parties mainly “HREFERBEHEENIES -

represent deposits with suppliers.
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19.

20.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Where applicable, an impairment analysis is performed
annually by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings. In the
situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The applied loss rate where there
are no comparable companies as at 31 December 2022 was
5.00% (2021: 5.00%).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19.

20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

FE AR
(%)

HibtEWREAREMEE

WEA BFRREEAHAEATIANTEL
RARKBABRETRES T  WEEHR
BEEEAFIRNITEALRAR - AIEREARE
ErRABELaRABRREGHNESEER
B - BRXRERBEERFEELARURBRE
AR S0 R 39 2R SRAS B AR 0 B9 TR © R 2022412
A318 fEAELRABIBRAT  EAKNE
B R 5500% (20214F : 5.00%) °

RERBREEEY

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR Tt AREET T

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTE 545,729 697,612
545,729 697,612

Less: Restricted cash B XBRHIIRE 387 7
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 545,342 697,605

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

ARBIGEHIBEAEMEY  BRES
P Y CHMNE B IR 15k M)) SR KRB EE - EE R HEE
BRE)  ANEERBEREETINE XBR
RITHARBLBABEMER -

RITREREBE ARITERIRIZFZ BN EER
BAME - BRERBITERDFENORL EE
MM EERFRT RekREFEYN
FREEEEAFERS -

SAEREEMERAR  —B-—F 5K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

20.

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the internal credit ratings of
restricted cash, time deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of the restricted cash, time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and measured the
impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses, and
has assessed that the expected credit losses are immaterial.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

200 RERBSEFEY @

7202256124318 - XBRHIR S « TEHFERA
MRS RECEBEVHNRNBEETRFER AR
BREFERH - AEBTE  XRGIRE - EH
BRUARBR e KRR EEY B VRERURE
BERRIEBEZEN  WE2EABHEEES
B ERE THCEHEEBBETEK -

21. EZENARE

RIBEHR BEREZAHNE Z RN RER
oM

2022 2021

20226 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Within 1 year —F UK 149,931 73,936
Over 1 year Bl —F 1,208 1,027
151,139 74,963

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade

payables approximated to their fair values and are normally
settled within 1 year.

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22, HttENRERETER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARKETTT
Receipts on behalf of community residents for B AFEERERLRERES
utilities Wit R B W R 40,860 34,248
Deposits received Bl ® 46,570 44,029
Other tax payable H Ath e F 18 16,957 17,690
Advances related to parking space agency BHEBEMNRIBRBEHRR
service 1,569 7,089
Payroll and welfare payable JERT T & RAEF 39,885 65,722
Dividends payable to non-controlling JE A< FE 12 AR IR SR AR B,
shareholders 4,632 —
Others Hth 28,832 31,226
179,305 200,004
Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The HMENRIEAEERWERERER - EM
fair values of other payables at each reporting date ERZRERSREAHNAFEEEBENR
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. HEEESE °
23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EREEE
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Short-term advances received from customers — YWERE 5 #9452 B £ 3
Property management services Y ¥EEIE RS 222,851 176,900
Community value-added services [RGB RIS 4,617 3,996
227,468 180,896
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing AEBRBEVEEESRAMBEERHARAR
schedules as established in the property management PREBSR - REEBRERBESR (E2XRE
contracts. A portion of payments is usually received in advance )2 B IR ARG ) B 49 A HR AT UCER BF 95 5K e

of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from
property management services.

ABBHREERAT B -FFH @



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022%F 12 A31H

24,

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

24. FFRBITREMMER

BORROWINGS
2021
20214
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
B A2 (%) 28 ARET T ELEID 8 ARBTT
Current BN &
Current portion of long term R EIRITEFE
bank loans — secured BIEE S — &
i 435 2023 13,822 — — —
Non-current FEENE
Bank loans — secured RITER — B
gl 435 2026 44,735 — — —
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARKETTT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: AR T HFEEEMNR
TEH:
Within one year or on demand —F AR EK 13,822 —
In the second year REBEZF 13,820 —
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FEFRF
(BREREMF) 30,915 —
58,557 —
The Group's bank loans are secured by mortgages over 80% AEENRITERDHREEFITHREMES

equity of Wuhan Huidehang Jingying Property Management
Co., Ltd and guaranteed by Nanjing Hong Yang Property

Management Co., Ltd.

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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25. DEFERRED TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

25, IEIERIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

REANEEHREEERBBENEFHNT

Impairment
losses Tax losses Total
WEEER HEBER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F T AR¥ETFTT AR®F T
At 1 January 2021 #202141 A1 8 439 6,286 6,725
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B 2 A)
(note 29) (M$3E29) 681 1,170 1,851
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ FREFA (FFH)
profit or loss during the year BaeRLENIE
(note 10) (KtzE10) 1,119 (1,664) (545)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 &
1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 2,239 5,792 8,031
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ FREt A (FBRH)
profit or loss during the year B EERIE
(note 10) (MFEE10) 1,959 (5,792) (3,833)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AT (1,202) — (1,202)
At 31 December 2022 FR2022%F12A31H 2,996 — 2,996

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR

/209



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in
arising from excess of
acquisition of related
subsidiaries depreciation Total
g B it B 2 B ERE
BYATE 8 i AE BE
AR e Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2021 7202141818 8,809 1,526 10,335
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B 8 A B
(note 29) (M43E29) 29,134 — 29,134
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HEN B AR
(BE30) (1,366) - (1,366)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRKRE,(GTA)
profit or loss during the year BB IEERIE
(note 10) (M$3E10) (5,093) 1171 (4,982)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 &
1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 31,484 1,637 33,121
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) HENB A A
(Bft7E30) (7,955) — (7,955)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to AR H, (Gt A)
profit or loss during the year B A IEER IR
(note 10) (M$3E10) (4,925) 669 (4,256)
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 18,604 2,306 20,910
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25.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B3 Rk 2R Bit 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

3 FIE 75 7H (80

EEBIREE (&

MEFME - E?LL%RIEQF&ETEE AR
BHBERAERANER - L TARPERRE N
ME AR ERETIBAER DT :

2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®¥ T AREFTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R E BB AR R &R MR
consolidated statement of financial position RIRERTRE EFE 2,996 8,031

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE MBI &R NHER

consolidated statement of financial position FIRIER I8 & & )FE (20,910) (33,121)
(17,914) (25,090)

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB42,837,000 (2021: RMB36,822,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following item:

AEBTERFPREAMEENTEEEBARE
42,837,0007T (2021 4F : AR #36,822,00070) ' #§
R—ZERFEm AN ERRERHRFE -
HRZEEBEEBNRASIEBERSKNNE QR
BT RAMRERE S AT BEEEEHENE
REFE MU ERZEBERRELCHRIBE
Eo

WEIAT IR B ERELERAEE :

Tax losses

IR 5 18

2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETF T
17,443 17,037

AAERBEMAERDLR - —B=—FFRH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

25.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

The above tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the above item as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above item
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group’s fund will
be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of the
Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
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ALK L BN IR B R E R IMEEE TR
AR BB 10% M TR o 5% R E B 200841 A
1B AR EAR2007F 12831 BREENEA
F o W R B R Hb B RZ G SN B E TR BlA B R
EFEHKREZH  AIRAREENBE - A%
EONEARER10% At AEEERZERE
R B b Bk 32 B B A Rl Bk B 2008451 A1 BB E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

871 75 ¥R 2% Bfit 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. |RA
Shares iz 17
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
415,000,000 (2021: 415,000,000) ordinary 415,000,000 (20214 :
shares of HK$0.01 each 415,000,000) & & IR E
(2021: HK$0.01 each) 180.018 7T (20214 :
FREME01ET)
IR EEE 3,764 3,764
27. RESERVES 27. f#fE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements HEAFERCZAFE  AEENRESER
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HEBH2IRUBBRRFIBENGEERE
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 123 of gk o

the financial statements.

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares issued and the consideration
received.

(@) KRH=EE
B B4 B BT AR E A S 2 AR
EBRERE-

ABBHREERAT B -FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
articles of association of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its
net profits after tax, as determined under the Chinese
Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase share capital, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which they are created
and are not distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued
capital of the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the capital contributions from
the equity holders of certain subsidiaries now
comprising the Group before the completion of the
reorganisation.
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(b) EEEBKLE
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28.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIgnT

B3 Rk 2R Bit 51

31 December 2022
2022%F 12 A31H

28. MAEARFERERNFZENBLR

AEBHEEEAFERERNNERRFBEHR

2022 2021
2022 20214F
Percentage of equity interest held by non- MRS R
controlling interests: BB
Huidehang FES1T 80% 80%
Gaoli = — 80%
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling 7 Bt 2= 3F 2 B HE 35 B9 B )
interests: A -
Nanjing Yadong R = 1,564
Chuzhou Yurun BN FE — 4,195
Huidehang ST 3,512 2,609
Gaoli = 7] (2,127) 1,257
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest: RN TR SRS
Chuzhou Yurun BINFE = 3,430
Huidehang FE1S1T 1,385 1,750
Accumulated balances of non-controlling REE A E - JEE R
interests at the reporting date: 254
Huidehang ME151T 13,918 16,422
Gaoli =7 — 12,038

UEBEEBERAT - B FEH m‘



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 $R 2R Bl 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

28.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 28. BEEARFEREZNIIEZEHE LT

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRFRALAMBLATNNMEERREE - AT
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed BHEBERG REM AR HEES

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Huidehang

EBT

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Revenue & 99,224
Total expenses EEEL (76,843)
Income tax expense Frigfif = (4,825)
Profit for the year F N F 17,556
Total comprehensive income for the year FANZHEENEE 17,556
Current assets MEEE 80,822
Non-current assets JEMENE E 51,679
Current liabilities mE A& (39,859)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE (12,818)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Net cash flows used in financing activities

LEEBMSRESREFHE 15,111
KREEZHMAREREFE 123
MEEEFAREREFRE (24,543)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Re MBS EEWMIEINFE (9,309)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 28. A EAFIZEREZNIEZENRB AT

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) (&)
Huidehang Gaoli
ST =
2021 2021 4F RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBTTT
Revenue Wz 84,911 39,412
Total expenses i 1858 (67,562) (31,213)
Income tax expense FiEHiAx (4,304) (1,915)
Profit for the year F 5 F 13,045 6,284
Total comprehensive income for the year FALHEENBTE 13,045 6,284
Current assets MEEE 69,264 65,839
Non-current assets IERBEE 64,230 37,715
Current liabilities ViER=RiT (30,756) (34,348)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (15,928) (9,014)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHRE S RE R 28,980 3,568
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEFSMARSREFHE (47) (205)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEEFTAREREFRE (1,175) —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReMESEEWME TR 27,758 3,363
29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 29. ¥BE6t
(@)  Acquisition of Huidehang (@) UWEEEREIT
In January 2021, the Group acquired an 80% interest in R20211 A - AEENUREREARKE
Huidehang from an independent third party at a cash 216,000,000 C M B 5 = H W IE BT
consideration of RMB216,000,000. Huidehang is engaged 0% MM o [ESITHSIRBEMEESER
in the provision of property management services. The 5 o LEIRUHE T 7N & B4 K R B K P 3
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to BIRER IS NN —FH o

expand its market share of property management
operation in Mainland China.

UBHBEMERAT - “F-FFH m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(@) Acquisition of Huidehang (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

29. XBE O (@)

(@) WIBESIT (&)
PESTTHY AT BRI E M B ERUE B HIR

Huidehang as at the date of acquisition were as follows: RNFEEAT :
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
A UK B B RE R Y
AFE
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 13 514
Other intangible assets HEthmEEE 16 75,711
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 24,581
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FERFRIE - HAth JE Y KIA
NMHAMEE 4,471
Due from related companies JE U B B R B RUIE 21,580
Cash and cash equivalents RERBAEEEY 8,717
Trade payables 2 5 ENHIE (34)
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIBRETER (19,250)
Due to related companies JE 1 BB 2 R 5RIR (209)
Contract liabilities aRAE (13,578)
Tax payable FEA 18 (8,654)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 25 (18,909)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFTENAHAIE
EFEARE 74,940
Non-controlling interests SRR IR HE o (14,988)
Goodwill on acquisition W R R 2 15 156,048
Satisfied by cash AR & A 216,000

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB24,581,000 and RMB3,686,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB24,581,000 and RMB3,686,000,
respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 29. ¥EBE O (#)
Acquisition of Huidehang (Continued) @ WEBEST(E)
The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB220,000 for AEERUBBEEER I RARE
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been 220,0007C ° ZER HHAE X - Wit A
expensed and are included in other expenses in the HeEBEmkEMEAEEROEMAS
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B oo
comprehensive income.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the FRAWEMBEARNESREDTAT
acquisition of the subsidiaries are as follows:
RMB’000
AR%T
Cash consideration ReERE (216,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired BWIER e RIR{TA 8,717
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in 5T AR EFEFTRREREMNIR
cash flows from investing activities SRR EEYRLFR (207,283)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries
contributed RMB85,449,000 to the Group's revenue and
RMB13,045,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the
Group for the year of 2021 would have been
RMB1,132,528,000 and RMB140,517,000, respectively.

Acquisition of Gaoli

In April 2021, the Group acquired an 80% interest in
Gaoli from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of RMB73,536,000. Gaoli is engaged in the
provision of property management services. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand its market share of property management
operation in Mainland China.

BUREERE - FTIBH B A RN E 2021 4F
12A3BLEFERAEBR TR M AR
85,449,0007T & 47 & 1 ) A B #13,045,000
7_E °

HEHREIETT + BRI FAEE K=
EAREEEHNBE DN ABEARE
1,132,528,0007T & A R #140,517,0007T °

WiESh

R2021F48  AEEUBRESREARE
73,536,000 7T [A) 8 32 55 = 75 BB = /1 80% &Y
B o m NIt REMEETERS - LR
WHE YA S B AR B AENETIRER
M NBEEEEN — 2D o

SAEREEMERAR  —B-—F 5K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ER 2R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Gaoli (Continued)

29.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Gaoli as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

KK &0 (@

(b)

WiES b (&)
BANAEMNEERBERKERRNQ
FEWT

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition
U HE B FE R Y
NFE
Notes RMB'000
B 5 ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment M - BB &E 13 381
Other intangible assets Hih P & E 16 41,101
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 25 1,851
Inventory rE 178
Trade receivables 2 5 W FRIE 11,601
Prepayments, other receivables and other B kI8 « H 4th B g 7018 I H 4ty
assets BE 11,650
Due from related companies FE IR BB A B 5K I8 44,172
Cash and cash equivalents ReMES %E% 8,864
Trade payables Z 5 5RT (2,994)
Other payables and accruals E b IE&fuf;gfﬁH (16,321)
Due to related companies FEH 2 )i NG| (28,416)
Contract liabilities eREAaE (6,139)
Tax payable FERT IR (1,796)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBAEE 25 (10,225)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value E@?Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁ
bk 53,907
Non-controlling interests éﬁ A 2= (10,781)
Goodwill on acquisition I B B ) g 2 15 30,410
Satisfied by cash AR & A 73,536
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Gaoli (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB11,601,000 and RMB11,647,000, respectively. The
gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB11,601,000 and RMB11,647,000,
respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB340,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of the subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R Bt 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

29. ¥EBE O (#)

(b) WESH (E)
AU BB - 5 5 e WK TE K E i fE UK
BERATFED R AAR,601,0007T K&
AR#11,647,0007T © B 5 FEWEIE K EAM
W HRENEREES R AR
11,601,0007C & A R #11,647,0007T °

AEERUBKRBEES IR AARE
340,0007C ° ZERSHAE T8 - Wit A
GABEEMEMEmBSROEMAS
q:‘ o

ERUEERBARNRERESITHT

RMB'000

AR T T

Cash consideration BeRE (73,536)

Cash and bank balances acquired B R & RIRTT 4 & 8,864
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in st AR B EFFBESRENIR

cash flows from investing activities eRBEEFEEYRLERE (64,672)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries BB - FTU MR A Al B = 2021 6F
contributed RMB39,397,000 to the Group's revenue and RANBLEFERASEEER S E AR
RMB6,284,000 to the consolidated profit for the year 39,397,000t & 47 & i Fl A R #6,284,000

ended 31 December 2021. JC °

WA HRENETT - Bl2021 FAEE S
EAREEEFHE D BN ABEARE
1,147,594,000 7T & A K #138,653,0007T °

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the
Group for the year of 2021 would have been

RMB1,147,594,000 and RMB138,653,000, respectively.

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR
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31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 25 July 2022,

30. HEMEB QT

the Group disposed of its total 80% equity interest in Gaoli to SEm—EE

an independent third party for a consideration of
RMB73,536,000. The consideration was determined by

reference to the corresponding value of the equity interest

disposed of.

The effect of such disposal on the Group's assets and liabilities

is set out below:

BIEBHA202F7 A2s B EZERD K

VEZTTHEERS IHE H80%

ERHEHAREEERAER

i - KB A AREET73,536,0007T c RIETIKL
EFHERENHEEEERET -

FEHINWT

2022
20224
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR®T
Net assets disposed of: FrtEEEFE :

Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R 13 280
Other intangible assets HtmpEE 16 32,238
Inventory FE 166
Trade receivables Z 5 EWGIE 25,724

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TERT IR -« E A FEWGRIE
NEH A EE 39,544
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 5,808
Deferred tax assets BEETIBEE 25 1,202
Trade payables Z 5 ENHIE (7,315)
Other payables and accruals b EA AR EGE A (27,008)
Contract liabilities aRAEE (10,063)
Tax payable JEA 18 (3,064)
Deferred tax liabilities RIER B A G 25 (7,955)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value EATEFENAHRNE
EREERE 49,557
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A (9,910)
Goodwill kS 15 30,410
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB AR MRS 3,479
73,536

Satisfied by: AT AT

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TR RRIE - HAth FEURIR
NEMEE 43,354
Consideration receivables JE WA AB 30,182
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B7 ¥ ¥R 2R Bfd 5
31 December 2022
2022412 A31R
30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. HEKEAE (@)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in EREENBARMNE e RRECEFEMRAF
respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows: BEOMWT
RMB’'000
AR®T T
Cash consideration ReRE =
Cash and bank balances disposed of Fr B8 & RIRTT4HE (5,808)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EHELEMBATNRERRS
in respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries ZEYRLFE (5,808)
Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 5 November RIFBHA2021F 11 As B ROEZERGZ A
2021, the Group disposed of its total 51% equity interest in SRR E2BVE - SFHEENERERYE
Nanjing Yadong Property Management Co., Ltd. and its EREERARIREZ2ENE A RINE H51%M&
wholly-owned subsidiary to an independent third party for a - REARARKE23,0000007T - REHELZE
consideration of RMB23,000,000. The consideration was FriERERNEEEEEET -

determined by reference to the corresponding value of the
equity interest disposed of.

UBHBEMERAT - “F-FFH @
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. HEKEAE (@)
The effect of such disposal on the Group's assets and liabilities EHNEETSEEERBENFEHINT
is set out below:

2021

20214

Notes RMB'000

Bt ARBTTT

Net assets disposed of: FrtEEEFE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - HWE KRR E 13 1,097
Other intangible assets HEtmEE 16 5610
Inventory BE 9
Trade receivables 2 5 W RIA 23,636
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TEATRRIE - H R UK IR

REMEE 3,010

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 9,033
Trade payables B 5 RN RIE (119)
Other payables and accruals Hin e B R EAER (9,626)
Contract liabilities aRAE (5,103)
Tax payable JE A 5 18 (701)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEE 25 (1,366)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEFTENFHIE

EREAE 25,480

Non-controlling interests FEFE A M A (12,485)

Goodwill kS 15 12,301
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARMNES (2,296)
Satisfied by cash PATR & 32 23,000

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

BERLEHNBARMNRE RREFEMRAF

respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows: BOMMT :
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Cash consideration HERE 23,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of Frit &8 & RIRTTHE (9,033)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of FRLERBARMNAS RS
the disposal of the subsidiaries LEYRLFE 13,967
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 75 ¥R 2R Bfit 5
31 December 2022
20229124318
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. ZREBSRERKF
CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities METBEENERESE
Interest-bearing
bank and other Due to related
borrowings companies Total
sFRBITR FE 1 A B
H &R ATHRIE #et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
At 1 January 2021 202151 A1 H — 2,796 2,796
Cash flows from financing REEBMEES
activities "= — — —
Cash flows from non-financing FrEFESE
activities mE — 4,140 4,140
At 31 December 2021 202112 431 H — 6,936 6,936
At 1 January 2022 7202241 A1 H = 6,936 6,936
Cash flows from financing BLEEE SRS
activities meE 55,797 = 55,797
Cash flows from non-financing IERMEEERE
activities mE — (5,537) (5,537)
Non-cash changes: R EEF -
Accrual of interest FEETFIE 2,760 — 2,760
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 58,557 1,399 59,956

SAEREEMERAR  —B-—F 5K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

32. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end

of the reporting period:

32. R

AREBERHwERERER AT EARARE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAE MR B
Other intangible assets HihmzEE 4,546 4,971
4,546 4,971
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBAXRS
a)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these a) KBEEUEREREMTIHFDLARSIN
financial statements, the Group had the following AEBEHRNEBAE NS0T
transactions with related parties during the year:
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETFTT
Fellow subsidiaries: RARMBE AR :
Property management services Y %8 B AR A
income 165,839 177,323
Value-added services to non- IEHEERERBUWA
property owners income 61,384 99,890
Other purchase from related parties RAHE 5 E AE W B b IR AE K8 = 10,490
Joint ventures and associates of EAREMBARMNEETER
fellow subsidiaries: =N
Property management services Y2 E IR RS UA
income 5,208 8,135
Value-added services to non- e FIEERB KA
property owners income 57,216 67,339
The company controlled by the family — S IZEARAR K BIEHIF A A :
members of the controlling
shareholder:
Property management services M %8 B ARG A
income 458 5,498

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022



33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the vyear:
(Continued)

Notes:

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the companies
involved. The service fees take into account a wide range of
factors, including but not limited to (i) the nature, age,
infrastructure features, geographical location and
neighbourhood profile of the relevant properties; (i) the
prevailing market price charged by other independent third
party service providers to related parties in respect of
comparable services; and (iii) any applicable rate recommended
by the relevant government authorities.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

These related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Group entered into a three-year lease contract with
a fellow subsidiary to lease certain building as offices.
The rental fee agreed by parties involved was
RMB460,000 annually.

The Group entered into an agreement with a fellow
subsidiary to sell parking lots as an agent and paid
RMB200,910,000 as agency deposit, of which
RMB12,837,000 has been settled at 31 December 2022.
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33. BEARZ (&)

a)

Bt FM B MR EME D FRORHI -
AEEHANEBBIORXZMT : (B)

pf

w

ZERZ H TR B R A B R 16 5E 6 16K R &
T - RBEBELSEZERBTRAEREE - 2
FBENRNOEEMENEEL B EHR
MR B ERBEER () EMBZE
=77 IRAS AL FE P 54 AR 5 AR 765 () B st 75 MR ER O 3R
1T {E ¢ R BB AT B PI 2E  (E B R 15

It %32 5 Th 4% B8 2 B3] 4075 B AR 1 FE HO {6 R %
PRIFETT

SR T RS IEK LT R RIE14AT R
MEER S HFEMERS

[N

AEEE-FHRRMNBAR LA =F
MEEAK  NHESTREMESRA
ERNETRARNEERBFARK
460,0007T °

AEEE—FHRZMB AR L HE - A
REFHEEFEMNIEIFARY
200,910,000TCEAREBIE® - AP AR
12,837,00070H220228 12 A31 BB &1+ »

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

33. BEBARZ (&

Outstanding balances with related parties: d  EBEB ARG ER
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFTT
Due from related companies: FEJ%Z EaliNEIE g
Trade related = iEl
Fellow subsidiaries (A 2 Fff 8 2 A 400,311 57,611
Joint ventures and associates of fellow RARMBARINEED
subsidiaries EJNE N 39,736 32,570
The company controlled by the family SRR AR R K B Y
members of the controlling NE]
shareholder 476 60
440,523 90,241
Due to related companies: & BB A B FE
Trade related =LiEl
Fellow subsidiaries SIS EENG] = 4,708
Joint ventures and associates of fellow REMBARINEGEDR
subsidiaries EYSE AN = 848
— 5,556

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of these
receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and measured the impairment under the
general approach based on the 12-month expected
credit loss, and has assessed that the expected credit
losses are immaterial.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

e) Compensation of key management personnel of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

33. BEARZ (&)

o ARBEXEEEABHMH:

Group:
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARET T
Short-term employee benefits RHEERT 4,584 5,500
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSFEHRFELEEF
social welfare 362 298
Total compensation paid to key ENFEERAEFHFHNRE
management personnel 4,946 5,798

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.

EWEEMS 0L — SHERRT BRE
ks -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
2022%F 12 A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. HERESNEMTE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RFERERFSEeHMTAMNERRBENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2022 20224
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R 8 B A I BR
HEmEE
RMB’000
AR® T
Trade receivables (note 18) B S GRIE (BYsE18) 191,010
Financial assets included in prepayments, other FFAFER IR - M EUGRIA R E
receivables and other assets (note 19) HEERNTREE (H:E19) 53,635
Cash and bank balances (note 20) e RIRTTE (FIFE20) 545,729
Due from related companies (note 33) JE Uk B B~ B FROE (M RE33) 440,523
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EATEFAEBEENEREE 1,009
1,231,906
Financial liabilities sRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
28 85 P A 51 B
HeEme s
RMB’000
AR®T
Lease liabilities (note 14) HE&REME14) 1,399
Trade payables (note 21) B 5 R I8 (FFsE21) 151,139
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FEARMENRIERESERY
accruals (note 22) raE (MiE22) 122,463
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 24) FHERIT R E A (M 5E24) 58,557

333,558
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

34. REHSSHEHMTA B0

2021 20214F
Financial assets EMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R SR AR T BR
K& R & E
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade receivables (note 18) B S GRIE (BYsE18) 122,230
Financial assets included in prepayments, other ST ATER IR - B ESGRIE R E
receivables and other assets (note 19) HmEENSBEE (FI:E19) 29,132
Cash and bank balances (note 20) R MIRITHE S (MIsE20) 697,612
Due from related companies (note 33) JfE Uk RE Bt N B FR A (BT 5E33) 90,241
939,215
Financial liabilities cmaes
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SR AR T BR
MEREEE
RMB'000
ARET T
Lease liabilities (note 14) HEBE HiFE14) 1,380
Trade payables (note 21) B 5 R RIE (FaE21) 74,963
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FFAEMENRERESERN
accruals (note 22) SR aE (MrE22) 116,592
Due to related companies (note 33) JE <t RE B~ &) ZR 8 (BT 5E33) 5,556
198,491
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

35. TRMIENAFERAFEER

AEEERTA(TEEZSFREERATFES
BEEENSBMITAE) NREERAFENT

Fair values

AT

Carrying amounts

AREE

2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F 20215 2022F 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BUNES ARETT NS
Financial assets CRMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRRNS
through profit or loss BMEE 1,009 — 1,009 —
Financial liabilities TRAE
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITREMMER
other borrowings 58,557 — 58,557 —

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, amounts due from related companies, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and other assets, lease liabilities, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group's own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to be
insignificant.

35.
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31 December 2022
2022%F 12 A31H

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABENE S
through profit or loss BE

35. ERMITAENATERLAFERER &

NEEER
TRHAPAREFE LR T ENRAFEBR :
UAFEFENEE :
A2022%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERTHEENLFEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERTHEHRE EATERAA EXTUERH
(1)  HE(ER) AHEER) #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R

1,009 — — 1,009

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2021: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, trade receivables and other receivables, trade
payables and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. None of
the Group's sales (2021: Nil) were denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale, whilst 100% (2021: 100%) of costs were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its cash
and bank balances.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

MEEREERFEREER

ARENEIECRIABERS RRTES -
COL NSV ET e SR8 -EY GF e
BREMBAHE  ZEeMIAEREED
0 5 25 R0 #0 $OB 2 B R RO R
HoRELMIANTIERMERAREEY
BERE -

AEEeR T RELANTERRSIEIMNERR -
FEERBREADESRR -EF SR RIHE
EH R ERROBR - BRABRBAET -

S BE [ B

AEEERRSEREAR -BHERBRIREHEIE
Mk EREBENVHBEERBEERS - AEBRH
EHE(2021F + ) NETHENKEEEMD
ee &M AN BB 5T & - 1100% (2021 4F -
100%) B AN B AZ Z B AL M Thae B ¥ & o

SESh - AR B R IR & N IR 1T 48 8k i m bR o BE
B o

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR

£



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022

2022912 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BAiERE e EE B FEREK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SPEE @ B (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TREMNSRENR  EREEMERER
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the TEHBRAT ASENFRAFE(BEKEE
HKD exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of REBENRATEZBME) B TEXRSIER R
the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values BB HGUKRE :

of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

HKD rate profit before tax

% RMB’'000

BITER Bt A1 F 58

EFH (T EH (TR

% AR T T

2022 2022

If the RMB weakens against the HKD MARMH B TEE -5% 331
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD MARBHEABETHE 5% (331)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

HKD rate profit before tax

% RMB'000

785 T B 2 A5t A1 Al

EF SCRBE) EACTEE)

% ARBFTT

2021 20214F

If the RMB weakens against the HKD MARBHBTRE 5% 552
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD MARMH B THE 5% (552)
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31 December 2022
2022%F 12 A31H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. PHEMEEREREXK (&

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk = & Rk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AEBEHEERAREEBRENE=ZARS
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to AEBZBRAFMBEEREERIETRS
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification NEFHAZEZEEEZER I - BRF
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on BY RN IEGERETER  WASERBRH
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is ZEREARY TEKN BRI IFFNEFEELEST
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in FRNNEEBEHENRS  ASEEREE
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the BEEEFEREHAENBAT I TRHEEER -

Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEAERERFEER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRHEJIENAKENEERRENEEERER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, EaEERE  FEENSRER (BRIEELME
which is mainly based on past due information unless other KA EEANE TV ERARZBE NNBERTE
information is available without undue cost or effort, and %) RFEERESNT - MZF N EHELBESH
year-end staging classification. The amounts presented are BEMAREE -

gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022 ”2022%F12H31H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EHEEER FEAROGERR

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER EpLAE E3fR LL9:p: @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBT R ARBTR

Trade receivables* g HEYGE = = = 200,284 200,284
Financial assets included STABMFIE - £t

in prepayments, other receivables ERFEREEE

and other assets — Normal** MEREE— ER" 112,857 - - - 112,857
Due from related companies [N O = = - 440,523 440,523
Cash and cash balances BeRFiTEH

— Not yet past due — HABH 545,729 = = = 545,729
Financial assets at fair value through WA FE ABHH

profit or loss THEE 1,009 - - - 1,009

659,595 - - 640,807 1,300,402

UEBEEBERAT - B FEH m‘
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

MHEEEREEBEREE @

EERMR (&)
REBERFEZIER ()
M2021F12 831 H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A
BACEER FENEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER FoRR F3R BlehE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables* g S RYGE - - - 126959 126959
Financial assets included in STABRFE - Kt
prepayments, other receivables and EUFEREMEE
other assets — Normal** MEREE — ERB~ 56928 - - - 56928
Due from related companies W B AR — — — 90,241 90,241
Cash and cash balances ReRETER
— Not yet past due — HABH 697,612 - - - 697,612
754,540 — — 217,200 971,740
@ For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAEEEABCRERENE S EKFIE -

approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 18. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
18 to the financial statements.

@ Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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REERBBRZLM -

BRAASEREE S EUFANEERRE
—TEEE  RUMBHRERM T 18HE -



36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of trade
payables, amounts due to related companies and other
payables. Cash flows are being closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B i B AR I BUR ()

B3 Rk 2R Bit 51

31 December 2022
2022912 A31H

REE S @R
AEENBERRBBEREZERMNFKIEA BN
AFREREMENRIRESESHEN
ERBEEZENFE -ReRENBERZHE

TR -

2leN

AEE
BAE

IS

EHRESHARBBEMN KT ENE
HEEBERAT :

Less than
On demand 3 months 3 to 12 months Over 1 years Total
REX 38 A MR 3E12{8A UL ER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
31 December 2022 2025124318
Lease labilities HERR 1399 = = = 1399
Trade payables BAENHE 151,139 - - - 151,139
Financial liabilties included AR RERFENS
in other payables BEE 122,463 = = = 122,463
Interest-bearing bank and SRR REMER
other borrowings - 4,081 12,040 48,039 64,160
275,001 4,081 12,040 48,039 339,161

AAERBEMAERDLR - —B=—FFRH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BIEMEREBEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MEE TR ()
Less than
On demand 3months 3 to 12 months Over 1 years Total
RER 3EAUR 3Z12{8A 1 £ o)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000

ARBTR ARBT ARBTT ARBTTL ARBTTL

31 December 2021 WNENANAE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1380 - - - 1,380
Trade payables BHENHE 74963 - - - 74963
Financial liabilities included in other STARMENFTERNE

payables HER 116,591 - - - 116,591
Due to related companies ENBEHARNA 5556 - - - 5556

198,490 - - - 198,490

m Redsun Services Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
represents trade payables, other payables and accruals, less
cash and cash equivalents. The Group did not have net debt as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021. Capital represents total equity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the
Company after 31 December 2022.

36.

37.
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B7 ¥ ¥R 2R Bfd 5

31 December 2022

2022912 A31H
MR EEEERBER (#)
BEAEHE
AEFBEAREENFEFEBELEAREREEF

BRESEFRENEALLRMEED - U H
HEBIWERREEZAL -

AEESREBELCERL S REEEENRR
HEBEERFARLEREE REFIAEE
ARG AEBAFAZRRMS TREMRE - [
REFEEALBETHR - AEETZRNE
RSN EBREAN B & AR E 3Rk o # 22022612 A31H
IEFEEREE2021F12A31BILFE  BAE
BB BORSURBARBEZ L -

AEBHAERBGEL X (AVEBFHRALHE
BERBEBFENT) REZER  FR5FE
BB ZEMNFRIE - HERRIBRIEERR
RERBEEFEEY - R20229F K2021F12 A31
H AEEBEERFEE BXREERARS -

BREMRER

ARAAR2022F12A31B& I
HAf¢ =1 o

ETERER

AEREEEERLAT - —BE-—FFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F% $R R B 51

31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AR TR K

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the B AR R AR s B R B9 B 75 4R 00 2k 89 & R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: S ¢
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENEBRARMNIEE 198,119 198,119
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 198,119 198,119
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries AN ENGIE S ] 248,355 230,103
Due from related parties JE Y A B 77 SR IE 224 44
Cash and bank balances B4 NMIRTT4E R 5,839 9,572
Total current assets BB EMARE 254,418 239,719
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EMENRIERERTEA 1,102 355
Due to related parties JE < BB 5 SR IE 38 34
Due to subsidiaries AN EENGIE 1,168 582
Total current liabilities MBI BERE 2,308 971
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 252,110 238,748
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHLERRBARS
LIABILITIES 450,229 436,867
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Total non-current liabilities ERBABEEE = —
Net assets BEFE 450,229 436,367
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 3,764 3,764
Reserves 1 446,465 433,103
Total equity Hem iR 450,229 436,867

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AR TR RE (#)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BT 5
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATRHREERZENT
Share Share Other Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
[N R E Hitif# % R EE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARB®TRT AR®TRT AR®TT AR®TRT

Balance at 1 January 2021 202151 B1 B R4 3,764 408,649 98,788 (32317) 478,884
Total comprehensive loss for the year TR 2 HEBARE — — — (20,630) (20,630)
Final 2020 dividend 2020F RAARR B — (21,387) — — (21,387)
Balance at 31 December 2021 and 72021128318 &

1 January 2022 2002F1 B1EM & 3,764 387,262 98,788 (52,947) 436,867

Total comprehensive income for the FREEBABE
year = = = 13,362 13,362

At 31 December 2022 20224124318 3,764 387,262 98,788 (39,585) 450,229

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. ZEMKHREK

The financial statements were approved and authorised for MR EMR2023FIAREKEETSROEL K
issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2023. RETEE -

UBHBEMERAT - “F-FFH m



FINANCIAL
871 55 W6k =2

SUMMARY

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184F 20194F 20204 20214F 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT PNE:G00
Revenue A 348,981 502,990 767,852 1,129,974 1,103,122
Cost of sales 85 B AR (279,209) (375,546) (553,514) (809,569) (846,751)
Gross profit EH 69,772 127,444 214,338 320,405 256,371
Other income and gains E A R e 632 3,129 20,136 11,230 16,830
Selling and distribution HE R HEAX
expenses (699) (364) (786) (1,1790) (1,003)
Administrative expenses THAX (24,227) (50,944) (104,249) (134,877) (132,743)
Other expenses HhFSZ (37) (190) (19,086) (5,762) (878)
Impairment losses on TREERBERE
financial assets, net HE (160) (384) (1,924) (2,854) (7,863)
Finance costs BhE R AR (837) (392) (46) (19) (2,779)
Profit before tax B 58 A1 ) 44,444 78,299 108,383 186,933 127,935
Income tax expense FrisEif (11,453) (21,232) (35,068) (48,581) (34,079)
Profit for the year F RN A 32,991 57,067 73315 138,352 93,856
Owners of the parent S RAREA A 32,991 59,061 69,751 127,955 91,990
Non-controlling interests IR R — (1,994) 3,564 10,397 1,866
Total non-current assets FMBEELE 11,162 36,893 90,938 367,268 284,891
Total current assets MBEERE 252,979 502,616 1,016,663 975,512 1,295,259
Total assets BEE 264,141 539,509 1,107,601 1,342,780 1,580,150
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 213,710 319,925 376,851 497,400 624,317
Total non-current liabilities  3E/ B & E4E 256 2,250 10,335 33,121 65,645
Total liabilities HEE 213,966 322,175 387,186 530,521 689,962
Equity #m
Equity attributable to BRRHE AEN
owners of the parent s 50,175 208,024 690,188 780,817 872,807
Non-controlling interests FEERR A — 9,310 30,227 31,442 17,381
Total equity R 50,175 217,334 720,415 812,259 890,188

Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2022
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